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UNITED STATES
Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013

or

[1] TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to .
Commission File No. 0-30379
CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Nevads 88-0425691

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No
3661 Horseblock Road, Medford, M 11763
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area ¢88#) 9241135
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ihefAct:

Title of each clas Name of each exchange on which registt
None None

Securities registered pursuant to section 12(ghefAct:
Common Stock, $0.01 par val

(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%dB#turities Act. Yes _ No X
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes __ No X

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @l filed all reports required to be filed by Seetk8 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4L88rin¢
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter petiatithe registrant was required to file such reg)pand (2) has been subject to such filing nexmeénts fc
the past 90 days. Yes X No__

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lusrstted electronically and posted on its corpok&fbsite, if any, every Interactive Data File regdito b
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Régol&-T (8 232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@gmonths (or for such shorter period that
registrant was required to submit and post suek)fil Yes X No __

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Iltem 405 of RegulatiorKS§ 229.405 of this chapter) is not contained tmerand will no
be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledygdefinitive proxy or information statements amporated by reference in Part Il of this FormK.@r any
amendment to this Form 10-K. [X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant iarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-acelerated filer, or a smaller reporting compa8ge th
definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accekedfiler" and "smaller reporting company" in Rd2b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer [ Accelerated filer [
Non-accelerated filer [ Smaller reporting company [>
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantsball company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Brgfe Act). Yes _ No _X

As of the last business day of the Company's neasintly completed second fiscal quarter, the aggeegarket value of voting and neating common equit
held by non-affiliates* was $38,000,000.

As of March 4, 2014, the registrant had 9,324, 7@8mon shares outstanding.
* Without asserting that any of the issuer's divesor executive officers, or the entities that onore than five percent of the outstanding shaféiseo

Registrant's common stock, are affiliates, theeshaf which they are beneficial owners have nohleeluded in shares held by non-affiliates sofelythis
calculation.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forwartboking statements within the meaning of Sectida @fithe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and &e&T7A ¢
the Securities Act of 1933. Any statements cordaiméhis report that are not statements of histafifact may be forwartboking statement
When we use the words "intends," "estimates," 'ipted "potential,” "continues," "anticipates,” "@hs," "expects," "believes," "shoul
"could," "may," "will" or the negative of these es or other comparable terminology, we are ideintgfyforward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements involve risks and uncertaintidsich may cause our actual results, performancaadrievements to be materially differ
from those expressed or implied by forw-looking statements. These factors include ourae$eand development activities, distribt
channels, market demand for our products, companith regulatory impositions; and our capital needilthough we believe that
expectations reflected in the forwalabking statements are reasonable, we cannot guaeafuture results, levels of activity, performaioc
achievements.

Except as may be required by applicable law, waatoundertake or intend to update or revise ounfard-looking statements, and we ass
no obligation to update any forwatdeking statements contained in this report as sulieof new information or future events or deveiepts
Thus, you should not assume that our silence dwer mmeans that actual events are bearing out asesgpd or implied in such forward-
looking statements. You should carefully review emusider the various disclosures we make in #yort and our other reports filed with 1
Securities and Exchange Commission that attemptitise interested parties of the risks, uncertamtnd other factors that may affect
business.

For further information about these and other riskgertainties and factors, please review thelalisce included in this report under "Pa
Item 1A, Risk Factors."

Our Business
General

The Company (Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and its Whowned subsidiary, Chembio Diagnostic Systems, lace, collectively referred
herein as the "Company") develops, manufacturesketm and licenses rapid point-cdre diagnostic tests (POCTs) that detect infes
diseases. The Company's main products presentiyneocially available are four rapid tests for ttededtion of HIV 1/2 antibodies, two ra|
tests for the detection of syphilis antibodies, anahultiplex rapid test for the detection of HIVda8yphilis antibodies. Three of the HIV
rapid tests employ itieensed and proprietary lateral flow technolodig=e "Our Rapid Test Technologies"), can be usé#ualliblood matrice
as samples, and are manufactured in a standardtieagsrmat, a dipstick format, and a proprietagyrél format. The tests employing
cassette and proprietary barrel formats were amggrdyy the FDA in 2006 and are exclusively distéouby Alere, Inc. ("Alere") in the Uniti
States and by Chembio outside the United Statasdigcussed below (see Partners Involved in Marge@lur Products), we are conside
changes to our exclusive agreements with Alere chase Alere's introduction of a competitive produatiich introduction has trigger
provisions in those agreements, permitting us t&emeertain changes. Our fourth HIV 1/2 rapid amdiyp detection test incorporates
patented Dual Path Platform® (DPP®) POCT techngl@md this POCT platform does not require in-liGegs The DPPGHIV 1/2 Assa
detects antibodies to HIV 1 & 2 in oral fluid samplas well as in all blood matrices. We have #aklproduct in Brazil since 2009 wher
was approved by ANVISA, through our agreement wité Oswaldo Cruz Foundation ("FIOCRUZ"), and weeieed United States FL
regulatory approval for this product on December2l2. We anticipate launching it in the Unitedt&s under Chembio's brand in 2014.

Our product pipeline, which currently includes altiplex rapid test for earlier detection of HIV loetecting P24 antigen as well as antibod
a test for Hepatiti€, and a multiplex test that detects HIV and Sygtupecific antibodies (which we are already sgllinternationally), i
based on this DPP&chnology for which we were issued a United Stptasnt in 2007 and for which additional patentigeton has issued
is pending in a number of other countries. With patented DPP® and the lateral flow platform, \adipipate in the estimated 3% billion
point-of-care market segment of the estimated pe&H0 billion global invitro diagnostic market that has an overall grovete exceeding 5
per annum. POCTS, by providing prompt and earhgdosis, can reduce patient stays, lower overaliscémprove therapeutic interventi
and improve patient outcomes. POCTSs can also ptexeedless hospital admissions, simplify testiraredures, avoid delays from central
batching, and eliminate the need for return visits.




In the areas of infectious and sexually transmittisgtases (such as HIV and syphilis), the utilityaaapid point—ofeare test, particularly
identifying patients unaware of their disease stabas been well established. Large and growindgieteahave been established for these |
of tests, initially in high prevalence regions wiéhey are indispensable for large scale preveraiwh treatment programs. More rece
introduced in the United States in 2004, rapid k#%8ts now also present a significant segment obltlse market for HIV clinical testing, whi

is still dominated by laboratory tests. We haveused our product development activity within are@gre the availability of rapid, point-of-
care screening, diagnostic, or confirmatory restéits improve health outcomes. More generally wiebe there is and will continue to b
growing demand for diagnostic products that carvideo accurate, actionable diagnostic informatiorainapid, coseffective manner at tl
point of care.

PRODUCTS
Lateral Flow Rapid HIV Tests

All three of our lateral flow rapid HIV antibody tbetion tests are qualitative "yes/no" tests far detection of antibodies to HIV 1 & 2 w
visually interpreted results (one line "negativetp lines "positive™) available within approximagel5 minutes. The tests are simple to
have a shelf life of 24 months, and do not reqréfegeration. The tests differ principally only the method of test procedure, convenience
cost. One of our FDA&pproved lateral flow HIV tests incorporates a pietary plastic "barrel" device that houses therait flow strip. Thi
barrel format enables collection of samples diye@tisually from a fingestick whole blood sample) into the barrel's capjllip. A seale
unitized buffer vial, assembled onto the top of ltlaerel, is removed and seated into a stand; thleis¢hen pierced by the barrel's capillary
thereby initiating the upward flow of the resultisgmplebuffer solution through a filter, up into the vesl device's chamber and onto
lateral flow strip. This results in a unique unéil and closed device system that can reduce #recelof exposure to potentially infecti
samples. Our other FDApproved lateral flow HIV test uses a more conwerai rectangular plastic cassette format that tethse lateral floy
strip. In this case, a sample is transferred leyafsa separately provided transfer device ("loaptd a sample well or port of the cassette
houses the lateral flow strip, which is positiofedizontally or flat.

Both of the above-described products are marketeldigively in the United States by Alere (see Rarinvolved in Marketing Our Products)
as Clearview® Complete HIV 1/2 (the barrel formatgmverned by the Barrel Agreement) and Clearviéd® 1/2 STAT PAK® (the casset
format as governed by the Cassette Agreement)inaalll other markets by Chembio under the namesy®ie SURE CHECKGEHIV 1/2 anc
Chembio HIV 1/2 STAT PAK®. Alere has non-exclusikights to the barrel product outside the Unitedt&. In addition to the above-
referenced agreements for Alere to market our misguAlere also licensed their lateral flow tecloyyl patents to Chembio for ¢
international rapid HIV test sales and certain pfBkembio lateral flow product sales. Also thielise would extend to sales by Chemb
the cassette and barrel products in the UniteceSttould we decide to exercise certain rights exsvcisable by us based on Alere's notis
us of their having a Permitted Competing Produeg Bartners Involved in Marketing Our Products).

Our third lateral flow HIV test, the HIV 1/2 STATAK® Dipstick, is our most cost competitive and comdacmat. It does not have a
plastic housing so that 30 test strips can be gpakdnto a small vial that is ideal for transpagtimto remote settings. The test procedu
similar to the cassette format except that a upplied adhesive backing is provided as a more effsttive and compact "surface" on whicl
run the test.

Regulatory Status of the lateral flow HIV tests

The FDA approved our Piglarket Applications (hereinafter "PMA"; see "Goverantal Regulations" and Glossary) in April 2006 &an
SURE CHECK HIV 1/2 (and also now Alere Clearview®rfplete HIV 1/2) and for our HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK® (noiere' Clearview®HIV
1/2 STAT-PAK® in the United States only) products. Waivers uniiher Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act (hereimaft'CLIA"; see
Governmental Regulations) were granted by the FexAHese two FDAapproved products in 2006 and 2007, respectivAlCLIA waiver is
required in order for health care providers to adstér these tests in the settings where they as suited and needed, such as public h
testing clinics, hospital emergency rooms and pligss' offices. The SURE CHECKf@roduct received a CE Mark in July 2013 and the
Markings for the HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK® (as well as tiEPP® HIV 1/2 Assay described below) are expecte@d14. Our HIV 1/2 STAT-
PAK® Dipstick, although not FDApproved, qualifies under FDA export regulationsd $overnment Regulation] to sell to customerside
the United States, subject to any required apprioydhe importing country. CE Mark has not beerspad for this product.

All three of our lateral flow HIV tests have qu&id for procurement under the President's EmergPtany for AIDS Relief ("PEPFAR"). Bo
the cassette and dipstick versions of the STAT-PAK® also qualified by the World Health Organizat{®v¥HO) for procurements by t
second largest global program, known as the Glébald, as well as other related programs fundeddmncies affiliated with the Unit
Nations, such as UNICEF and UNITAIDS (see Glossahypugh qualification with the WHO bulk procuremiecheme
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DPP® HIV 1/2 Assay

As in the case of our lateral flow HIV tests, oPBR®HIV 1/2 Assay is also a qualitative "yes/no" test the detection of antibodies to HIV
2, delivers visual results within as little as 1%uates, is simple to use, has a shelf life of 2sths, and does not require refrigeration.
product, which is our first FDA-approved produatanporating our patented DPR@&chnology, can be used with oral fluid samplesyel as
with all blood matrices. This product also incaiges our paterfgending oral fluid collection and storage systew #gnables samples to
fully extracted in buffer solution before appliaati to the test device, and also enables the ezttasample to be stored and reteste
potentially tested for multiple conditions in futuproduct applications. Clinical and laboratonydéts demonstrated the ability of the tes
accurately detect the presence of antibodies iiviohaals down to two years of age. Studies have at®wn this product to have impro
performance compared with all of the current FDAvaped CLIAwaived lateral flow rapid tests, even including awn lateral flow tests
FDA-approved label claims include sensitivity/sfiiedy on oral fluid and fingesstick whole blood of 98.9%/99.9% and 99.9%/1(
respectively. Oral fluid sensitivity was 100% amd#ky-positive patients not taking antétroviral medication: Due to the low HIV prevale
in the U.S., clinical trials are performed on knoltV-positive patients, and more and more of thieséviduals are on more highly active anti-
retroviral treatments (known as "HAART") for muobnber periods than when we and our competitors Ubgaand Trinity performed the
clinical trials ten to fifteen years ago. We beéiethat this fact, combined with our product's sigreperformance in a direct compara
evaluation that was conducted by the United St&@€ Global AIDS Program, together with analyticaldies that confirm earlier detect
with our DPP®product than our main competitors on well chardoéer serum samples, all combine to provide us wiignificant mark
opportunity with this product.

Regulatory Status of the DPP® HIV 1/2 Assay

In April 2012 we completed a 3,000 patient clinisaldy with our DPP@&1IV 1/2 Assay in the United States which we haduremn 2010. |
June 2012 we submitted the third of three modwdgsiired for a modular PMA application to the FDAn December 19, 2012 we recei
FDA approval of our Prédarketing Approval. During 2013, we completed 80D, patient clinical study in order to submit a BLwaiver
application to the FDA, which was submitted at ¢imel of November 2013. In February 2014 we receivéatter from the FDA on the curr
status of review of our CLIA waiver applicationhd FDA determined that additional information isded to complete their review of
Company's DPP®1IV 1/2 Assay CLIA waiver application. During thdinded prospective clinical study, a disproporéitennumber of ne
infections were found at one clinical site duehte tower than expected prevalence at two othes.si®e are currently in discussion with
FDA to finalize the protocol to collect additiorddta. Upon receiving guidance on our proposecpobt we anticipate that we will be able
update the timeline of activities for the CLIA waivof the DPP HIV1/2 Assay.

The DPP®HIV 1/2 Assay product is qualified for procurememider the President's Emergency Plan for AIDS REIREPFAR") for use wit
all sample matrices, and we are pursuing WHO duatibn in order to enable procurement of this piidby the Global Fund and Uni
Nations agencies, including programs underwrittethiem. We are also pursuing CE Marking, anti@daturing 2014, as stated aba

In June 2010, ANVISA approved the DPREV 1/2 Assay that is being marketed in Brazil thgh our collaboration with the Oswaldo C
Foundation, Brazil's leading public health insgt@ee Oswaldo Cruz Foundation OEM DPP® Agreements)

DPP® HIV-Syphilis Multiplex Test

This product, launched in 2013, allows for the déta of antibodies to both HIV and Syphilis oniage test device within approximately
minutes. In certain global/public health settifgse Target Markets) this product may provide aentmmvenient and cost effective mear
rapid detecting both markers in a single test ptape at the point of care as compared with perfognsieparate rapid tests for each indical
This product takes advantage of the multiplexiragides of DPP®&vhich provides for a more robust reaction betwdensample and biomark
being tested for (HIV and Syphilis antibodies iistbase), resulting in a greater ability by therdsevisually interpret test results. We launc
this product in Mexico in the fourth quarter of 304s a unitized product, meaning that each testa&dt separately packaged to include ea
the other components necessary to run this testormpared with other configurations where a tesbk20 or 30 devices is accompaniec
one bottle of running buffer. The initial resutisthis launch have been very positive, and wecgrgte good results in Mexico during 2(
from the program. Building on this initial succesg are pursuing commercialization efforts for tpimduct in a number of additiol
international markets.




Regulatory Status of the DPP® HIV-Syphilis Test

The DPP® HIVSyphilis multiplex test development was completed2013, and commercialization activities commenge@013 and al
moving well as stated above. Also as mentioned/@ba unitized version of this product was approaad launched in Mexico during 1
fourth quarter of 2013, and the product has bedhreeeived. In addition, this product is the fissich product to have been approved b
USAID for procurement with U.S. foreign aid progrdomds (such as PEPFAR). We are pursuingquaification of this product with tl
World Health Organization (WHO) in order to allowopurement through programs such as the Global F&nhultaneously we are pursu
registration of this product in a number of forejgrisdictions where we believe there is an opputyufor this product.

In 2013, and 2014 year to date, we have made gignifefforts on pursuing an FDA submission fosthroduct. However, FDA has advi
thus far that performance specifications for thisdpict must be substantially equivalent both in parison to the traditional algorithm and
"reverse" algorithms that are both now in use m thnited States for syphilis testing, as well agintke requirements for HIV sensitivity ¢
specificity. It is possible to that other pathwadgsreceiving FDA approval may be available by ting the performance claims and/or
settings in which the tests could be used. We anelucting further studies now, and we are in dialéy the FDA and others, to see whe
and how we may be able to meet their requiremeitt®ut making changes to this product, which waalsult in further delays.

OTHER DPP® PRODUCTS

Our product pipeline includes a multiplex test tHatects P24 HIV antigen as well as HIV 1/2 antibedand a rapid test for the detectio
HepatitisC antibodies. These products are still in a dgyakent stage and have not been commercialized imeanigets. The Company hz
robust research and development department tlaasved in a number of ongoing collaborations, soof which are sponsored, with pul
and private organizations. During 2013 we condyeinsored research and development activitiesMorprograms sponsored by agencie
the United States government; One is for the dgvetnt of a and influenza immune status test and the othfer is multiplex febrile illnes
test that could help identify and differentiate rémote settings, symptoms that could be attridataba variety of tropical diseases, incluc
malaria, dengue, and the bubonic plague. We hésce aontinued to conduct research and developmetiitees on a serological test -
tuberculosis pursuant to a Phase Il SBIRR gramhftiee National Institutes of Health (NIH). All tfiese projects are based on our pate
DPP® technology.

PARTNERS INVOLVED IN MARKETING OUR PRODUCTS

Alere

On September 29, 2006, we executed marketing aadde agreements with Alere. The marketing agreenfthe Barrel Agreement and
Cassette Agreement) provide Alere with ayB@w exclusive right (until September 2016) to reardur rapid HIV tests in the United Ste
under Alere's brands. The agreements also pradaenbio a norexclusive license to certain Alere lateral flowgyets that may be applica
to our lateral flow products, including for manuiae of the HIV tests in the United States for salatside the United States and even for
in the United States should Alere enter the U.Skatawith a competitive rapid HIV test product aimdsuch case we choose to market
products directly as provided in the agreementsuich event of a competitive rapid HIV test produBtmultaneous with the execution of
agreements, we also settled litigation with Sta@éSDragnostics, Inc. (SDS), that had been ongoifating to the proprietary barrel dev
which is incorporated into one of our two FCasproved rapid HIV tests (See Lateral Flow HIV Sesbove). SDS, pursuant to the settlen
is a party to the 3vay Barrel Agreement. As a result, until now sitthirough the agreements with Alere that we haes Iparticipating in tt
growth of the rapid HIV test market in the Unitetht8s.

In late July 2013, we received notice from Alerattthey intend to commercialize their own rapid HBét (see Competition), which test
just received FDA approval as a moderate complexitguct (i.e. not CLI~waived though this is being pursued and anticipdtathg 2014
in the United States. Under the Barrel Agreemendtthe Cassette Agreement such product is consideree a Permitted Competing Proc
(PCP). Each of the two aforementioned agreemeantsdes that, in the case of notice of a PCP, Chemtay make certain elections (joir
with SDS in the case of the Barrel Agreement), lecteto continue each agreement without taking fumher action. Under the Cass
Agreement, Chembio may, at any time, terminate sugkement, which termination would become effec0 days after the date notice
made. Under the Barrel Agreement, Chembio and SBjointly issue a noexclusivity notice, which notice shall be effectivemediately.
In the event that Chembio (and SDS) makes thidietewith respect to either (or both) of these uatd, Chembio could sell that respective
both) product(s) in the United States market ur@lsembio/SDS brands and in such case, the laterallitense that Chembio has from Al
for international sales would be expanded to inelsales in the United States, which would requieepayment of a royalty to Alere at the t
of any sales. Sdeateral Flow Technology and Reagent Licenses.




We have appointed distributors internationally dar lateral flow HIV tests. Our largest market¢side the U.S. for our lateral flow HIV raj
tests are certain countries in Africa, Asia, andtBAmerica, as well as Mexico. Internationallypshof the demand for our products is b
on governmental and nagevernmental prevention and treatment efforts. e@ithis, these programs can and do often restdtge orders, b
also can result in periods of relatively lower deshgbased on the variations associated with timd & demand.

OEM DPP® Products

Oswaldo Cruz Foundation OEM DPP® Agreements

During 20082010 we signed five separate agreements, each ichvidtitled and constitutes a "Technology Trangigreement", with th
Oswaldo Cruz Foundation (FIOCRUZ) in Brazil. FIOQR includes the Institute of Technology on Immurabgicals/Bio- Manguinhos
which is the FIOCRUZ unit that produces vaccined diagnostic kits. FIOCRUZ and BiManguinhos are referred to herein interchange:
Each of the five agreements relates to a diffespeicific product or group of products based on DBP® technology. FIOCRUZ is tl
leading public health organization in Brazil, amndsi affiliated with Brazil's Ministry of Health, kch is its principal client. It has extens
research, educational and manufacturing facilibesirugs and vaccines, as well as for diagnosticpcts.

Each of the agreements grants to FIOCRUZ the rightt,not the obligation, to earn the right to resjue technology transfer to be abli
license and manufacture that product on its oMQQORUZ is not required to earn this right, buttifiesires to do so, then it needs to purch
stated amount of the product as set forth in tepaetive agreement for that product.

During 2010 and 2011, all of the initial producsntemplated under the five agreements were apprésediarketing by the applicat
regulatory agencies in Brazil. The agreements éetvthe Company and FIOCRUZ are unique exampléschhology transfer collaboratic
between a private sector rapid test manufacturéragpublic health organization. The five prodwagegories for which FIOCRUZ can eal
separate right to request a technology transfethfatr product only are: DPP@roducts for HIV screening, HIV Confirmatory, Leishniasis
Leptospirosis and Syphilis. Each technology transind the provision by Chembio of the informatéomd training that is required for this
occur, will occur only if FIOCRUZ purchases from €hbio the amount of that product that is specifiethe respective agreement for
product. The actual amount of purchases for eastiyst is totally at the discretion and option ¥®OERUZ and may be more or less than
amount needed to qualify for a technology transfer.

More specifically, the five agreements, althoughasate and independent of one another, are staligtgimilar according to the following:

Each agreement states: "the object of this Agee is for the Transfer of Technology from Chemtuidio-Manguinhos, the licen
by Chembio to Biavlanguinhos [of] the Chembio Patents applied or @gmin Brazil or other Mercosur countries for tleem of the
patents and the transfer of all the technical imimtion related to the DPP technology and the psteobtain the product by |
DPP® technology. This Agreement contemplates tiensific and technological co-operation betweere@hbio and Biovlanguinho
for such activities so that E-Manguinhos will be able to manufacture the Produ@&razil."

Each agreement provides that Chembio will sugpde of charge to Biddanguinhos prototypes of the product to demons
performance characteristics that are necessargvaiuation by the Brazilian Ministry of Health afat registration with ANVISA.
ANVISA is the Agencia Nacional de Vigliancia Samiga or the National Sanitary Vigilance Agency. eThumber of prototyp
ranges from 15,000 to 45,000 in the various agressr

Each agreement provides that the prototypes willutiéized both for a performance study that folloasprotocol prepared a
approved by Bidvlanguinhos and the Brazilian Ministry of Health,daalso will be used for studies in Brazil for thegistratiol
procedures at ANVISA. Biddanguinhos will then apply to ANVISA to registertiproduct. Within 120 days of the registrationth®
product with ANVISA, BioManguinhos will make an advance technology transégmment to Chembio (the "Advance Payment'
an amount specified in that particular agreemehl. five of the Advance Payments provided for lretagreements were made in 2
and 2011

At such time, if any, that the product for atjgalar agreement has been successfully registeigdANVISA, then BioManguinho
has the right to qualify for the full technologyamisfer for that product by purchasing the amounthefproduct, and at the pri
specified in the agreemer

Bio-Manguinhos is not required to purchase any amofiahy product. For each product, it only needpuochase that product,
the amount specified in the agreement, only ifeices to be able to complete the technology tesmbcess in order to manufact
and sell that product on its own. Chembio doeshae® recourse against Bio-Manguinhos if Blanguinhos does not purchase
qualifying purchase amount of any product. In ttege, Chembio can only suspend further phasdgdethnology transfer, atter
to renegotiate the agreement, and/or retain anyuatagreviously paid by Bio-Manguinhos. Chembiarwat force BioManguinho
to purchase any amount of any prodi




As a result of the terms of these agreementsMBinguinhos has never been required to, and is ot nequired to, purchase ¢
amount of any of the produc
As of December 31, 2013 E-Manguinhos had earned the status described beltdwe@spect to each of the five produt

1.

With respect to Chembio's DPP® HIV1/2 Scree, BioManguinhos had qualified to request the technotoggysfer. It he
requested, and has received, the technology tramdfamation. BioManguinhos purchased $880,175 of this produ
2011, and $4,990,840 in 2012, all of which apptiedhe qualifying amount to obtain the right to teehnology transfer (tl
"Qualifying Amount") for this product. In 2013, 8Manguinhos made $291,235 of purchases that apgigte Qualifyin
Amount for this product, and $3,320,010 of purclkaaeexcess of the Qualifying Amou

With respect to Chembio's Canine Leishmanig Bis-Manguinhos had qualified to request the technologgsfer and di
so request. Submission of the technology transflarmation is in process at this time. BuWanguinhos purchas
$2,000,817 of this product in 2011 and $99,183haf product in 2012 that applied to the Qualifyidmount. In additior
Bio-Manguinhos made purchases in excess of the Quajifkimount equal to $1,314,117 in 2012 and $1,736i7R013.

a. With respect to the three variations of ChersiPP®Syphilis test, all of which are covered by a singggeemen
Bio-Manguinhos had qualified to request the technotoggysfer with respect to Trep only, and intendddcso in th
near future. BidMlanguinhos purchased $1,194,250 of this produ0itil and $165,750 of this product in 2012
applied to the Qualifying Amount. In addition, Biéanguinhos made purchases in excess of the Quuajikmoun
equal to $2,817,750 in 2012, and equal to an etah$646,340 in 201:

b. With respect to the two variations of ChembiS8sreen & Confirm Test, BidManguinhos had not made ¢
purchases in 2011, 2012, or 2013, and thereforenibadjualified to request the technology transfar dither o
them. In order to qualify, Biddanguinhos would need to purchase an additiond $#llion of one of these tes
and an additional $2.08 million of the other t

With respect to Chembio's DPP® Confirmatoryt, tBso-Manguinhos had not qualified to request the teabmpltransfer
Bio-Manguinhos made purchases of $560,000 of this ptadu2011, $819,000 in 2012, and $390,000 in 2@1i3pf whict
applied to the Qualifying Amount. In order to g@afor the technology transfer, Bibtanguinhos would need to purchast
additional $585,000 of this produ

With respect to Chembio's DPP® Leptospirosss, tBioManguinhos had not qualified to request the teabgpltransfer
Bio-Manguinhos made purchases of $135,000 of ttodyct in 2011, and it made -purchases in 2012 and $45,000 in 2(
In order to qualify for the technology transferp-Manguinhos would need to purchase an additionab &&® of this produc

As stated above, Biglanguinhos is not obligated to make any purchagdter the specified level of sales for a partieydaoduct ha
been achieved, FIOCRUZ may request that the teogalor that product be transferred to FIOCRUZ tbge with an exclusi
license to produce and sell that product in a @efiterritory. The license is to provide that Chamill receive a royalty on all sale
Chembio does not release the amount of this roymtiause it could have an adverse effect on ndigoisaconcerning royalties
potential transactions with other parti

All the agreements expire five years after the déditine technology transfer. If terminated earbgrdefault of FIOCRUZ, FIOCRLU
must stop all activity; if terminated earlier byfaelt of Chembio, or if terminated by natural expiFIOCRUZ can continue to prodt
and commercialize the product without paying ragalt

Other OEM And License Agreements Related to DPP® Tahnology

In addition to our agreement with FIOCRUZ, we hawtered into certain other OEM and License agre&meith other parties with respec
certain products that we have developed based nBBB®technology. In 2008 we entered into a product bgraent and license agreem
with Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc. (BiRad), a leading multinational life sciences compdaorthe first ever POC test for the confirmatimiHIV
(reflex test used after initial screening test(sd positive). This product utilizes our DPR@chnology, capitalizing on its multiplexi
advantages, and is much simpler to perform thaneiipcy confirmatory platform, known as westernt bighich requires a substantial amc
of technical training and handst time and which is more expensive to manufacane distribute. This product was CE marked and
launched by Bio-Rad in the second quarter of 2@1Burope under their Geenius® brand; and an FDAngsgion is underway.
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In 2013 we entered into collaboration with Labtasprivate company in Brazil, for the distributioha number of products in Brazil that wo
be cobranded with Labtest and Chembio trademarks. Utideragreement, upon request from Labtest, forckvithere is no requireme
Chembio will sell the appropriate DPP® componeatsabtest for further manufacture and assemblyraziR

Most recently, in February 2014, Chembio enterga antechnology transfer and license agreementRNR Diagnostics SDN BHD ("RVR'
a privatelyheld company in Malaysia. The agreement supportbiio's strategy of establishing a market presandssia, in collaboratio
with RVR as a licensee, distributor, and contraahufacturer. The agreements grant exclusive digtab rights to RVR in certain countries
the region and enable RVR to manufacture ChemB®B® HIV 1/2 Assay and DPP® HI8yphilis Assay and potentially other prodi
developed by Chembio incorporating its patented ® Bfehnology.

Our strategy with respect to our DPP® technology é@olved as the Company has evolved. Initiatjlofving the issuance of our DRP
patent in the United States in 2007, our strategg wecessarily limited to developing third-pdaupded OEM research and developn

contracts and grants. This strategy enabled aerieerve capital resources, while at the sameatqgeiring knowhow and experience with t

platform and developing thirdarty references and implicit endorsements of dohiriology. As our capabilities to develop and nfiacture

DPP®products expanded, and as our financial positianifm@roved, so have our strategic options expaadedmproved. Although we he

employed and may continue to employ the strateggeeking OEM development and manufacturing agretsresha way to participate

markets that we cannot and/or choose not to seitbeGhembiobranded products, we believe that we can also dpwalr own branded line

products, and we plan to do this in the public theatea. We plan to launch this brand with our ®RHV 1/2 Assay in the United Sta

market in 2014, to be followed by the other produstour pipeline in 2015 and beyond.

Our Rapid Test Technologies

All of our commercially available current produemploy either in-licensed lateral flow technologyonir own patented Dual Path Platf@®@m
(DPP®) technology. Both lateral flow technology abiPP® allow the development of accurate, low cestsy-to-perform, singlase
diagnostic tests for rapid, visual detection ofcifie antigenantibody complexes on a test strip. These formpatside a test that is simj
(requires neither electricity nor expensive equiptrer test execution or reading, nor skilled persal for test interpretation), rapid (turnaro
time approximately 15 minutes), safe (minimizesdiag of potentially infected specimens), non-inivas(requires 520 micro liters of whol
blood easily obtained with a finger prick, or aftetively, serum or plasma,), stable (24 monthoairr temperature storage in the case o
HIV tests), and highly reproducible.

We believe that products developed using DR&dnology can provide superior diagnostic perfarceaas compared with products that
lateral flow technology. The reason for this iattbne of the major differences between the twifgias is that in DPP@amples are allow
to incubate with the target analyte in the testezbafore introduction of the labeling reagent/cgaje, whereas in lateral flow, samples
combined with the labeling reagent to form a compdefore coming in contact with the target analytée believe that this complex ¢
compromise test performance. Also, because ofisiage in DPP®f a separately connected sample strip, the coatrdldelivery of samp
material is substantially improved. This featwseciitical in the development of multiplex tests,well as tests that involve viscous sar
material (such as oral fluid) that can be impedéémforced to combine with labeling reagents befoigration on the test strip to the test z
area.

Multiplexing is significantly improved as a resuf the design of DPP@&nd this provides a significant advantage. Fom®ta, the HI\
confirmatory test we developed for BiRad that is described above employs six differeatkers related to various epitopes of the
antigen. We have a number of other products ireldgwment, including those being developed in spatsaevelopment programs, t
involve the use of multiple (e.g. eight) test banslishough all of these products could be visuatad, we can also use handheld and de
readers with our DPP® products to objectively measguantify, record and report DPR@&st results. Certain of the products we havea
are developing incorporate some of these readedtsya are developing other products that may bd ws#h or will require use of a readt
Also, platforms can incorporate labeling reagehtt tannot be visually read except by employingader, such as fluorescence, thoug
products are currently utilizing such reagents.

We are pursuing additional capabilities and techgiels that will complement our current product foid and business strategy. This acti
includes pursing development, license or acquisiibdiagnostic technologies that complement ousting platforms, proprietary biomark
that can result in new product applications of existing platforms, and new platforms that wouldhgdement our commercial strategy.




Target Markets

Rapid HIV Test:

A large percentage of individuals that are HIV figsi worldwide are unaware of their status. Paithe reason for this is that even those
do get tested in public health settings will oftest return or call back for their test results wisamples have to be sent out to a labor.
which can take up to several days to process.ifidieased availability, greater efficacy and reducests for antretroviral treatments (ARV
for HIV has increased the demand for testing, asstiyma associated with the disease is lessendadha ability to resume normal activitie
substantially improved, providing a positive messag those potentially infected. The impact thagdid HIV testing has had on preven
efforts has in turn increased the demand for tgsparticularly by public health programs worldwjaéhich have also become more effectiv
reducing the number of annual new infections in ynénit by no means, all high prevalence regions.

Despite less attention to HIV by the media as caegbavith prior years, there are still approximat®0;000 new diagnoses of HIV infectior
the United States each year, according to the GIIBC estimates that approximately 1.2 million indivals in the U.S. are living with HI
with an estimated 250,000 of these U.S. individuatsmore than 20%, unaware that they are infectets transmissions from these 250,
infected people that are reported to account fé6 B4 all new infections per year. Part of the cgafor this is that even those individuals
do get tested in public health settings will oftest return or call back for their test resultshiéir blood samples have to be sent out tc
tested in a laboratory and then reported backioegss which can take up to several days to compldaking more people aware of their t
status at the point-of-care reduces the numbedéftidnsmissions.

Rapid HIV testing in the United States has now tged into an estimated 7.5 million test markeamiaverage price of $10, or a total of
million. Public health programs, currently fundeg drants distributed to states by the CDC, accéoméan estimated 45% of the market, v
hospitals (40%) and doctor's offices (15%) compgghe other estimated market segments. Cheniaielsl flow rapid HIV tests, the cassi
and barrel, together represent approximately a 8bé&te of this market. Orasure Technologies, mhich was the first FDAapproved rapi
HIV test, has lost nearly half its market shareyrestimated to be approximately 55%. Trinity Badtéhas an estimated 15% market share
Biolytical Laboratories, Medmira and Bio-Rad shtre remaining 5%.

We believe that the US professional HIV rapid tesrket has the potential to increase tol85million tests over the next several years, w
would represent 460% of all HIV tests done today in the United Sddf@r clinical purposes. Assuming an average pocde manufacture
of $8.00 per test, a total potential U.S. marketedirly $120-$145 million is implied.

In 2006, the outlook for HIV testing was given g ioost with the release by the CDC of new recontagons for HIV testing. These n
CDC recommendations were/are that an HIV test shbelgiven as a routine test like any other fopatients between 13 and 64 years of
regardless of risk, with an opt-out screening aptémd focused testing procedural (pre- and pestt-counseling) guidelines. Though
mandatory, gradual adoption in whole or in partlef 2006 CDC recommendations by a number of staianues to have an increas
impact. Finally, in 2013, the United States PréwenServices Task Force ("USPSTF") fully embradkdse CDC routine HIV testil
recommendations. This USPSTF recommendation, wiia given an A grade under their recommendatiauigg system based on
benefits of this practice and the nearly 600,000%¥elated deaths in the United States, requiresirémee coverage under the Afforde
Care Act (the "ACA") as a preventive screening teishout any copayment required. We expect this to result in amease in HIV testing
the United States in the coming years, which wélbelwill include point-ofeare HIV testing utilizing the Company's producédthough a
stated above currently most public health testmghe United States is funded by grants allocatedigh prevalence areas by the CDC
believe this will shift to an insurandanded model under the ACA in the years to comereiasing the amount of testing done in doctorisex
and community health centers.

In the international marketwe sell our products directly and through distrdratto large screening programs overseen by msstif healt
and NGOs, most but not all of which are funded &ngé bi-lateral and multateral AIDS relief programs, the largest of whishthe U.S
President's Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief (PEPFAE}tablished by President George Bush asyaab-$15 billion program in 20C
PEPFAR was reauthorized in 2008 and again in 2002012 PEPFAR directly supported HIV testing @odnseling for more than 11 milli
pregnant women, and testing and counseling for rticae 49 million people overall. The U.S. is alke first and largest donor to the Glic
Fund to Fight AIDS, Tuberculosis and Malaria. Teegahe U.S. has provided more than $7 billiorhe Fund.




In December 2013 President Obama signed into l@WPBPFAR Stewardship and Oversight Act, which ésriost recent reauthorizatior
PEPFAR. However, unlike the 2008 PEPFAR authodmatiwhich authorized approximately $45 billion, thew law doesn't authorize
specific dollar amount for funding. Neverthelessiwidely anticipated that PEPFAR will continueenjoy strong funding; the FY14 bud
has $6 billion for global HIV/AIDS assistance, inding $4 billion for PEPFAR.

Chembio, with its four U.S.-manufactured rapid Hi&sts, three of which are FD@pproved, is recognized as a reputable and depke
supplier of high quality products that are avaiaht reasonably competitive prices. As a resattai of our products have been selected i
testing protocols in countries (national algorithrtizat are large beneficiaries of PEPFAR and theb@l Fund. As mentioned above, tt
programs can and do often result in large ordarsalso can result in periods of relatively lowenthnd, based on the variations assoc
with this kind of demand. Also, even though thetkkh States taxpayer is funding the largest shagdabal AIDS relief, U.S. companies
not receive any preference for these procurements,therefore must compete with foreign supplieeg thanufacture competitive prodt
with lower costs, including those related to qualiegulatory, intellectual property, and costsnafnufacturing.

Oral fluid testing is an established alternativebtood testing for diagnostic tests, including Hi&sts. It is also often patient prefer
providing a more comfortable, less invasive téstcertain public health clinics, staffs choose twhandle blood specimens; thus, oral sa
collection provides a viable alternative. The mwstl-established market for oral fluid HIV testing isthinited States. Given the prem
price required for an oral fluid test as compardthwlood tests, the higher volume programs wilt specify an oral fluid test. Howev
segments of these programs may want to have arlwichtesting option, and certain programs thaténgreater resources may also choo
incorporate oral fluid testing into the testing foeml.

There is also now an over-the-counter market for s#If-testing in the United States. Orasure Technoldgiesreceived FDA approval for
over-the-counter (self-testing) version of its poesly professional-marketpproved (test performed on an individual by a theakhre
professional) HIV test. The FDA approval was geahin July 2012, and Orasure has been investinglizéa developing this market. Initi
results after over a year of marketing are wellobekexpectations. The costs for such overdbenter approval, including primarily 1
associated clinical trials, are estimated to beeast $5 million and they may take two to threergea complete, not to mention the cos
distribution. Orasure's initial results are nohwiocing of a large market, although this posdipitlemains. In any case, Orasure is likel
spend heavily othis for some time, and if it appears that therensattractive market, we believe we are very wetflitioned versus any otl
competitors.

Rapid Syphilis Tes

Recent data indicate that approximately 70,000;000 new cases of syphilis are occurring anpualthe U.S. Syphilis can be treated v
antibiotics, but if untreated, it can cause pelaftammatory disease, infertility, ectopic pregngrand can infect newborns. Treatment ca
be provided without a confirmed diagnosis of arnivactase of syphilis. Current testing algorithmsthe United States require two differ
laboratory tests (called ndreponemal and treponemal), as neither test alasghe required specificity to rule out certainestbonditions (i.e
other infection or past infection), but in combibatthey can provide reasonably reliable resuli®wever each requires trained personn
laboratory settings and can take several dayscwve results, in order to confirm an active, poegly untreated case.

Development of the POC market for syphilis testimgxpected to be comparable to the developmettieoPOC market for HIV testing,
there is a significant public health value to beatge to provide results at the pointezfre. There are several ways to assess the 1
opportunity for this unique rapid test, although believe the U.S. rapid test market opportunity nexgeed 8 million tests, which
approximately 20% of the total number of syphiéists performed in the United States for clinica toslay.

Rapid HI\+Syphilis Test

There are significant risks relating to transmissad Syphilis from a pregnant mother to child, jast there are for transmission of H
Therefore we believe there is a significant oppatiuto improve prevention efforts in pregnant netho child transmission testing progre
(PMTCT) that are currently not doing any or neahough testing for syphilis even though they aséirtg for HIV. In the United States,
believe there is also a significant need for thedpict in some of the highest HIV prevalence pojpute, such as among men that have sex
men (MSM), as data show high degrees of HIV anch#ligpeco-infection in this segment of the populatio
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Marketing Strategy

Our marketing strategy is to:

Depending on our decision based on Alere's intrbdnof a PCP

o

If we remain status quo: Support, review and a&stwes marketing and distribution efforts of ouridapllV tests by Alere i
the U.S., as well as our distributors worldwideqd ém engage in sales and marketing activitiesallatv us to engage with ¢
target markets and customers. Alere, which isaality marketer of point-afare diagnostic products, has significa
expanded its distribution footprint and producttfmio since we signed our agreement with them, altldough we belie\
that this will enhance opportunities for Alere taniket our rapid HIV tests, our product line is ayemall one for ther
notwithstanding the strong growth they have enjoy@t respect to our products. In this case weld:owt have to bear t
expense of establishing our own sales and marketiggnization and we would continue to share atantial portion of th
net sales proceeds of the products with Alere abave been. However, since Alere now has their prduct to sell, the
are likely to have a greater financial incentivestdl that product depending upon the market aecegt of that product a
other factors. Therefore this could have a matend adverse effect on the sales Alere makesrgbmducts

If we decide to make certain elections availablagmow such as to assume direct sales by Chembigr €hembio brands
the lateral flow products that we developed and #w manufacture but have been and continue to d&eted by Aler
under their brands, then we will need to estabdistommercial organization that is capable of assgrtie distribution ¢
these products. In this case Chembio would not bawhare any portion of the net sales proceeds Alitre, except for tt
8.5% lateral flow royalties applicable to the satéshe products, which royalty is only applicahietil February 2015

which time the applicable lateral flow patent ofefd's expires. This will immediately result in éy gross margins thar
we continue with the status quo . However thisiglex will involve our incurring expenditures retat to hiring sale
representatives, establishing agreements and assicidiscounts with distributors, incurring adweny and marketir
expenditures, warehousing, customer service arfthiesd support. If Alere's new product is indeedcassful, our ability 1
retain a significant share of the market that reenbestablished for our products may be enhancediblgaving control of tt
marketing of our products, rather than having Ales# our products. We have been developing coating plans so that\
can activate this strategy in a timely manner,udiig the possibility of ultimately utilizing theme sales force that we wo
use for U.S. Sales of DI® HIV 1/2 Assay.

Leverage our DPP@ntellectual property and product development andnufacturing experience to continue creating
collaborations where Chembio can be the exclusiezeldpment and manufacturing partner supportingdihga marketini
organizations

Establish strong distribution relationships émr Chembidsranded products in the U.S and abroad, and esttablidirect sales a
marketing organization that is focused in the publkalth market segment, and that utilizes distoitsufor other market segmet
primarily the acute care market which, togethethwgtblic health, are the main market segmentsdpidrHIV tests in the Unite
States. We believe that creation of a Chembio ipuidalth brand and marketing organization is funelatal to the creation
shareholder value over the long te

During 2013 we increased our commercial activitiad efforts in Africa and Europe for our HIV tebtg establishing a sales representati
each of these markets. We believe the sales mpadve in Africa will enable us to be more clgsehgaged with opportunities to particif
in the national testing algorithms that are essilglil and revised from time to time by countries #na beneficiaries of PEPFAR, Global F
and/or other bilateral or multilateral donor funglinin Europe, where there are a larger percentéd#lV positive people unaware of th
status than in the United States, we believe thatetis an emerging public health outreach oppiytuand there are relatively few strc
competitors that are CE marked. Most recently arxehestablished new sales and marketing positiotiteei Company to support our effort:
increase brand awareness globally and to leadicestdales effort in the U.S. market.

Competition

The diagnostics industry is a multifion dollar international industry and is interhg competitive. Many of our competitors are sahslly
larger and have greater financial, research, matwiag and marketing resources.

Industry competition in general is based on thio¥ahg:

Scientific and technological capabilit

Proprietary knov-how;

The ability to develop and market products and @sses
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The ability to obtain FDA or other required regolgtapprovals

The ability to manufacture products that meet aaplie FDA requirements, (i.e. FDA's Quality Systdétegulations) (se
Governmental Regulation sectiol

The ability to manufacture products c-effectively;
Access to adequate capit

The ability to attract and retain qualified perselnand
The availability of patent protectio

We believe our scientific and technological capted and our proprietary know-how relating to aslicensed lateral flow technology raj
tests and to our proprietary know-how related togaiented dual path platform@®chnology, particularly for the development anchafacture
of tests for the detection of antibodies to infeet diseases such as HIV, are very strong.

Our ability to develop and market other productsnisiarge measure dependent on our having addltiomsources and/or collaborat
relationships. Some of our product developmentreffhave been funded on a project or milestonés.b&¥e believe that our proprieti
know-how in lateral flow technology and in our DuBbath Platform® (DPP®}echnology has been instrumental in our obtainine
collaborations we have and that we continue toumirdVe believe that the patent protection thathaee with our Dual Path Platfofin
(DPP®) enhances our ability to develop more profitabldatmirative relationships and to license out thétetogy. However there are
number of competitive technologies used and/oriegak be used in point-afare settings. These technologies may be basadmnnoasse
principles such as the Company's products or déufmologies such as molecular-based technologies.

We plan to introduce our FDA-approved DPBfl fluid HIV test, which test also can be usethwilood samples, in the U.S. market unc
Chembio brand. Until it is CLIAvaived, this product will serve a very small markegment. Orasure Technologies manufactures thy
other oral fluid HIV test that is FD&pproved, and Orasure has enjoyed this positioagproximately 10 years. Orasure has lost a sagmi
share of this market as certain customers have ipeffiferent to using blood or oral fluid sampldsgcause the blood tests, including tt
made by Chembio and marketed by Alere, are prioeei and/or are as or more accurate than the peafuze of Orasure's product on bl
samples. Orasure has primarily retained thoseomests for whom the oral fluid sample feature idrargy preference, and this is an estim
$35 million business for Orasure. Although we é&et we can capture a meaningful portion of thissGmra market share, we also anticipate
Orasure will defend this business aggressively.

In 2006 Alere acquired a division from Abbott Diagtic located in Japan that manufactured and medketrapid HIV test product line cal
Determine®. The Determine®rmat is was developed for developing world anghate settings and,central to the needs of that ebathe
format is essentially a test strip that is integdatinto a thin foil wrapper that, when opened, tineerside of the wrapper serves as the
surface for applying the blood sample and perfogntire test. This design reduces costs and shippéights and volumes and is an advan
for the developing world markets it has servedm8wf the disadvantages of the platform are theuamof blood sample that is needed
microliters versus 2.5, 5 and 10 for our lateralflbarrel, lateral flow cassette, and DPP@®ducts respectively), the open nature of tht
surface, and the absence of a true control thigrdiftiates biological from other kinds of samples.

The so-called "3'generation" version of this product has been matkéir many years and is the leading rapid HIV teat is used in a lar
majority of the national algorithms of countriesfied by PEPFAR and the Global Fund, as well as naéimgr countries in the world. TI
product is not FDA-approved though it is CE markEde newest Determine®IV version, which was developed and manufacturtedllere's
subsidiary in Israel, Orgenics, is the so-called™@eneration" version Determine®@st. According to its claims, this product deteety
antibodies and P24 HIV antigens. Since the P24antis known to occur in HIpositive individuals' blood samples before antilesddc
based on its performance claims, thégeneration Determine®st is therefore able to detect HIV infectiomliea than tests that solely re
on antibody detection. Chembio's tests, as welbkh®f the other currently FD&pproved rapid HIV tests, only detect antibodigbere ar
however laboratory tests that are FDA-approvetiaha"4thgeneration” tests, but they are of conesther rapid nor point-of-care.

The initial "4 generation" Alere Determine®pid test product that was also CE marked andAlet launched internationally some ye
ago has not been successfully commercialized tdo#st of our knowledge and at least certain phbtisstudies were not favorable for
product. However the #generation product that is now FDabproved was apparently modified as compared tinttial international versic
of it, and it may perform more satisfactorily. Adereceived FDA approval of this modified produtttiugust 2013 and Alere is seeking CLIA-
waiver for it. Alere is also aggressively pursuteyelopment of the market for this product in dptiion of receiving CLIA waiver. Althou¢
the product can now be sold to moderate compledtyified laboratories, there is very limited suppf the product thus far, and there is
assessment thus far concerning the actual perfaenainthis product in the hands of customers. Wiewxe the price that Alere is charging
this product is substantially higher than our amd competitors' antibody tests, as the antigemrclavails some customers of an additi
reimbursement code. Moreover there is support byraber of key opinion leaders for the public hHeatilue of such 4th generation tests,
if Alere is able to successfully launch this proglitcrepresents a significant competitive threaChembio as well as to each of the other |
HIV test manufacturers (Orasure and Trinity prifyari
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During 2011 Biolytical, Inc. of Vancouver, Canadzeived FDA approval and in 2012 received CLIA veaigf a flowthrough rapid HIV te:
called "INSTI". The technology used in the INS&st, flowthrough, is older than lateral flow, and it reqaifeandling of multiple compone
(3 vials of solution) to perform the test in mulésteps. However, these steps can be accomplisiess than ten minutes, and the actua
results occur in only one minute after those stepes completed. Therefore samplerésult time is shorter than any of the compet
products. The product also has good performanaens| There are settings where that reduced testltime, despite the multiple st
required, may be a distinct advantage, and we\mekgolytical has made some progress in penetraimtain public health markets.

Although we have no specific knowledge of any ottmmpetitors' products that are a competitive thi@a@ur products, or that will render «
products obsolete, if we fail to maintain and erdeapur competitive position or fail to introducewng@roducts and product features,
customers may decide to use the products develmpedr competitors, which could result in a lossexfenues and cash flow.

Research and Development

During 2013 and 2012, $5.8 million and $4.5 milliorespectively, were spent on research and develnpriincluding regulato
activities). These expenses were in part undeemrivy funding from R&D and milestones revenue$a0 million in 2013 and $1.3 million
2012. All of our new product development actistimvolve employment of our Dual Path Platform® {® technology. These activiti
include completing development of certain prodaetd making significant progress toward the develapmof additional products.

Employees

At December 31, 2013, we employed 206 people.heie entered into employment contracts with ousiBeat, Lawrence Siebert, our Ct
Operating Officer Sharon Klugewicz and our SeniaceVPresident of Research and Development, Javéandiari. Due to the speci
knowledge and experience of these executives reampttle industry, technology and market, the losshe services of either one of th
would likely have a material adverse effect on@unpany. The contract with Ms. Klugewicz, hasrat of two years ending May 2015. ~
contract with Mr. Esfandiari has a term of threangeending March 2016. We have obtained a key imgrance policy for Mr. Esfandia
The contract with Mr. Siebert provides that Mr. &g will serve as the Chief Executive Officer @mésident of the Company through May
2014, and Mr. Siebert has advised the Company hhaintends to retire from the Company on or befivat date. Upon Mr. Siebe
announcement in 2013, of his retirement plansCiiapany began a search for a new CEO.

Governmental Regulation

The manufacturing and marketing of the Companyistiag and proposed diagnostic products are reégdlay the United States Food
Drug Administration ("FDA"), United States Departmieof Agriculture ("USDA"), certain state and locabencies, and/or compare
regulatory bodies in other countries. These rdguia govern almost all aspects of developmentjyetion and marketing, including prod
testing, authorizations to market, labeling, praomtmanufacturing and record keeping. The ComjsaRpA and USDA regulated produ
require some form of action by each agency befoeg tan be marketed in the United States, and, afteroval or clearance, the Comp
must continue to comply with other FDA requiremespplicable to marketed products, e.g. Quality @yst (for medical devices). Failure
comply with the FDA's requirements can lead to i§icent penalties, both before and after approvailearance.

There are two review procedures by which medicalods can receive FDA clearance or approval. Sproducts may qualify for clearar
under Section 510(k) of the Federal Food, Drug@osmetic Act, in which the manufacturer providggemarket notification that it intends
begin marketing the product, and shows that thdymbis substantially equivalent to another legailgrketed product (i.e., that it has the s
intended use and is as safe and effective as Bylegarketed device and does not raise differemstjons of safety and effectiveness). Ins
cases, the submission must include data from huiiainal studies. Marketing may commence whenRB& issues a clearance letter find
such substantial equivalence. FDA clearance oD&fP® Syphilis Screen & Confirm test will be by meaf a 510(k) submission.

If the medical device does not qualify for the )Qfrocedure (either because it is not substapteduivalent to a legally marketed devici

because it is required by statute and the FDA'dempnting regulations have an approved applicatitneg) FDA must approve a Pkéarketing

Application ("PMA") before marketing can begin. RM must demonstrate, among other matters, thantidical device provides a reason

assurance of safety and effectiveness. A PMA agiidin is typically a complex submission, includithg results of nortinical and clinice

studies. Preparing a PMA application is a muchar@pensive, detailed and time-consuming procesempared with a 510(K) pnearke

notification. The Company has approved PMAs fer tivo rapid HIV tests now marketed by Alere MediaslClearview® Complete HIV 2-
and Clearview® HIV 1-2 STAT PAK®.
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FDA approval of our DPP®1IV screening assay for use with oral fluid or ilogamples was achieved by means of a PMA applicafltne
Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act of 1988 ("CLIA'prohibits laboratories from performing witro tests for the purpose of provid
information for the diagnosis, prevention or treatof any disease or impairment of, or the assessof, the health of human beings un
there is in effect for such laboratories a cenificissued by the United States Department of Heald Human Services (via the FI
applicable to the category of examination or pracedperformed. Although a certificate is not reqdifor the Company, it considers

applicability of the requirements of CLIA in thegign and development of its products. The stayutiefinition of "laboratory” is very broa
and many of our customers are considered labsLIA @aiver will remove certain quality control arather requirements that must be me
certain customers to use the Company's productstlaindis critical to the marketability of a produictto the point-ofeare diagnostic
market. The Company has received a CLIA waiverdach of the two rapid HIV tests now marketed bgralMedical as Clearvie®y
Complete HIV 1/2 and Clearview® HIV 1/2 STAT PAK&he CLIA waiver was granted by the FDA for HIV 13T AT-PAK® on Novembe
20, 2006 and for the Clearview®omplete HIV 1/2 on October 22, 2007. In 2008 F¥A revised its CLIA waiver requirements so tha
additional prospective trial need be conductedrifento demonstrate accuracy of the device whed hgaintrained users.

In addition, the FDA regulates the export of mebivices that have not been approved for marketirige United States. The Federal Fi
Drug and Cosmetic Act contain general requireménmtsany medical device that may not be sold in theted States and is intended
export. Specifically, a medical device intended daport is not deemed to be adulterated or mistedrif the product: (1) complies with -
specifications of the foreign purchaser; (2) is motonflict with the laws of the country to whidghis intended for export; (3) is prominer
labeled on the outside of the shipping packageitlimintended for export; and (4) is not soldoffiered for sale in the United States. Howe
the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act does pefraiexport of devices to any country in the woilldhe device complies with the laws
the importing country and has valid marketing atttagion in one of several "listed" countries unttex theory that these listed countries |
sophisticated mechanisms for the review of mediealces for safety and effectiveness.

The Company is also subject to regulations in fpreiountries governing products, human clinicalsrand marketing, and may need to ol
approval or evaluations by international publicltreagencies, such as the World Health Organizaiirder to sell diagnostic products
certain countries. Approval processes vary fromnéy to country, and the length of time required &pproval or to obtain other clearar
may in some cases be longer than that requiretifiited States governmental approvals. On the dthad, the fact that our HIV diagno:
tests are of value in the AIDS epidemic may leadaime government process being expedited. Thatext@otentially adverse governmel
regulation affecting Chembio that might arise friuture legislative or administrative action canhetpredicted.

Environmental Laws

To date, we have not encountered any costs rgladinompliance with any environmental laws.

Intellectual Property
Intellectual Property Strateg

Our intellectual property strategy is to: (1) budur own intellectual property portfolio aroundrdual Path Platform@echnology; (2) purst
licenses, trade secrets and know-how within tha afeapid point-ofeare testing, and (3) develop and acquire propyigtasitions to reager
and new hardware platforms for the developmentraadufacture of rapid diagnostic tests.

The Company has obtained patent coverage on the®De€¢hnology, including four U.S. patents, and paéntChina, Malaysia, Euras
Mexico, Singapore, Japan, Australia, Indonesia.edand the U.K. Additional patent applicationstloe DPP®technology are pending in 1
U.S., as well as in many foreign countries sucBi@zil, Canada, the European Union, India, Israet| South Africa. Patents have also |
filed on extensions to the DPP® product line consegeh as 4th generation assays. The four U.8nisahre as follows:

U.S. Patent No Issued Expires Nature Type Description
7,189,522 3/13/2007 3/11/2025 test device tyatili a test device for
determining the
presence
of a ligand in a samp
7,682,801 3/23/2010 3/11/2025 test device utility a test device and a
and method method for
determining

the presence of a
ligand in a sampl

7,879,597 2/1/2011 3/11/2025 test device wtilit a test device for
determining multiple
ligands in a sampl

8,507,259 8/13/2013 3/11/2025 test device tyatili a test device for
determining the
presence of a ligand
a sample

The Company also licenses a group of lateral fleghhology patents from Alere. Our lateral flow giwots, which are primarily our STAT-
PAK®, SURE CHECK®, and DIPSTICK®roduct lines, may incorporate methods that aremeld under one of the patents licensed -
Alere that we use in our tests. That U.S. Patém85,982 is also referred to as the Charlton paterich patent expires on February 3, 2C
This patent describes a test device and methaoal ¢ofored particle immunoassay that determinepiégence of an analyte in a sample
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The Company has also filed for patents and obtasoatk patents in the U.S. for other inventions sschis multiple host species veterinary
test, and patent applications for the other inwerg#tiare in various stages from being recently fdad not yet examined, to already exam
and allowed but not yet issued. The Company seddgtand strategically foreign files its patentpipations based on a number of econc
and strategic factors related to the invention.

Trademarks

The Company has filed and obtained trademarkst$éoproducts including DPP®, SURE CHECK® and STAAK® and also for thi
SampleTainer® used in certain DPP® products. TRE® trademark is also registered under the Europeavention (ECT).

Trade Secrets and Know-How

We believe that we have developed a substantidy bbb trade secrets and kndvew relating to the development and manufacturkatefa
flow and DPP®based diagnostic tests, including but not limitedthe sourcing and optimization of materials focksuests, and how
maximize sensitivity, speed-to-result, specificéyability and reproducibility. The Company posassproprietary knoweow to develop tes
for multiple conditions using colored latex. Owffer formulations enable extremely long shelf §vef our rapid HIV and other tests and
believe that this provides us with an important petitive advantage.

Lateral Flow Technology and Reagent Licenses

As part of the agreements executed in 2006 witlreAfer the marketing of our HIV tests, we were geahnonexclusive licenses to certi
lateral flow patents for certain products manufeetuand marketed by Chembio including but not kahito our lateral flow HIV tests. Ti
license allows us to produce, market and sell assaing lateral flow technologies specifically unding our STAT-PAK®, SURE CHECK®
DIPSTICK®, and veterinary product lines. Under this licengeeament, we pay royalties to Alere ranging from ta%8%2%, depending up
the country in which the products are sold. Evewugh the relevant patent has expired in most gthrésdictions, or were never issuec
markets where we have sold these products, our faetuve of the products in the United States hgsired that we pay royalties under
license, which has been a substantial expens2018 our lateral flow royalty expense to Alere 822,000, and since 2007 we have inctL
a total of $2.65 million in lateral flow royalty penses. As of February 3, 2015 this royalty expemti no longer be payable as the applic
patent expires at that time. The license we hewa Alere to their lateral flow patents will expatadinclude the barrel and cassette produc
the United States, if we elect to sell those presluader Chembio brands prior to the expiratiothefapplicable patent; that is until Februar
2015.

Although we believe our DPP® outside of the scope of all lateral flow pateotsvhich we are aware, we consult with patent celjnan:
seek licenses and/or redesigns of products thdielveve to be in the best interests of the Comgard/our stockholders. Because of the «
and other negative consequences of tamesuming patent litigation, we often attempt tdaib a license on reasonable terms. Neverth
there is no assurance that the Alere lateral flatemqts we have licensed will not be challengedhat dther patents containing claims releva
the Company's lateral flow or DPR®oducts will not be granted to third parties amat ficenses to such patents, will be availablesasonabl
terms, if any. In the past Alere has aggressiegiforced its lateral flow intellectual propertytrelugh some of the main patents will ex
within the next couple of years and we are not avadrany patent enforcement litigation that is dngawith respect to the Alere lateral fl:
intellectual property.

Regardless, the DPPt®chnology provides us with our own intellectuabgerty. We believe it provides us with a freedanoperate, and tr
it also enables tests to be developed with impreertsitivity as compared with comparable testsateral flow platforms. The Company |
signed and anticipates signing new developmengept®jbased upon the DPR&hnology that will provide new manufacturing andrketing
opportunities. We have filed other patent appiie that we believe will strengthen the DPRiellectual property and have also filed
patent protection for certain other point-of-caehinologies or applications thereof.

The peptides used in our rapid HIV tests were pgatehy Adaltis Inc. and were licensed to us und&®-gear norexclusive license agreem
dated August 30, 2002. However, in connection wittaltis' bankruptcy, during the third quarter @02 we bought out all of our remain
obligations under that agreement. We also hawndied the antigens used in other tests includimgSgphilis, Tuberculosis, Leptospiro:
Leishmaniasis and Chagas tests, and we may erlier btense agreements. In prior years we condud®nse agreements relatec
intellectual property rights owned by the Unitedt8$ associated with HIV- 1, and during the finsarger of 2008 we entered into a didense
agreement for HIV-2 with Bio-Rad Laboratories N.the exclusive licensee of the Pasteur Institii&s2 intellectual property estate.
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Corporate History

On May 5, 2004, we completed a merger with Traddodutions, Inc. through which Chembio Diagnosticstens Inc. became our wholly-
owned subsidiary, and through which the manageraendt business of Chembio Diagnostic Systems Incarbecour management ¢
business. As part of this transaction, we chamggdame to Chembio Diagnostics, Inc.

Since the formation of Chembio Diagnostic Systents in 1985, it has been involved in developingnafacturing, selling and distributing in-
vitro diagnostic tests, including rapid tests begig in 1995, for a number of conditions in humand animals.

On March 12, 2004, we implemented a 1-for-17 reveit of our common stock. All references irsthiorm 10K to shares of our comm
stock have been adjusted to reflect this reverbe sp

In February 2010, Crestview Capital Master, L.L{Crestview Master"), a Delaware limited liabiligpmpany that held 18,907,431 share
Chembio's common stock, spun off all these sharesstituting approximately 30.5% of Chembio's autgling shares, to its three eq
holders. One of the three equity holders of CieatvMaster immediately spun off, to its approxinhaté26 equity holders, all of tl
12,990,569 shares of Chembio stock that it receiwekdis distribution. As a result, as of Februaddy 2010, Crestview Master no longer ow
any shares. The former direct and indirect eduitigers of Crestview Master owned all these shavite,none of these individual stockhold
having beneficial ownership of more than 5.61%hef dutstanding common stock of Chembio.

On May 30, 2012, the Company effected a 18aeverse split of its common stock. This was dtnallow the Company to move to
NASDAQ trading market from the OTCQB market, whimtcurred on June 7, 2012. As a result of the sspdik, the outstanding 63,967,z
common shares were reduced to 7,995,918 outstarmtinmgnon shares on May 30, 2012. The effect ofrdwerse stock split has be
retroactively reflected for all periods in thesesfncial statement.
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Glossary

AIDS

Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome. AIDS is caubgdhe Human Immunodeficiency Virus, HI

ALGORITHM (parallel orFor rapid HIV testing this refers both to methodpootocol (in developing countries to date) forngsrapid tes!

serial)

ANTIBODY

ANTIGEN
ANVISA

ARVs
CDC
CLIA waiver

DIAGNOSTIC

EITF
FASB
FIOCRUZ
FDA
FDIC

FAS

IgG

NGO

oTC

PEPFAR

PMA
PROTOCOL
REAGENT
RETROVIRUS
SAB
SENSITIVITY
SPECIFICITY

USDA
WHO

from different manufacturers in combination to scr&and confirm patients at the pointazfre, and may also refel
the specific tests that have been selected by ancggor ministry of health to be used in this way paralle
algorithm uses two screening tests from differeahuafacturers and a tlereaker test only if there is a discrepe
between the screening tests results. A serial idgoronly uses a second confirmatory test if tHer@ positive rest
from the screening test, meaning that the numbesoafirmatory tests used is equal to the positivage in th
testing venue. A t-breaker test resolves discrepancies between thersand the confirmatory te

A protein which is a natural part of the human inmawsystem produced by specialized cells to nemérantigen:
including viruses and bacteria that invade the bddgch antibody producing cell manufactures a wmigntibod
that is directed against, binds to and eliminatess and only one, specific type of antig

Any substance which, upon entering the body, stitesl the immune system leading to the formatioantibodies
Among the more common antigens are bacteria, pltexins, and viruse

Anti-Retroviral Treatments for AID

The National Health Surveillance Agency of Br:

Anti-retroviral medications developed to fight All

United States Centers for Disease Control and Rtire

Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act signation that allows simple tests to be perforimedoint-of-care setting
such as doctor's offices, w-in clinics and emergency roon

Pertaining to the determination of the nature arsesof a disease or condition. Also refers toeatgyor procedur
used in diagnosis to measure proteins in a clirsaaiple

Emerging Issues Task For

Financial Accounting Standards Boz

The Oswaldo Cruz Foundation of Bra

United States Food and Drug Administrat

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporat

Financial Accounting Standa

IgG or Immunoglobulin are proteins found in huméookl. This protein is called an "antibody" and msiaportan
part of the body's defense against disease. Wheehdtly is attacked by harmful bacteria or virusegibodies hel
fight these invader:

Non-Governmental Organizatic

Over-the-Counter

The President's Emergency Plan for AIDS Re

Pre-Marketing Approval FDA approval classification for a medical devicattis not substantially equivalent t
legally marketed device or is otherwise requiredstatute to have an approved application. RapM tdbts mus
have an approved PMA application before marketinguch a product can beg

A procedure pursuant to which an immunodiagnosst is performed on a particular specimen in ord@btain th
desired reactior

A chemical added to a sample under investigatioorifer to cause a chemical or biological reactidnctv will
enable measurement or identification of a targbstance

A type of virus which contains the enzyme Reversan$criptase and is capable of transforming intecils tc
produce diseases in the host such as A

Staff Accounting Bulletir

Refers to the ability of an assay to detect andsoreasmall quantities of a substance of interelse greater tr
sensitivity, the smaller the quantity of the subs&of interest the assay can detect. Also reéfetise likelihood c
detecting the antigen when prese

The ability of an assay to distinguish between lsinmaterials. The greater the specificity, thiédyean assay is
identifying a substance in the presence of substatsimilar makeuy

U.S Department of Agricultur

World Health Organizatio
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider each of the followiiss factors and all of the other information prded in this Annual Report. We currel
believe that the risks described below may matgrafect us. An investment in our Common Stoeklves a high degree of risk, and shc
be considered only by persons who can afford the ¢ their entire investment.

Risks related to our industry, business and strategy

Because we may not be able to obtain or maintain ¢hnecessary regulatory approvals for some of our pducts, we may not genera
revenues in the amounts we expect, or in the amountecessary to continue our business. Our existingroducts as well as ou
manufacturing facility must meet quality standards and are subject to inspection by a number of domest regulatory and other
governmental and non-governmental agencies.

All of our proposed and existing products are stibje regulation in the U.S. by the U.S. Food amdd>Administration, the U.S. Departm
of Agriculture and/or other domestic and internadib governmental, public health agencies, reguatoodies or norgovernment:
organizations. In particular, we are subject tacstgovernmental controls on the development, rfecture, labeling, distribution a
marketing of our products. The process of obtainmaquired approvals or clearances varies accotdirige nature of, and uses for, a spe
product. These processes can involve lengthy aailed laboratory testing, human or animal clihicels, sampling activities, and otl
costly, timeeonsuming procedures. The submission of an apiglitto a regulatory authority does not guarante¢ the authority will grant :
approval or clearance for that product. Each aitthmay impose its own requirements and can delasefuse to grant approval or cleara
even though a product has been approved in ancteitry.

The time taken to obtain approval or clearanceegadiepending on the nature of the application aag masult in the passage of a signific
period of time from the date of submission of tipplacation. Delays in the approval or clearancecpsses increase the risk that we will
succeed in introducing or selling the subject patsiuand we may determine to devote our resouccdgferent products.

Changes in government regulations could increaseasts and could require us to undergo addititmials or procedures, or could mak
impractical or impossible for us to market our proid for certain uses, in certain markets, orlat al

Changes in government regulations may adverselctffur financial condition and results of openagidbecause we may have to ir
additional expenses if we are required to changeplement new testing, manufacturing and controtpdures. If we are required to de
resources to develop such new procedures, we miaiave sufficient resources to devote to reseanthdevelopment, marketing, or ot
activities that are critical to our business.

We can manufacture and sell our products only itaply with regulations and quality standardsldished by government agencies suc
the FDA and the USDA as well as by ngovernmental organizations such as the ISO and WW®@.have implemented a quality system
is intended to comply with applicable regulationslthough FDA approval is not required for the expof our products, there are exf
regulations promulgated by the FDA that specificallate to the export of our products that requioepliance with FDA quality syste
regulation (QSRs) and that also require meetingacedocumentary requirements regarding the approfvéhe product in export marke!
Although we believe that we meet the regulatorpasads required for the export of our productss¢heegulations could change in a ma
that could adversely impact our ability to expart products.

Our products may not be able to compete with new dgnostic products or existing products developed byell-established competitors
which would negatively affect our business.

The diagnostic industry is focused on the testifibiological specimens in a laboratory or at thénpof-care and is highly competitive ¢
rapidly changing. Our principal competitors ofteswve considerably greater financial, technical aradketing resources than we do. Se\
companies produce diagnostic tests that competethirwith our testing product line, including buit limited to, Orasure Technologies, Al
and Trinity Biotech. Furthermore these and/or pttempanies have or may have products incorporatiotecular and/or other advan:
technologies that over time could directly competth our testing product line. As new products inmwating new technologies enter
market, our products may become obsolete or a ctitmpe products may be more effective or moredffely marketed and sold than ours.

Alere's planned introduction of a competing productin the U.S., as well as other competitors, couldgmificantly reduce our U.S. sales.

We have granted Alere exclusive rights to marketQIURE CHECK® HIV 1/2 in the United States and rexclusive rights in the rest of 1
world and exclusive rights to market our HIV 1/2/8ITPAK® in the U.S. only. However Alere now has a "Permit@ompeting Produc
which, if it becomes CLIA waived and successfuythched, will be a significant competitive thre®dthile we have the option to terminate
Cassette Agreement and to convert Alere's rightteuthe Barrel Agreement to becoming rexclusive, there are costs, risks and uncerta
associated with our doing this, particularly beeau® have not had a commercial organization inlt& market. If we were to assume
marketing of these products, we would retain thatipn of the selling price of these products thbkdre is now receiving, and we would hay
potentially significant base of customers in theitbth States that are familiar with our productgh@ligh under Alere's trade names)
that could be introduced to Chembio and potentiaiadditional products to be marketed to them hgrGbio. However, in that case we
incur costs not previously incurred related togesamarketing, distribution, and customer/techngegiport, and these costs are likely ti
substantial. In addition, we would face the risétta significant portion of these customers wawdtlopen accounts with us and would ins
purchase competing products from Alere or otheretitors.
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In 2006 Alere acquired a division from Abbott Diagtic located in Japan that manufactured and megketrapid HIV test product line cal
Determine®. The Determine®rmat is was developed for developing world anmhate settings and, central to the needs of thakehathe
format is essentially a test strip that is integdatinto a thin foil wrapper that, when opened, tinelerside of the wrapper serves as the
surface for applying the blood sample and perfognire test. This design reduces costs and shippéights and volumes and is an advan
for the developing world markets it has servedm8&mf the disadvantages of the platform are theuanof blood sample that is needed
microliters versus 2.5, 5 and 10 for our lateraiMlbarrel, lateral flow cassette, and DPp®ducts respectively), the open nature of tht
surface, and the absence of a true control thigrdiitiates biological from other kinds of samples.

The so-called "3'generation” version of this product has been matkétr many years and is the leading rapid HIV teat is used in a lar
majority of the national algorithms of countrienfied by PEPFAR and the Global Fund, as well as nadimgr countries in the world. TI
product is not FDA-approved though it is CE markEde newest Determine®IV version, which was developed and manufacturtetliare'
subsidiary in Israel, Orgenics, is the so-called"@eneration" version Determine®@st. According to its claims, this product deteidty
antibodies and P24 HIV antigens. Since the P24antis known to occur in HIpositive individuals' blood samples before antilesdilo
based on its performance claims, tHegéneration Determine®st is therefore able to detect HIV infectionlieathan tests that solely rely
antibody detection. Chembio's tests, as well aofathe other currently FDA&pproved rapid HIV tests, only detect antibodighere ar
however laboratory tests that are FDA-approveddhat'4th generation” tests, but they are of conesther rapid nor point-of-care.

The initial "4™ generation" Alere Determine®pid test product that was also CE marked andAlat launched internationally some ye
ago has not been successfully commercialized td#s¢ of our knowledge and at least certain phobtisstudies were not favorable for
product. However the igeneration product that is now FDaoproved was apparently modified as compared tinttial international versic
of it, and it may perform more satisfactorily. Adaeceived FDA approval of this modified produt®iugust 2013 and is seeking CLiAaivel
for it. Alere is also aggressively pursuing devetgmt of the market for this product in anticipatioinreceiving CLIA waiver. Although t
product can now be sold to moderate complexityifasltlaboratories, there is very limited supply tbe product thus far, and there is
assessment thus far concerning the actual perfa@nafithis product in the hands of customers. Wievee the price that Alere is charging
this product is substantially higher than our amd competitors' antibody tests, as the antigemrclavails some customers of an additi
reimbursement code. Moreover there is support byraber of key opinion leaders for the public Healilue of such 4th generation tests,
if Alere is able to successfully launch this proglitcrepresents a significant competitive threaChembio as well as to each of the other |
HIV test manufacturers (Orasure and Trinity prifyari

During 2011 Biolytical, Inc. of Vancouver, Canadeeived FDA approval and in 2012 received CLIA weaiuf a flowthrough rapid HIV te:
called "INSTI". The technology used in the INS@&st, flowthrough, is older than lateral flow, and it regsifendling of multiple compone!
(3 vials of solution) to perform the test in mulésteps. However, these steps can be accomplisiess than ten minutes, and the actua
results occur in only one minute after those stepes completed. Therefore samplerésult time is shorter than any of the compet
products. The product also has good performanaiensl There are settings where that reduced testltime, despite the multiple st
required, may be a distinct advantage, and we\meBgolytical has made some progress in penetratmtain public health markets.

Therefore, even though our lateral flow productsently enjoy a substantial market share in the. Wafid HIV test market of approximat
30%, and we have an additional rapid HIV test, BRP®HIV 1/2 Assay, there a number of risks and unceti@s concerning current @
anticipated developments in this markédthough we have no specific knowledge of any othew product that is a significant competi
threat to our product, or that will render our prots obsolete, if we fail to maintain and enhange ammpetitive position or fail to introdu
new products and product features, our customessdaaide to use products developed by our compstitehich could result in a loss
revenues and cash flow.

More generally, the point-of-care diagnostics irtdus undergoing rapid technological changes, \rigiguent introductions of new technology-
driven products and services. As new technololggzome introduced into the point-odire diagnostic testing market, we may be requio
commit considerable additional efforts, time ansbrgces to enhance our current product portfolidemelop new products. We may not t
the available time and resources to accomplish #rig many of our competitors have substantialatar financial and other resource
invest in technological improvements. We may netable to effectively implement new technoladjjwen products and services or
successful in marketing these products and serticesr customers, which would materially harm operating results.

Although we own our DPP® patent, lateral flow teclugy is still a competitive platform to DPP@nd lateral flow technology has a lower
of manufacture than DPP® products. Although the ®BPRatform has shown improved sensitivity as compavét conventional lateral flo
platforms in a number of studies, several factarsngo the development and performance attribufgeraducts. Therefore the ability of «
products to successfully compete will depend oresswother factors including but not limited to cuaving a patented rapid test platf
technology, that differentiate DPP® from lateralil as well as from other diagnostic platform tedbgies.
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We believe that our Dual Path Platfornmi®outside of the scope of currently issued paténthe field of lateral flow technology, there
offering the possibility of a greater freedom tcecgte. However there can be no assurance thgiadents or our products incorporating
patent claims will not be challenged at some timthe future.

New developments in health treatments or new non-ggnostic products may reduce or eliminate the demahfor our products.

The development and commercialization of produettside of the diagnostics industry could adversafgct sales of our products. |
example, the development of a safe and effectieeima to HIV or treatments for other diseases oddtmons that our products are designe
detect, could reduce, or eventually eliminate tbenand for our HIV or other diagnostic products aegllt in a loss of revenues.

We may not have sufficient resources to effectivelintroduce and market our products, which could maerially harm our operating
results.

Introducing and achieving market acceptance forrapid HIV tests and other new products will reguubstantial marketing efforts and !
require us and/or our contract partners, salestagend/or distributors to make significant expéumgis of time and money. In some insta
we will be significantly or totally reliant on thmarketing efforts and expenditures of our contmatners, sales agents, and/or distributor
they do not have or commit the expertise and ressuto effectively market the products that we nfecture, our operating results will
materially harmed.

The success of our business depends on, in additimthe market success of our products, our abilityo raise additional capital through
the sale of debt or equity or through borrowing, aml we may not be able to raise capital or borrow fuds on attractive terms and/or ir
amounts necessary to continue our business, or dt.a

We have been profitable for five consecutive yedigvertheless, prior to 2009 we sustained sigamifioperating losses since 2004, ant
have incurred operating losses during certain gugriperiods, as recently as the fourth quarteR@f3. At December 31, 2013, we he
stockholders' equity of $20.3 million and a workirapital surplus of $14.0million . The Company estimates that its resources are muffitc
fund its needs through the end of 2014 and beypadicularly due to the fact that it issued new omon shares in 2013 in an equity financ
that resulted in net proceeds to the company ofcepately $5.4 million. Nevertheless we may haweemake significant financi
commitments to invest in a sales and marketingrorgéion, regulatory approvals, research and deweémt including new technologies, i
production capacity.

The Company's liquidity and cash requirements défbend on several factors. These factors inclupéhéllevel of revenues; (2) the exter
which, if any, that revenue level improves opematoash flows; (3) the Company's investments inakede and development, faciliti
marketing, regulatory approvals, and other investsi@ may determine to make; and (4) the Companysstment in capital equipment :
the extent to which it improves cash flow througlerating efficiencies. There are no assurancesthigaCompany will remain profitable
generate positive cash flow in 2014 or, in theraléve, be successful in raising sufficient cdpitefund its needs after 2014.

We experienced an increase in revenues in 2018gththis increase was primarily attributable tarayle purchase order in the approxin
amount of $5.3 million that we received from a lieadnternational procurement organization on bebfh large screening initiative that v
being undertaken by one country. Increased salefléce and increased n@roduct revenues attributable to sponsored reseanc
development programs also contributed to our irsgéaevenues in 2013.

In order for our 2014 revenues to be at the sawed ks in 2013, or increase from that level, we Mfaweed for the large international purct
order to be renewed, or to be able to replaceptnishase order with other revenues from other custs. There can be no assurance the
will occur. A similar situation occurred in 2013 amwe experienced a significant decrease in owamass from FIOCRUZ, and we were ¢
to more than offset this decrease with the abmeetioned purchase order. Nevertheless there &@o lassurance that we will have a repe
2014 of the large order received in 2013, or thawill be able to replace it with other revenuesiirother sources.

Moreover, our U.S. market sales will be difficult predict in 2014 given the anticipated introductiof a new rapid test by Alere, and
uncertainty as to whether or to what extent it Wil successful in cannibalizing sales of our prtgjuegardless of whether we modify
terminate our agreements with Alere. If we temgnour cassette agreement with Alere and/or itamvert the barrel agreement to a nor
exclusive agreement with Alere, we would expeattperience higher average revenue per unit foasiseciated products due to the fact
under the Cassette Agreement and the Barrel Agneemve currently sell these products to Alere aigmificantly lower price than the price
which Alere then resells to customers (includingsefiers and distributors) in the United States.welger this could only occur after ¢
inventory that Alere has accumulated of our prosligtrun off, which may take several months. MeegpAlere could heavily discount the
products, although we don't believe it is in Alerigiterest to do so. In addition, if we are margtither or both of these products we
incur substantial costs associated with establishisales and marketing organization for theseymtsdcand in establishing channel distribu
partners. Finally, we would need to pay a royaft$.6% to Alere on sales of these products in thédd States for the duration of the rele
lateral flow patent, which is until February 2015.
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We believe that underlying demand for HIV rapidtites in the United States remains strong, and tivatrestoration of some of the fund
cutbacks from sequestration and the implementatiothe Affordable Care Act and of the United StaRrgventive Services Task Fa
recommendations will have a positive impact on degelopment of the market. Further, Chembio's petslare well established and re
upon by a large installed base of customers ovewyrgaars of use in the U.S. global market, and gl&tbe this is a strong advantage. We
believe that upon attainment of CLIA waiver, of wtithere can be no assurance, that our DAR®L/2 Assay for use with oral fluid or bloc
samples will be able to address new customerswbet previously not available to Chembio with @efal blood tests marketed by Al
However the timing of the CLIA waiver has been gieth and it cannot be assured, and developmentwfcostomers with this product
costly and time-consuming. Finally, we believet thlaortterm reductions in sales attributable to sales l&yedof inventory already purcha:
from Chembio will eventually be offset by stockiaglers placed by certain distributors, althoughelean be no assurance of this.

We are attempting to increase international sal@sioproducts, and we have invested in additioeaburces in connection with this effort;
as we have experienced for many years, the nafunaranternational business is such that it cawdilatile from period to period, depending
ordering patterns of donor-funded programs.

Furthermore, a number of factors can slow or pregates increases or cause sales decreases, targiglly increase the cost of achiev
sales assuming they are achieved:

economic conditions and the absence of or reduati@vailable funding source
regulatory requirements and customs regulati

cultural and political difference

foreign exchange rates, currency fluctuations ariffg;

dependence on and difficulties in managing intéonat distributors or representative
the creditworthiness of foreign entitie

difficulties in foreign accounts receivable coliect;

competition;

pricing; and

any inability we may have in maintaining or incriegsrevenues

If we are unable to maintain or increase our reesninom domestic and/or international customersaperating results will be materia
harmed.
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Although we have an ethics and an-corruption policy in place, and have no knowledge roreason to know of any practices by ou
employees, agents or distributors that could be caetrued as in violation of such policies, our busirss includes sales of products
countries where there is or may be widespread corption.

Chembio has a policy in place prohibiting its enygles, distributors and agents from engaging inupbipusiness practices, including activi
prohibited by the United States Foreign CorruptcBcas Act (FCPA). Nevertheless, because we waruth independent sales agents
distributors (and do not have any employees oridian®s) outside the United States, we do not ta@rol over the day-tday activities ¢
such independent agents and distributors. In adfdiin the donorfunded markets in Africa where we sell our produthere is significal
oversight from PEPFAR, the Global Fund, and adyisoommittees comprised of technical experts coriogrithe development a
establishment of national testing protocols. T&ia process that includes an overall assessmenpadduct which includes extensive prot
performance evaluations including five active dodleations and manufacturer's quality systems, disaserice and delivery. In Brazil whe
we have had a total of six product collaboratiorith WIOCRUZ, those programs that our products amnmay be deployed in are all funded
the Brazilian Ministry of Health. Although FIOCRUZ affiliated with the Brazilian Ministry of Healtland is its sole customer, FIOCRU.
not the exclusive supplier for the Ministry of HimlHowever because each of our collaborations WIDCRUZ incorporates a technolc
transfer aspect, we believe we have a competitivarstage versus other suppliers to the Brazilianidttiy of Health, assuming other aspec
our product offering through FIOCRUZ are otherwisenpetitive in comparison. We have no knowledgeeason to know of any activities
our employees, distributors or sales agents ofa@tipns which could be in violation of the FCPAhalugh there can be no assurance of this.

We rely on trade secret laws and agreements with olkey employees and other third parties to protecbur proprietary rights, and we
cannot be sure that these laws or agreements adedely protect our rights.

We believe that factors such as the technologivdicaeative skills of our personnel, strategictieteships, new product developments, freq
product enhancements and name recognition are tedstn our success. All our management persoranel bound by noudisclosur
agreements. If personnel leave our employmensome cases we would be required to protect oullenteal property rights pursuant
common law theories which may be less protectia@ frovisions of employment, non-competition or4uistlosure agreements.

We seek to protect our proprietary products undmiet secret and copyright laws, enter into licemgeeements for various materials
methods employed in our products, and enter imetegic relationships for distribution of the protii These strategies afford only limi
protection. We currently have some foreign patesssed, and we are seeking additional patent giiotein several other foreign jurisdictic
for our DPP®technology. We have licenses to reagents (antigems peptides) used in several of our products prodlucts unde
development. Despite our efforts to protect owppetary assets, and respect the intellectualgrtppights of others, we participate in sev
markets where intellectual property rights prot@tsi are of little or no value. This can place products and our company at a compet
disadvantage.

Despite efforts we make to protect our confidentidrmation, such as entering confidentiality agments in connection with new busir
opportunities, unauthorized parties may attempuiojpy aspects of our products or to obtain infororathat we regard as proprietary. We
be required to expend substantial resources intagg®r protecting our intellectual property righor in defending suits related to intellec
property rights. Disputes regarding intellectuadgerty rights could substantially delay productelepment or commercialization activit
because some of our available funds would be didemtvay from our business activities. Disputesurdigg intellectual property rights mig
include state, federal or foreign court litigatiaa well as patent interference, patent reexamimapatent reissue, or trademark oppos
proceedings in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office

To facilitate development and commercializatioraqdroprietary technology base, we may need to wlatddlitional licenses to patents or o
proprietary rights from other parties. Obtainimglanaintaining these licenses, which may not bdabla, may require the payment of tpnt
fees and royalties. In addition, if we are unablebtain these types of licenses, our productldeweent and commercialization efforts may
delayed or precluded.
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Our continued growth depends on retaining our curret key employees and attracting additional qualifiél personnel, and we may nc
be able to do so.

Our success will depend to a large extent uporskilks and experience of our executive officersnagement and sales, marketing, opera
and scientific staff. We may not be able to attraicretain qualified employees in the future doethe intense competition for qualif
personnel among medical products businesses, gdogreonsiderations, our ability to offer compegticompensation, relocation packa
benefits, and/or other reasons.

If we are not able to attract and retain the neargsgersonnel to accomplish our business objectivesmay experience constraints that
adversely affect our ability to effectively manuia@, sell and market our products to meet the dea@f our strategic partners in a tirr
fashion, or to support internal research and dewvetnt programs. Although we believe we will be cassful in attracting and retain
qualified personnel, competition for experiencegrmsiists and other personnel from numerous compaaiel academic and other rese
institutions may limit our ability to do so on aptable terms.

We have entered into employment contracts with @aief Executive Officer and President, Lawrenceb&ig our Chief Operating Offic
Sharon Klugewicz and our Senior Vice President ekdarch and Development, Javan Esfandiari. Dutheospecific knowledge a
experience of these executives regarding the ingusichnology and market, the loss of the servafesny one of them could have a mate
adverse effect on the Company. The contract with Klugewicz has a term of two years ending May®20The contract with Mr. Esfandi
has a term of three years ending March 2016. Tdrapgany has obtained a key man insurance policy orEsfandiari. The contract with N
Siebert provides that Mr. Siebert will serve as@éef Executive Officer and President of the Compthrough May 11, 2014, and Mr. Siel
has advised the Company that he intends to retira the Company on or before that date. Upon NMgb&t's announcement in 2013, of
retirement plans, the Company began a searchrfemaCEO.

We believe our success depends in part on the canied funding of and our ability to participate in large testing programs in the U.£
and worldwide. Funding of these and or similar prgrams may be reduced, discontinued and/or we may hbe able to participate for
other reasons.

We believe it to be in our best interests to megiuilly participate in large testing programs. Morer many of these programs are funde
governments and other donors, and there can besuraace that funding will not be reduced or cotepfediscontinued. Participation in thi
programs also requires alignment and engagemehttiaét many other participants in these prograntdding the World Health Organizatic
U.S. Center for Disease Control, U.S. Agency faetdnational Development, foreign governments arglrtagencies, nogevernment:
organizations, and HIV service organizations. & are unsuccessful in our efforts to participatthase programs, our operating results c
be materially harmed.

In December 2013 President Obama signed into l@nPBPFAR Stewardship and Oversight Act, which ésriost recent reauthorizatior
PEPFAR. However, unlike the 2008 PEPFAR authodmatiwhich authorized approximately $45 billion, thew law doesn't authorize
specific dollar amount for funding. Neverthelessiwidely anticipated that PEPFAR will continueenjoy strong funding; the FY14 bud
has $6 billion for global HIV/AIDS assistance, inding $4 billion for PEPFAR.

Although we were profitable in 2009, 2010, 2011, 2@ and 2013, we cannot be certain that we will bebke to sustain profitability in
2014,

From the inception of Chembio Diagnostic Systems, In 1985 through the period ended December 328 2we incurred net losses, and
have only become profitable during the last fivarge In 2014, we expect to make substantial expamdi for sales and marketing, regula
submissions, product development, and productiahvearehouse capacity and other purposes. Withgubatantial increase in revenues,
will impact profitability at least in the short tar Our ability to continue profitability in the tiure will primarily depend on our ability
increase sales of our products based on having thadaforementioned expenditures to reduce prooluethd other costs, and to success
introduce new products and enhanced versions oéxigting products into the marketplace. If we @mable to increase our revenues at ¢
that is sufficient to achieve profitability, or apfleately control and reduce our operating costspperating results would be materially harmed

To the extent that we are unable to obtain sufficiet product liability insurance or that we incur product liability exposure that is not
covered by our product liability insurance, our opeating results could be materially harmed.

We may be held liable if any of our products, oy anoduct which is made with the use or incorparatf any of the technologies belongini
us, causes injury of any type or is found otherwissuitable during product testing, manufacturmgrketing, sale or usage. We have obte
product liability insurance even though we haveemereceived a product liability claim, and have gpafly not seen product liability claims
screening tests that are accompanied by approglist¢iaimers. Nevertheless, in the event thegedfaim, this insurance may not fully co
our potential liabilities. In addition, as we aigt to bring new products to market, we may neeth¢oease our product liability cover:
which could be a significant additional expensd thxa may not be able to afford. If we are unableltain sufficient insurance coverage &
acceptable cost to protect us, we may be forcetbamdon efforts to commercialize our products os¢hof our strategic partners, which wc
reduce our revenues.
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Risksrelated to our Common Stock
Our Common Stock continues to be illiquid, so invasrs may not be able to sell as much stock as theyant at prevailing market prices.

The average daily trading volume of our Common Ktoe the NASDAQ market was 5000 shares per day over the three months ¢
March 1, 2014 as compared to less than 44,000 shaee day over the three months ended March 1,.20trefore, there has bt
consistency in the liquidity of our stock basedthis comparison, and our stock began trading on DAS in early June, 2012. Howev
improvements in the liquidity of our stock deperfs several factors, including but not limited te tfinancial results of the Company
overall market conditions, so there can be no asserthat this improvement will continue, or evemfintained.

Decreased trading volume in our stock would makadte difficult for investors to sell their shari@sthe public market at any given time
prevailing prices.

Our management and larger stockholders exercise gidicant control over our Company.

As of March 3, 2014, our named executive officelisectors and 5% stockholders beneficially ownegrapimately 14.6% of our voting
power. In addition, we have two large institutibimavestors that beneficially owned 7.2% and 4.8¥%spectively of the stock. For 1
foreseeable future, and assuming these ownershipitages continue to pertain, to the extent tietet parties vote similarly, they may be
to exercise significant control over many matteguiring approval by the board of directors or stackholders. As a result, they may be
to:

control the composition of our board of directc

control our management and polici

determine the outcome of significant corporatedaations, including changes in control that mapéeeficial to stockholders; ai

act in each of their own interests, which may donhfkith, or be different from, the interests ofthaother or the interests of the of
stockholders
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our manufacturing, administrative offices and resledacilities are located in Medford, New Yorka addition we have warehousing spac
well as some additional administrative offices kechin Holbrook, New York. We lease approximate®y650 square feet of industrial spac
Medford for $27,305 per month. The space is @ilifor research and development activities (apprateély 4,160 square feet), offi
(approximately 3,100 square feet) and productigipi@ximately 32,400 square feet). The lease texpires on April 30, 2017. The lee
provides for annual increases of two and one heitent each year starting May 1, 2015. We leageoajmately 21,450 square feet
industrial space in Holbrook for $14,657 per monithe space is utilized for offices (approximat@lp00 square feet) and warehou:
(approximately 18,950 square feet). The lease ®xpires on April 30, 2018. The lease providesdonual increases of three percent
year starting March 1, 2015. The Company beli¢kissspace should be sufficient for its needs enftireseeable futur

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we may be involved in litigaticglating to claims arising out of our operationghie normal course of business. We k
of no material, existing or pending legal procegdiragainst us, nor are we involved as a plaintifiny material proceeding or penc
litigation. There are no proceedings in which ahpur directors, officers or affiliates, or anygrgtered or beneficial shareholder, is an ad
party or has a material interest that is adversmitanterest.

ITEM 4.  MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not Applicable.
PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our stock is quoted on the NASDAQ, under the symii@#MIL." Prior to June 8, 2012, our stock was @abbn the OTCQB and prior
February 24, 2011 on the OTC Bulletin Board. OryMN8, 2012, a reverse split was effected at a itidfor 1. The table below sets forth
high and low bid prices per share of our commouglksfor each quarter of our two most recently cortgaleiscal years. Quarters prior to J
2012 were adjusted for the split. These pricesemt inteidealer quotations without retail markup, markdowncommission and may r
necessarily represent actual transactions.

Fiscal Year 2013 High Bid Low Bid

First Quarter $ 57t % 4.61
Second Quarter $ 51C $ 4.1C
Third Quarter $ 532 $ 3.0C
Fourth Quarter $ 3.9t $ 3.1¢
Fiscal Year 2012 High Bid Low Bid

First Quartel $ 4.0¢ $ 3.1z
Second Quarte $ 49 $ 3.52
Third Quartel $ 53C $ 4.11
Fourth Quarte $ 58 $ 3.61

On May 30, 2012, the Company undertook an 8ifaeverse stock split in order to have a stockepsafficient to qualify for listing ¢
NASDAQ, which occurred on June 7, 20.

Holders

As of March 1, 2014, there were approximately fei®rd owners of our common stock.

Dividends

The Company has never paid cash dividends on iitsram stock and has no plans to do so in the foadsdeéuture.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

Not applicable

25




ITEM 6.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Presented in this table are selected financial fdatdne past five years ended December 31, 2013.

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA

As of and For the Years Ended

Statement of Operations

Data:
December
31, 2013

TOTAL REVENUES  $29,549,60

December
31, 2012

$25,610,59

42% 10,789,99

20% 4,486,30.

18%

GROSS MARGIN 12,300,15
OPERATING COSTS:
Research and

development expens 5,834,24!
Selling, general and

administrative

expenses 5,461,08:

11,295,33

INCOME FROM

OPERATIONS 1,004,82
OTHER INCOME
(EXPENSES): 12,94
INCOME BEFORE

INCOME TAXES 1,017,77
Income tax (benefit)
provision 486,95:
NET INCOME $ 530,81
Basic income per share $ 0.0€
Diluted income per
share $ 0.0¢
Weighted average

number of shares

outstanding, basic 8,994,08
Weighted average

number of shares

outstanding, diluted 9,519,96!
Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital $14,221,01
Total asset 24,486,59
Total liabilities 4,309,49
Shareholders' equit 20,177,10

9,337,88!

1,452,10.

(1,589
3% 1,450,551

509,23

$ 0.12

$ 0.11

7,986,03!

8,614,94.

$ 7,630,36
17,335,15
3,460,631
13,874,52

42%

18%

4,851,58 _19%

6%
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December
31, 2011

$19,388,03

9,390,30:

4,878,11!

48%

25%

3,424,229 _18%

8,302,41i

1,087,88
(12,325
1,075,56.

(5,133,22)

$ 0.7¢

$ 0.7t

7,874,80

8,556,28

$ 6,133,95
15,485,74
2,991,11i
12,494,63

6%

December
31, 201C
$16,704,70

8,100,69!

2,586,30!

2,940,72.
5,527,02!

2,573,67!

(14,509

2,559,16

$ 2,559,16

$ 0.3¢

7,762,85!

8,865,11.

$ 4,560,27
9,086,17.
3,277,23
5,808,94.

December
31, 200¢
$13,834,24

48% 5,860,40

15% 2,883,69

18% 2,659,38

5,543,07!

317,32

(8,267)

15% 309,06(

$ 309,06(

$ 0.04

$ 0.0
7,743,30

9,380,24.

$ 1,493,97
6,315,25!
3,227,33!
3,087,91.

42%

21%

_1e%

2%




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

This discussion and analysis should be read inuoetipn with the accompanying Consolidated FindnStatements and related notes.

discussion and analysis of our financial conditéomd results of operations are based upon our ddased financial statements, which h
been prepared in accordance with accounting pilieeigenerally accepted in the United States. Tlkggyation of financial statements
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America requiresousidke estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liadslitdisclosure of any contingent liabilities at timancial statement date and reported amc
of revenue and expenses during the reporting pe@adan ongoing basis, we review our estimatesaasdmptions. Our estimates are base
our historical experience and other assumptionisviieebelieve to be reasonable under the circumetarectual results are likely to differ frc
those estimates under different assumptions oritons, but we do not believe such differences willterially affect our financial position
results of operations. Our critical accounting piels, the policies we believe are most importarthtopresentation of our financial statem
and require the most difficult, subjective and ctemgudgments, are outlined below in "Critical Acnting Policies," and have not chan
significantly.

In addition, certain statements made in this repaaly constitute "forward-looking statements". Tédarwardlooking statements invol
known or unknown risks, uncertainties and othetoi@cthat may cause the actual results, performaneehievements of the Company tc
materially different from any future results, paerfance or achievements expressed or implied bfotfneard{ooking statements. These fact
include, among others, 1) our ability to obtain essary regulatory approvals for our products; andw ability to increase revenues

operating income, which is dependent upon ourtghiii develop and sell our products, general econ@onditions, demand for our produ
and other factors. You can identify forwdmbking statements by terminology such as "maygutd”, "will," "should," "expects," "intends
"plans,” "anticipates," "believes," "estimates,"régicts," "potential," "continues" or the negatieé these terms or other compare
terminology. Although we believe that the expedtadi reflected in the forwardoking statements are reasonable, we cannot gigarduntur:

results, levels of activity, performance or achieeats.

Except as may be required by applicable law, waataundertake or intend to update or revise ouwvdnd{ooking statements, and we ass|
no obligation to update any forwalobking statements contained in this report as sulteof new information or future events
developments. Thus, you should not assume thasitaunce over time means that actual events anénigeaut as expressed or implied in s
forwarddooking statements. You should carefully reviewd @onsider the various disclosures we make inrtpsrt and our other reports fi
with the Securities and Exchange Commission thatrgit to advise interested parties of the riskseuninties and other factors that may a
our business.

All of the Company's future products that are aotlsebeing developed are based on its patented Pathl Platform (DPP®})which is a uniqu
diagnostic point-ofzare platform that has certain advantages ovemldlew technology. The Company has completedettgpment of sever
products that employ the DPP®chnology which will be marketed under Chembialsel or pursuant to private label license or distior
agreements such as those with FIOCRUZ, Labtest, BRMRBio-Rad.

The Company has had very active research and gewvelat programs and has significantly increasespignding on research and developr
during the last three years. Thiparty funding from research and development cotgrand grants have offset a significant portiorhefse
increased research and development expenses. olorthese collaborations have resulted in sigaifichird party validations of our DRP
technology and an increasing capability to devetoanufacture, validate, and improve current andreuDPP® products and product features.

The Company has a number of products under develnpthat employ the DPP@chnology. These product development activitiesiarthe
described below.

DPP® HIV Multiplex Antigen-Antibody "Fourth Generat ion" Test - Development work continues on a DPIP®/ multiplex test the
is being designed to detect acute (early stage) infidction by means of detecting P24 antigen, a ageantibodies, to HIV1/2, in whc
blood samples. Recently the FDA approved the fiioght-of-care test that claims to detect acute Hiféction, and there are also two FDA-
approved laboratory tests with such claims. Thatpaf-care test approved by the FDA, manufactured ireldvg a subsidiary of Alere,
called Determine@HIV Ag/Ab Combo. This test, which Alere has remaltis now undergoing CLIA waiver studies, claimsliet
detection due to the ability to detect unbound pBtigen. We believe that our development of sutbsg combined with our paten
DPP® point-of-care platform may better help idgntiflV infections that cannot be identified by anfytiee currently FDAapproved rapi
HIV tests, including the new Alere Determine teSuch a test may serve an unmet market need, apdefilato maintain and potentia
grow the already strong position Chembio's produmase in the U.S. rapid HIV test market. We areaim early stage of desi
development of this product including feasibilityrheet or exceed the target specifications of prbthat is commercially available on
market.
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DPP® Hepatitis-C (HCV) — Development work on our DPP® HCV point-cdre rapid test continues. Our development agthas bee
focused on creating a differentiated product thadtileast capable of identifying antibody respdnse more comprehensive manner 1
the currently available point-of-care test is ablelo.

In July 2012, the U.S. Centers for Disease Corfinallized the recommendations for testing alliwdlals in the United States b
between the years of 1945 and 1965 for HCV, whigh aohort represents a substantial portion of #teanated over three millic
individuals in the United States that are infectdth HCV infection, but unaware of their status.tiiva number of new antetrovira
therapies approved, and even more anticipated pgrafiproval in the years ahead by the FDA, we belthat over time, these n
recommendations will be implemented. In fact, imyMthe United States Preventive Services Task Faaeised its November 20
recommendations to endorse the CDC recommendatipgs/ing both hepatitis-C (HCV) screening for &krindividuals and ageehor
screening a 'B' grade; under the Affordable Cart pi@ventive services that have received an 'ABograde from the USPSTF musil
covered by insurance policies without cost-sharamgl be part of the essential health benefitshiose individuals eligible for Medicare.

We plan to complete development activities of thébedy detection assay in 2014, and to begin dietsvto commercialize produ
including regulatory submission, in the US by the ef 2015 or early 2016.

International Distribution & Manufacturing Agreemen ts —

Labtest

In 2013 the Company entered into an internatiosatmbly and distribution agreement with LabtesgBdistica SA (Labtest), a lead
diagnostics manufacturer and marketing organizabased in Brazil, for products based upon Chemipiatented Dual Path Platfo®n
(DPP ®) in Brazil and potentially other marketssidé the U.S.

Pursuant to the agreement, upon receipt of an droler, Chembio will manufacture and sell certaie@plized test components to Lab
and also will receive a royalty based on sales atést of DPP ®@roducts. Labtest will produce certain reagents perdorm assemb
and packaging operations in a dedicated space l#esiss manufacturing facilities near Belo HorizmnBrazil. Chembio will provic
Labtest with the training necessary to perform dperations specific to the DPP @oducts. Labtest will also have responsibility
marketing, promotion and distribution of the protuo Brazil.

All products will be marketed under brand nameg thi#l include Chembio's DPP @&ademark together with trade names selecte
Labtest, and each test kit will state that Chenibiagnostic Systems, Inc. is the licensor of the DBademark and technology. 1
products selected for inclusion in this agreemeiiitaddress both private as well as public healtrkets, and will enable Chembia
participate in significant market opportunities Brazil. This agreement addresses market opporégnitiat are independent of th
addressed by Chembio's ongoing collaboration vi¢hQswaldo Cruz Foundation.

Labtest is installing the assembly equipment thegdeived during the fourth quarter so that it bagin product validation and registrai
activities for an initial group of infectious dis®aproducts with sales expected to commence in.20k& agreement contemple
additional products and territories to be addednloyual agreement. In addition, the agreement offerpossibility for Labtest to assenr
products for other global Chembio customers aswract manufacturer.

Sponsored Research & Development
Multiplex Influenza Immunity Test —

As a result of pandemic planning activities, thateth States Department of Health and Human Sendondsthe CDC have identified P!
and high-throughput testing as a gap in influenagnbstics. Rapid responses in the fieldsteh as the vaccination, prophylactic treatt
or isolation of patients —+equire POC diagnostic tests for influenza infattéamd immunity. Ideally, these tests should be, fasttable
self-contained and natechnical. Development of this test is especialljioal for the military, as evidenced by previoirfluenze
outbreaks that spread rapidly through densely @aedlbarracks and killed thousands of soldiers.

Further to this identified gap in influenza diagnes in 2013 the Company entered into a follow-arilestonebased developme
agreement with the private contracting organizatiat is engaged to enter into, implement and pietechnical oversight of agreeme
relating to pandemic influenza preparedness onlbehds client, the United States Centers for &ise Control and Prevention (CDC),
a multiplex, rapid, POC influenza immunity testlisihg Chembio's patented Dual Path Platform® (DPR&hnology. The objective
this follow-on project is to further develop a rapid influenzemunity test that can determine a person's inftaeimmunity status in tl
field or in an outpatient setting, while incorpangt certain additional subunits of influenza viprsteins. The followen agreement was 1
up to approximately $472,000 and was completechdutie first quarter of 2014. New prototypes hagerbdelivered to our customer .
we are waiting for next steps.
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DPP® Febrile lliness Multiplex test — During 2013 we entered into a cooperative reseprofect agreement with a U.S. governn
agency for up to $750,000 for an eighbnth development project. The project is to depel rapid POC diagnostic test for five infect
diseases associated with febrile illness and tdiphetk them into one assay. The project also coptatas that the test would be optimi
for use with a mobile reader that incorporates gletine technology to enable the results to be dechitransmitted and monitored rema
via a cloud system, in real-time. This researchaotosupports our efforts in developing multiplerogiucts using our proprietary DFP
technology. Our DPP @&chnology, when combined with the mobile readéndpe@sed in the project, will enable real time dedéectior
and monitoring capabilities. As these infectiousedises can all exhibit similar clinical symptomstapid multiplex test that cot
distinguish them would be very useful, particuldryfield conditions, so that correct diagnosis &e@tment could be provided on a tin
basis. We completed R&D activities for this projetiring 2013, including supplying the U.S. goverminagency that this test w
developed for with approximately 10,000 prototygeides for clinical trials.

DPP® Tuberculosis— In 2011, we were awarded a thrgesar, $2.9 million, Small Business Innovative ResedSBIR) Phase Il gra
from the United States National Institutes of HeglNIH) to continue our successful Phase | grantkwto develop a simple, rap
accurate, and cost-effective serological test fifiva tuberculosis that can be utilized in resotntited settings. During 2012, seve
additional antigens were identified to enhancebawly detection by the DPP®st prototype designed in our Phase | studiesigAr
reagents have been finalized and test prototypli@van using welleharacterized clinical specimens is in progressdig for the thir
and final year of this Phase Il grant was confirméth a reduction of approximately 1%. Chembio@rkvto finalize DPP assay des
using various fusion proteins has been completeldpanduction of an evaluation It in progress; these tests will be used for veatfor
studies, internal and external evaluations at #ecsed collaborative sites (see below), QC prdteatidation, and accelerated stabi
study. The target sensitivity is 80% and specifitit 95%. Study sites for external evaluations of DPP assaluile Bangladesh, Bra:
China, Haiti, Peru, Venezuela, and South Africke Grant is expected to be completed by early 20hy.

In addition to the aboveentioned research and development work sponsoregbbernmental agencies and/or their contractorgtfe
influenza, febrile illnesses, and tuberculosis gct§, we are discussing additional opportunitiessfionsored research and developi
activity. We endeavor to select sponsored resgangjects where we believe there is an identifiaddenmercial opportunity and/or wh
other benefits to the Company are anticipated imeotion with these projects.

In general, we are considering certain new DPP®&Iycb opportunities, either as OEM development mtsjend/or as Chembiarande:
products. These products are being identifieddapen our assessment of opportunities in the nharke upon whether they can be addre
with our proprietary technology, along with our d@pment and manufacturing capabilities and expede We are also identifying ¢
assessing additional technologies that we beli@veenhance or expand our current product portfaliml thereby provide additional reve
streams, although there is no assurance that wéavédble to obtain or utilize any of them profitab

Reqgulatory Activities

CE Mark for FDA-Approved HIV Tests — The Company's SURE CHECK®IV 1/2 Assay has received CE Mark approval fromrdpeal
regulators and is therefore now cleared for comrakzation within the European Union (EU) for rapigoint-ofcare detection 1
HIV. Chembio is currently working with commerciadizon partners in Europe. We expect that our HI¥ 3TAT PAK® lateral flow HIV tes
will receive the CE mark during the first quartér2014. We anticipate that the DPR®V 1/2 test will receive CE Mark approval in e¢
2014.

FDA Approval for DPP® HIV 1/2 Assay for Use with Oral Fluid or Blood Samples —We received FDA approval of our Pkéarketing
Application (PMA) for this product on December 2812 as we previously announced. The CLIA waiveiliagtion was submitted at the ¢
of November 2013. In February 2014 we receivedti@i from the FDA on the current status of reviewour CLIA waiver application. Tt
FDA determined that additional information is ne¢de complete their review of the Company's DPA® 1/2 Assay CLIA waive
application. During the blinded prospective clinisaudy, a disproportionate number of new infectiarere found at one clinical site due to
lower than expected prevalence at two other Sitesare currently in discussion with the FDA to fira the protocol to collect additional de
Upon receiving guidance on our proposed protocelawticipate that we will be able to update theetine of activities for the CLIA waiver
the DPP HIV1/2 Assay.

DPP® HIV-Syphilis — We have developed this product for international €S marketing. For the international market, thedpct has bee
registered in Mexico. We have submitted this pobtduoth for evaluation by the CDC, acting on behdlfthe United States Agency
International Development, and the WHO, which hesepted this product to be evaluated for quelification in its global procureme
scheme.
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The FDA review timeline for this product, which weginally anticipated would be in mig©14, has now been shifted to late 2014, with C
waiver now anticipated in 2015. This developmantliie to this product being characterized by FDA &MA, not a 510(K), as the syph
component performance will be compared to actuiepiinfection status, as compared to a predidatéce allowed in 510(K). This char
will be more time consuming due to the increasatugiry review time, and potentially more costlie collected and completed phase | o
clinical study and found that the patient infectgatus varied dependent on the comparator assayfaséhe serological clinical diagnosis
syphilis. Due to the complex nature of the disestate of syphilis as well as the varying algorithused for diagnosis, the original requirer
discussed with the FDA may not be appropriate. Hi2& requested the submission of preliminary dali@ated during the clinical stuc
which we did in February 2014, to further the dissian regarding the requirement for the DPP HIViSligpAssay.

There can be no assurance that any of the aforeorert Research & Development and/or Regulatorylpets or activities will result in ai
product approvals or commercialization, nor thatyaof the existing research and development aa#yitor any new potential developn
programs or collaborations will materialize or thetey will meet regulatory or any other technicajuirements and specifications, and/or
if continued, will result in completed products, titat such products, if they are successfully cetepl, can or will be successft
commercialized.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AS COMPARED WITH THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Income:

Income before income taxes for the year ended DbeeBil, 2013 decreased to $1,018,000 from $1,48@0the year ended December
2012. Net Income decreased from $941,000 for 26018531,000 for 2013. The decrease in net incameimarily attributable to a $695,C
increase in clinical trial expenses, along witheotimcreased operating expenses, offset by a higrless margin. In 2013, as a result of a 1!
increase in Net Product sales and a 58.5% incri@asenproduct revenues, the Company had a $1,510,0004.606, increase in its grc
margin, to $12,300,000. This increased gross mdigided most of the increased operating expetisesnost significant of which was
increase in clinical trial expenses of $695,00@ thuthe CLIA trials for our DPP HIV 1/2 product.

Revenues:
Selected Product Categories For the years ended
December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 $ Change % Change

Lateral Flow HIV Tests and

Components $ 20,248,36 $ 13,505,84 $ 6,742,51! 49.92%
DPP Tests and Component 6,592,66! 10,086,45 (3,493,79) -34.6%0
Other 674,76:. 735,04 (60,28¢) -8.2(%
Net Product Sales 27,515,78 24,327,35 3,188,43. 13.11%
License and royalty revenue 4,90¢ - 4,90¢ 100.0%
R&D, milestone and grant revenue 2,028,91 1,283,24 745,67 58.11%
Total Revenues $ 29,549,60 $ 25,610,59 $ 3,939,01. 15.3%%

Revenues for our lateral flow HIV tests and relatedhponents during the year ended December 31, 2@i@ased by $6.7 million over i
same period in 2012. This was primarily attriblgaio increased sales in South America, of $4.@anil in Africa of $1.7 million, and in tt
U.S. of $1.1 million; and was partially offset bgateased sales in other regions. Partially offepthese increases were decreased other
which decreased by 8.2%, or $60,000. Sales oD®P® products in 2013 decreased by $3,494,000, or 34cé¥apared to levels in 2012
Brazil reduced purchases for the five ANVISA-ap@d\DPP®products. The increase in R&D, milestone and grewmeénue was primarily d
to an increase in grants and other developmenegopf $746,000 along with an increase in royialtpme of $5,000. R&D revenues in 2
include funds, recognized on an "as expenses auvergd" basis, from a Phase Il NIH grant for Lepiossis, which was effective as of Jun
2009, and from a Phase Il grant for Tuberculosikkvivas effective March 1, 2011 as well as from tnitestone based projects.

Gross Margin:

Gross Margin related to Net Product

Sales: For the years endec

December 31 December 31

2013 2012 $ Change % Change

Gross Margin per Statement of
Operations $ 12,300,15 $ 10,789,99 $ 1,510,16: 14.00%
Less: R&D, milestone, grant, license
and royalties 2,033,82. 1,283,24 750,58: 58.4%
Gross Margin from Net Product Sales $ 10,266,33 $ 9,506,75. $ 759,58! 7.9%%
Product Gross Margin % 37.31% 39.08%

The gross margin dollar increase of $1,510,00Quited a $760,000 increase in gross margin from mtazhles and a $751,000 increase in no
product revenues. The increase in product grosgimadbllars is primarily attributable to the highmoduct sales compared to the 2012 pe
which resulted in $1,246,000 (this is calculatedtddsing the increase in sales times the gross margicentage from 2012)and was part
offset by the 1.8% decrease in our product grosgimg@ercentage, from 39.1% in 2012 to 37.3% inR@kcounting for the $486,000 balai
which was primarily due to increased costs of rogalfrom 7.4% of product sales in 2012 to 9.09204.3.
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Research and Development:

This category includes costs incurred for produesearch and development, regulatory approvals,nieah support, evaluations &
registrations.

Selected expense lines: For the years ended

December 31 December 31

2013 2012 $ Change % Change

Clinical and Regulatory Affairs:
Wages and related costs $ 436,08t $ 436,66¢ $ (580) -0.12%
Consulting 53,49 61,66« (8,170 -13.2%9%
Stock-based compensation 19,47¢ 28,27¢ (8,800 -31.12%
Clinical trials 1,515,21; 820,08: 695,12¢ 84.7¢%
Other 82,85 46,217 36,63¢ 79.21%
Total Regulatory 2,107,12 1,392,911 714,21 51.21%
R&D Other than Regulatory:
Wages and related costs 2,224,88. 1,956,53 268,34t 13.72%
Consulting 106,15! 137,78¢ (31,639 -22.9€%
Stock-based compensation 86,02: 41,83¢ 44,18¢ 105.6%
Materials and supplies 975,50: 646,27 329,23: 50.9%
Other 334,56: 310,95¢ 23,60¢ 7.5%%
Total other than Regulatory 3,727,121 3,093,39: 633,73¢ 20.4%
Total Research and Developmer $ 5,834,24! $ 4,486,30; $ 1,347,94 30.059%

Expenses for Clinical & Regulatory Affairs incredsgy $714,000 for the year ended December 31, 284 8pompared to the same perio
2013. This was primarily due to an increase of $893 in clinical trial expenses which in 2013 arestly associated with CLIA waiver stud
for our DPP® HIV 1/2 Assay.

R&D expenses other than Clinical & Regulatory Affaincreased by $634,000 in the year ended DeceBhe2013, as compared with

same period in 2012. The increases were primazlgted to an increase in wages and related codtganaterial and supplies to support
sponsored research and internal development pragram

Selling, General and Administrative Expense:

Selected expense line: For the years endec
December 31 December 31
2013 2012 $ Change % Change

Wages and related cost $ 2,068,17. $ 1,534,441 $ 533,73: 34.78%
Consulting 279,68t 261,05: 18,63¢ 7.14%
Commissions 902,39: 1,208,941 (306,55 -25.3%
Stock-based compensation 169,50: 174,46. (4,960 -2.84%
Marketing materials 112,32¢ 65,24¢ 47,07: 72.1"%
Investor relations/investment bankers 214,78t 282,05¢ (67,277) -23.85%
Legal, accounting and compliance 621,42¢ 559,56¢ 61,86( 11.0%%
Travel, entertainment and trade show: 190,69¢ 163,70: 26,99 16.4%
Bad debt allowance (recovery (33,450 28,00( (61,450 -219.40%
Other 935,53t 574,10! 361,43 62.9¢%
Total S, G &A $ 5461,08. $ 4,851,58 $ 609,49t 12.56%

Selling, general and administrative expenses ferytar ended December 31, 2013, increased by $BDa®compared with the same peric
2012. The primary factor of this increase was a4$830 increase in wages and related expenses, rfiyiratributable to the hiring of a CC
and a VP of sales and marketing, and a new Me®iegice tax of $72,000, along with other increa§éwese increases were partially offse
decreases in commissions due to decreased sd@eazit bad debt allowance and other decreases.
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Other Income and Expense:

For the years endec

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 $ Change % Change
Gain on sale of fixed asse $ 7,50( - 7,50( 10C%
Interest income $ 577¢ $ 7911 $ (2,137 -26.96%
Interest expense (33%) (9,495 9,16( -96.47%
Total Other Income and (Expense)  $ 12,94: $ (1,589 $ 14,52% -917.1%

Other income for the year ended December 31, 20d@ased approximately $15,000 from an expens& 008 in the same period in 20
primarily as a result of a gain on the sale ofdixessets and a decrease in interest expense dhe tarm loan with HSBC.

Income tax (benefit) provision:

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 201X dhgpany charged $487,000 and $509,000, respectiveincome tax expense ¢
reduced the deferred tax asset by $458,000 and @27, Irespectively . The Company still maintairfalbvaluation allowance on research
development tax credits.

MATERIAL CHANGES IN FINANCIAL CONDITION

Selected Changes in Financiz

Condition As of
December 31 December 31
2013 2012 $ Change % Change
Cash and cash equivalel $ 9,650,27! $ 2,951,85 $ 6,698,411 226.9%

Accounts receivable, net of allowance
doubtful accounts of $24,000 and
$58,000 at December 31, 2013 and

2012, respectivel 4,592,12 4,821,35 (229,23¢) -4.7%%
Inventories 3,188,72 2,488,07. 700,65! 28.1€6%
Fixed assets, net of accumulated

depreciation 1,978,23; 1,427,64 550,58t 38.51%
Deferred tax asset, net of valuation

allowance 3,590,20 4,233,19 (642,98 -15.1%
Accounts payable and accrued liabiliti 4,309,49 3,303,92: 1,005,56 30.4%%

Cash increased by $6,698,000 from December 31,,38Rarily due to the common stock funding comgdetn April 2013 which addt
$5,409,000. Excluding the common stock funding,dhgh increased by $1,289,000. In addition there decreases in accounts receivable
of allowance, of $229,000 and deferred taxes of3§8D. We experienced increases in inventories76fL. 00, fixed assets of $551,000
accounts payable and accrued expenses of $1,006,000

The increase in inventories is due to productiondiaers received to be shipped in the first quanfe2014, which partially explains t
increase in accounts payable and other accruechsgpeThe increase in fixed assets is due in pafelivery of equipment for which we t
made deposits, this equipment included vial filleguipment, a reel-teeel printer for R&D, some leasehold improvemeats] other pieces
equipment. Deferred tax asset decrease is relatie torovision for income tax expense.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

For the years endec

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 $ Change % Change

Net cash provided by operating

activities $ 2,243,16. $ 761,08: $ 1,667,86: 223.9%
Net cash used in investing activitie (851,159 (872,447 (148,020 16.9%%
Net cash provided by financing

activities 5,306,41. 52,26 5,237,66! 7619.3%
(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 6,698,411 $ (59,09%) $ 6,757,51 -11435.00%

The Company's cash increased by $6,698,000 fronerDleer 31, 2012, primarily due to the common stagiding completed in April 20:
which added $5,409,000 and was slightly offset thepuses of cash from financing activities, coregan a decrease in cash of $59,000 ii
2012 period.

The cash provided from operations in 2013 was @0, primarily due to net income plus ncash expenses of $1,898,000, along w
decrease in accounts receivable of $650,000 amtcegase of $1,006,000 in accounts payable and atteeued liabilities which were partia
offset by an increase of $701,000 in inventory. ¥¢898,000 of net income plus noash expenses includes net income of $531,000
$611,000 in depreciation and amortization, $332 jd0¢harebased compensation, $458,000 in provision for defetaxes and a reduction
the change in the provision for doubtful accourft$3#,000. The use of cash from investing actisiteprimarily the purchase of fixed assets.

The increase in cash from operations in 2012 w&4 $D0, primarily due to net income plus nmash expenses of $2,282,000 and an inc
of $514,000 in accounts payable and accrued lisdsliand other items aggregating $24,000, whichewgartially offset by an increase
accounts receivable of $1,851,000, and an incref$&88,000 in inventory and other items aggrega$80,000. The $2,282,000 net incc
plus non-cash expenses includes net income of $9@1,plus $523,000 in depreciation and amortizati$818,000 in sharbase:
compensation, $471,000 in provision for deferrecdesaand a change in the provision for doubtful aot® of $28,000. The use of cash f
investing activities is primarily the purchase iokfl assets.

Fixed Asset Commitments
As of December 31, 2013, the Company had paid dspos various pieces of equipment aggregating 48XB which is reflected in Oth

Assets on the balance sheet. The Company is futtramitted to additional equipmeptirchase obligation of $31,990 as various miles
are achieved by the various vendors.
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RECENT DEVELOPMENTS AND CHEMBIO'S PLAN OF OPERATION S FOR THE NEXT TWELVE MONTHS

With over 10 consecutive years of doubigit revenue growth and five consecutive yeargrofitability, and with our strongest balance s
ever, Chembio is well positioned for continued gttewA growing number of markets are now availablend being actively pursued for
products in North America (including significantangerm new business opportunities in Mexico), 8d\mnerica and Africa. We are now a
entering the European and Asian markets as a resulvestments begun in 2013. Chembio is addngstie global health market mor tl
ever.

Having received, in December 2012, FDA approvabaf Pre-Marketing Application for our DPPEIV 1/2 Assay for use with oral fluid
blood samples, one of our priorities is to comptagrequirements for a Clinical Laboratory Impnment Act (CLIA) waiver for this produc
Receipt of a CLIA waiver will enable the product be sold in the U.S. professional pointeafre market segments where these tesi
primarily used. We anticipate this process to mmgleted in 2014. We believe the availability ofaternative oral fluid HIV rapid test, whi
test also performs very well on all blood matrioegl enable Chembio to participate in market segtaenot currently addressed by the la
flow blood POCT products that have been sold thiodigre.

While we continue to pursue and develop succegsfuaite label license and distribution agreementa number of markets such as we |
done with FIOCRUZ and Labtest in Brazil, Alere ilofth America and, as recently announced, RVR iraAsie believe our lontgerm succe:
will be primarily driven by providing our customensth the best value and the most direct relatigns¥ith our high quality organization a
products and by doing so through further develogmném Chembio brand in the United States and dtegrmarkets. This is fundamenta
the strategic plan that we developed last year.

We intend to sell, under the Chembio brand, our ®PPV 1/2 Assay for use with oral fluid or blood salep. While we have a robust pipel
of products that will complement this initial offieg, we may also seek to distribute additional piaid that we can license or acquire.

We believe 2014 will be a transformative year fare@bio, as we both bring in a new chief executind we establish a commercial si
organization for the first time. Our commitmentpmvide our customers the best value and suppmitua Chembio brand in the U.S.
require not only investing in a commercial saleganization, but also ensuring that the commergeigdwization will have a growing pipeline
products to sell, whether they are developed irshpinlicensed or acquired. Investments will need tontede in sales and marketi
research and development, regulatory submissiomsnanufacturing in order to realize our laegm strategic plan. We are committe:
doing that. These investments were one of the pyimeasons we raised capital in 2013.

We are optimistic that, with a strong track recaxdd an ongoing business and financial positiopléte, an outstanding organization,
support of our board of directors, and strong lestup, this transformation will be successful.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in confty with accounting principles generally accepie the United States of America requ
management to make estimates and assumptionsftbett the amounts reported in the financial stateisi@nd accompanying notes. Ac
results could differ materially from those estinsate

We believe that there are several accounting malithat are critical to understanding our histéréocal future performance, as these pol
affect the reported amounts of revenue and the migmificant areas involving management's judgmems estimates. These signific
accounting policies relate to revenue recognitimsearch and development costs, valuation of imventaluation of londived assets ar
income taxes. These policies, and the relatedepitoes, are described in detail below.

Revenue Recognitic—
We recognize revenue for product sales in accoelamith ASC 605, Revenue is recognized when therpeisuasive evidence of
arrangement, delivery has occurred or services Hasen rendered, the sales price is determinabld, caflectability is reasonak

assured. Revenue typically is recognized at tifrghipment. Sales are recorded net of discouekstes and returns.

For certain contracts, we recognize revenue fronDRé&ilestone and grant revenues when earned. @t invoiced after expenses
incurred. Revenues from projects or grants fundextivance are deferred until earned.

For certain collaborative research projects, wegaze revenue by defining milestones at the irioapof the agreement and applying
milestone method of revenue recognition for relévamtracts.
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Stock-Based Compensation —

We recognize the fair value of equibgsed awards as compensation expense in our statefaperations. The fair value of our stock op
awards was estimated using a Bl&dholes option valuation model. This valuation niesdeomputations incorporate highly subjec
assumptions, such as the expected stock priceilitgland the estimated life of each award. The failue of the options, after considering
effect of expected forfeitures, is then amortizgeherally on a straighine basis, over the related vesting period ofdhton. The fair value
our restricted shares is based on the market \afltlee shares at the date of grant and is recodrirea straightine basis over the relat
vesting period of the award.

Research & Development Co—

Research and development activities consist priynafinew product development, continuing enginagfior existing products, regulatory ¢
clinical trial costs. Costs related to researath @evelopment efforts on existing or potential ucts are expensed as incurred.

Valuation of Inventories —

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mfanksing the first-in, firsbut method (FIFO) to determine cost. Our policyoiperiodically
evaluate the market value of the inventory andstage of product life cycle, and record a reseoveahy inventory considered slow moving
obsolete. For example, each additional 1% oblahs inventory would reduce such inventory by agpnately $32,000.

Allowance for doubtful accoun—

Our policy is to review our accounts receivable aoperiodic basis, no less than monthly. On a qugrbasis an analysis is made of
adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts adpistments are made accordingly. The currdotvahce is approximately 1%
accounts receivable. For example each additiod#tabfiaccounts receivable that becomes uncollectilmleld reduce such balance of acco
receivable by approximately $46,000.

Income Taxe—

Income taxes are accounted for under ASC 740 atdkive guidance ("Guidance") which requires thsedsnd liability method of account
for deferred income taxes. Deferred tax assetsliabdities are determined based on the differehetveen the financial statement and
bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxtagsdiabilities at the end of each period areedeined using the tax rate expected to be in ¢
when taxes are actually paid or recovered.

The Guidance also requires that a valuation all@edre established when it is more likely than hat &ll or a portion of a deferred tax a
will not be realized. A review of all available $tive and negative evidence needs to be considereldding a company's current and |
performance, the market environment in which thegany operates, length of carryback and carryfatveariods and existing contracts -
will result in future profits. Prior to 2011 arilrough September 30, 2011, the Company had avélliation allowance recorded aga
deferred tax assets since it was not more likedy thot that the Company would realize the benefigich deferred tax assets. During 2011
Company determined based upon the guidance und@r748 that it was more likely than not that it webukalize the benefit of such defer
tax assets. As result, the Company reversed theatiah allowance previously recorded against thierded tax assets. The Company
maintains a full valuation allowance on researath @evelopment tax credits

The Guidance also prescribes a comprehensive nfodekcognizing, measuring, presenting and disolpsn the consolidated financ
statements tax positions taken or expected to kent@n a tax return, including a decision whetteeffie or not to file in a particul;
jurisdiction.

The above listing is not intended to be a comprsivenlist of all of our accounting policies. In macases, the accounting treatment
particular transaction is specifically dictated &gcounting principles, generally accepted in thétednStates of America, with no need
management's judgment in their application. Tlaeeealso areas in which management's judgmententsey any viable alternative would |
produce a materially different result. See ouriddfinancial statements and notes thereto whiohtain accounting policies and ot
disclosures required by accounting principles galheaccepted in the United States of America.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Consolidated Financial Statements and schedhéésconstitute Item 8 are attached at the enthisfAnnual Report on Form 10- An
index to these Financial Statements and schedukdsa included on page F-1 of this Annual ReporForm 10-K.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

Not Applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedutdsder the supervision and with the participatidroor senior management, consisting of
chief executive officer and our chief financial ioffr, we conducted an evaluation of the effectigsnef the design and operation of
disclosure controls and procedures (as definedulesR13a-15(e) and 15kb(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934msnded (tf
"Exchange Act"), as of the end of the period coseby this report (the "Evaluation Date"). Based tbat evaluation, the Compar
management, including our chief executive officed @hief financial officer, concluded that as of tvaluation Date our disclosure cont
and procedures were effective to ensure that irdtion required to be disclosed by us in the repitras we file under the Exchange Ac
recorded, processed, summarized and reported wvtithitime periods specified in SEC rules and for@sir disclosure controls and proced:
include, without limitation, controls and procedsir@esigned to ensure that information requiredetalisclosed by us in our Exchange
reports is accumulated and communicated to our genant, including our chief executive officer arnief financial officer, as appropriate
allow timely decisions regarding required discl@sur

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Crvi@ancial Reporting. The Company's managemergsponsible for establishing ¢
maintaining an adequate system of internal comtvelrr financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rale 13a15(f)). Our internal contr
over financial reporting is a process, under thpestision of our chief executive officer and chiefancial officer, designed to provi
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilityirdincial reporting and the preparation of financ#tements for external purpose:
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptecin the United States. These internal costosker financial reporting processes inc
policies and procedures that:

a. Pertain to the maintenance of records that in restse detail accurately and fairly reflect the sactions and dispositions of the as
of the Company

b. Provide reasonable assurance that transactionseeoeded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiah statements in accorda
with generally accepted accounting principles, #vat receipts and expenditures of the Company eirggbmade only in accordar
with authorizations of management and directorthefCompany; an

c. Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, esealisposition of the Compan
assets that could have a material effect on tlanéial statement:

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohver financial reporting may not prevent or de¢tmisstatements. Therefore, even tl
systems determined to be effective can provide mdgonable assurance of achieving their contijekctibes.

In evaluating the effectiveness of our internaltominover financial reporting, our management utes criteria set forth by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis§@@SO) in Internal Control Integrated Framework. Based on this evaluatiam
Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officers cort#d that our internal control over financial repugtwas effective as of December 31, 2(

This annual report does not include an attestatégort of our registered public accounting firm aetjng internal control over financ
reporting.

Management's report was not subject to attesttjoour registered public accounting firm pursuanthte rules of the Securities and Exchz
Commission that permit the Company to provide annagement's report in this annual report.

(b) Changes in Internal Control over Ficial Reporting. There were no changes in ourmecontrol over financial reporting identifi
in connection with the evaluation required by paaph (d) of Rule 13a-15 or Rule 188-under the Exchange Act that occurred during
Company's last fiscal quarter of the period covérgdhis report that have materially affected, m sasonably likely to materially affect,
internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable

37




PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE
Directors and Executive Officers

Lawrence A. Siebert (57)President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairmarr. $lebert was appointed President of Chembio Qiatics, Inc
and a member of our board of directors upon consatiom of the merger in 2004. Mr. Siebert has b€aairman of Chembio Diagnos
Systems Inc. for approximately thirteen years améPiesident since May 2002. Mr. Siebert's baakgads in private equity and venture caf
investing. From 1982 to 1991, Mr. Siebert was aisged with Stanwich Partners, Inc, which duringttperiod invested in middle mar
manufacturing and distribution companies. From2189 1999, Mr. Siebert was an investment consuléartt business broker with Siet
Capital Corp. and Siebert Associates LLC, and wasiripal investor in a privately held test andaserement company which was sol
2002. Mr. Siebert received a JD from Case WedRarserve University School of Law in 1981 and a Bi#hvDistinction in Economics fro
the University of Connecticut in 1978. Mr. Siebast president and CEO is an integral part of then@fio management team. His experis
in the rapid test field and financing markets mhaae an excellent candidate for serving on the beard as its chairman. In September 2
Mr. Siebert announced his retirement from his pas#t as CEO and President of Chembio, effectivermitie current employment agreen
expires in May 2014.

Richard J. Larkin (57), Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Larkin was appointesg Chief Financial Officer of Chembio Diagnostits;. upot
consummation of the merger in 2004. Mr. Larkin rgees our financial activities and information eyss. Mr. Larkin has been the Ci
Financial Officer of Chembio Diagnostic Systems.Iaince September 2003. Prior to joining ChembiagBostic Systems Inc., Mr. Larl
served as CFO at Visual Technology Group ("VTGYrirMay 2000 to September 2003, and also led VT@iswtancy program that provic
hands-on expertise in all aspects of financial iservincluding the initial assessment of clientafiigial reporting requirements within an
Enterprise Resource Planning (Manufacturing) emvirent through training and implementation. Prmjdining VTG, he served as CFC
Protex International Corporation from May 1987 smudary 2000. Mr. Larkin holds a BBA in Accountifigm Dowling College and is
member of the American Institute of Certified PatAiccountants.

Javan Esfandiari (47), Executive VP of Research and Development. Mr. iigh&ai joined Chembio Diagnostic Systems, Inc, @0@ Mr
Esfandiari co-founded, and became aowaier of Sinovus Biotech AB where he served asdbareof Research and Development concel
lateral flow technology until Chembio Diagnostics&ms Inc. acquired Sinovus Biotech AB in 20000nk1993 to 1997, Mr. Esfandiari v
Director of Research and Development with §ite Biotech/National Veterinary Institute, Uppsafweden, which was working
collaboration with Sinovus Biotech AB on developren veterinary lateral flow technology. Mr. Esthari received his B.Sc. in Clinic
Chemistry and his M. Sc. in Molecular Biology frdrand University, Sweden. He has published artiglegarious veterinary journals and
co-authored articles on tuberculosis serology WithLyashchenko.

Sharon Klugewicz (46),Chief Operating Officer. Prior to joining the Conmyain September 2012, Ms. Klugewicz, served as @eviice
President, Scientific & Laboratory Services at P@brporation (NYSE:PLL), a world leader in filtrati, separation and purificati
technologies. Prior to that, Ms. Klugewicz heldwusnber of positions at Pall Corporation over hery2@r tenure there, including in the Pall |
Sciences Division, in Marketing Product Managemand Field Technical Services, which included atosas Senior Vice President, Glo
Quality Operations. Ms. Klugewicz holds an M.S.Biochemistry from Adelphi University and a B.S. Weurobiology from Stony Broc
University.

Tom Ippolito (51), VP of Regulatory Affairs, QA and QC. Mr. Ippolijoined Chembio in June 2005. He has over twentysyexperienc
with in vitro diagnostics for infectious diseas@sptein therapeutics, vaccine development, Pro&ssslopment, Regulatory Affairs a
Quality Management. Over the years, Mr. Ippolits hald Vice President level positions at Biospeclfechnologies, Corp. from 2002605
Director level positions in Quality Assurance, QuyaControl, Process Development and Regulatoryaitdf at United Biomedical, Inc. frc
1987 -2000. Mr. Ippolito is the Course Director for "drdevelopment process" and "FDA Regulatory Prockssthe BioScience Certifice
Program at the New York State University of Stompdk, a program he has been a part of since iepiian in 2003.

Dr. Gary Meller M.D. (64), Director. Dr. Meller was elected to our Board afdators in March 15, 2005, and currently serveshenBoard'
Audit, Compensation and Nominating And Corporatev&pnance Committees, including as Chairman of then&nsation Committee. |
Meller also served as Chairman of the Board's ap&mmittee for handling certain strategic oppoitias. Dr. Meller has been the presic
of CommsSense Inc., a healthcare business develdpooempany, since 2001. CommsSense Inc. works witnts in Europe, Asia, Nor
America, and the Middle East on medical informatiechnology, medical records, pharmaceutical prodegelopment and financing, he:
services operations and strategy, and new prochattnew market development. From 1999 until 2001 Ndeller was the executive vi
president, North America, of NextEd Ltd., a leadingernet educational services company in the Asaific region. Dr. Meller also wa:
limited partner and a member of the Advisory BoafdCrestview Capital Master LLC, which at one tinvas our largest stockholder.
Meller is a graduate of the University of New Mexi€chool of Medicine and has an MBA from the HatdvBusiness School. Dr. Melle
experience in the medical field both domestic an@ifn (especially his experience with CommSensé ks well as his financing experie
made him an excellent candidate for serving orbtieerd.
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Kathy Davis (56),Director. Ms. Davis was elected to the CompanyarB of Directors in May 2007, and currently seruashe Company
Audit, Compensation and Nominating And Corporatev@pance Committees, including as Chairman of @d¢he Audit Committee and t
Nominating And Corporate Governance Committee. &ke is serving on the Company's CEO Search Coenifince January 2007, |
Davis has been the owner of Davis Design Group Ld.€ompany that provides analytical and visualsdot public policy design. Previous
from February 2005 to December 2006, she servédea€hief Executive Officer of Global Access Pomtstartup company with products
data transport, data processing, and data storeigeork and hub facilities. From October 2003 toudag 2005, Ms. Davis was Lieuten
Governor of the State of Indiana, and from Jan2&Q0 to October 2003 was Controller of the Cityrafianapolis. From 1989 to 2003, I
Davis held leadership positions with agencies amdjiams in the State of Indiana including State daidDirector, Secretary of Family
Social Services Administration, and Deputy Comnoissi of Transportation. From 1982 to 1989 Ms. D#nékl increasingly senior positic
with Cummins Engine, where she managed purchasiagufacturing, engineering, and assembly of cedaigine product lines. Ms. Da
also led the startup of and initial investmentsal$50 million Indiana state technology fund, Kasleyves as vice chair of the board of Nobl
Indiana, director of Lumina Foundation for Educatitndiana University School of Public and Envircemtal Affairs Dean's Advisory Counc
IU Public Policy Institute Advisory Council, WGU direna Advisory Council, Cahair of the Shepherd Tech Arts Resource Teamuuh!
for Indianapolis Business Journal Forefront. She davasters of Business Administration from HarvBusiness School and a Bachelo
Science in Mechanical Engineering from the Masssetts Institute of Technology. Ms. Davis has vaeggerience in business, political
financial areas make her an excellent candidatednring on the board.

Dr. Barbara DeBuono M.D., M.P.H., (58), Director. Dr. DeBuono, who was elected to the Company's Bo&mirectors in June 201
serves on the Company's Compensation Committeeaalsndas Chair of the CEO Search Committee. Dr.Uo@B is a renowned expert
public health innovation, health policy, educatan research. She currently serves as SeniorRfesident for Market Development at TR
Solutions, a data analytics and health systemftramation company based in New York. Previously kbl the post of President and CE(
ORBIS International, which is dedicated to savilghsand eliminating avoidable blindness worldwiéfeom 20092011, Dr. DeBuono wi
Chief Medical Officer, Partner and Global DirectifrHealth and Social Marketing at Porter Novellhidafrom 20002008 she was Executi
Director, Public Health and Government at Pfizar. IDr. DeBuono has served as Commissioner of Hdaltlthe state of New York and
Director of Health in Rhode Island and she was heddy the CDC Foundation in 2005 as one of fivblieiHealth Heroes nationwide. £
serves as adjunct professor at The George Washingpiversity School of Public Health, and is afoander of The MAIA Foundation,
charity dedicated to women's health in Sddiaran Africa. A Fellow of the American CollegeRifysicians, Dr. DeBuono received her [
from the University of Rochester, her M.D. from timiversity of Rochester, School of Medicine, andasters in Public Health (M.P.H.) frc
Harvard University School of Public Health. Dr. Deo's experience in and knowledge of, both domestd international, public hea
services, public health innovations, and the mediel make her an excellent candidate for serdnghe board.

Dr. Peter Kissinger, Ph.D. (69)Director. Dr. Kissinger, who was elected to the Company'sr@ad Directors in June 2011serves on tt
Company's Audit Committee and is a member of th© Gearch Committee. Dr. Kissinger is a scienéistrepreneur and academic, wil
multi-faceted career in biotechnology and biomedical rieldgies. He is a Professor of Chemistry at Purduéversity, West Lafayett
Indiana, and is the founder of Bioanalytical Systeinc. (NASDAQ: BASI), which he led from 192807. Dr. Kissinger's academic rese.
has involved the study of modern liquid chromatpgsatechniques, and in vivo methodology for drugabelism and the neurosciences.
Kissinger has published more than 240 scientifipgps and is a Fellow of the American AssociatiorPdrmaceutical Scientists and
American Association for the Advancement of Scienlce 2005, he became the Chairman of Prosoliachvimarkets mass spectromi
innovations for life science, industrial and honmelasecurity applications. In 2007, he and Candi@singer founded Phlebotics, Inc.
medical device company focused on diagnostic infdion for intensive care medicine. He is a columifiis the trade publication Dri
Discovery News. Dr. Kissinger received a B.S. ire@listry from Union College, Schenectady, N.Y. arfehaD. in Analytical Chemistry fro
the University of North Carolina in Chapel Hill. rCKissinger has knowledge of and experience itegionology and biomedical technolog
as well as publicly-traded companies, all of whichke him an excellent candidate for serving orbtberd.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdinces

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 0f413% amended (the "Exchange Act8quires the Company's directors, executive off
and beneficial owners of more than 10% of the Camijsacommon stock to file with the Securities anxdtltange Commission initial reports
ownership and reports of changes in ownership ofraon stock and other equity securities of the Camipa he Company believes that dui
the year ended December 31, 2012, each person wh@mwofficer, director and beneficial owner of entiran 10% of the Company's comr
stock complied with all Section 16(a) filing reqerinents .

Code of Ethics
The Company has adopted a code of ethics thatespgliits principal executive officer, principatdincial officer, principal accounting offic

controller, and persons performing similar funco\ copy of the Company's code of ethics is abdél on the Company's website
www.chembio.com.
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Identification of Audit Committee; Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Company's board of directors has establishealidit committee. Katherine L. Davis, Dr. Petediiger and Dr. Gary Meller each sel
on the audit committee, with Ms. Davis serving asianan. The Company's board of directors hasrmgted that Ms. Davis is an au
committee financial expert and is independent.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The following table summarizes all compensatiororded by the Company in each of the last two cotaegldiscal years for our princig

executive officer and our two most highly compeeadatxecutive officers other than our principal exee officer whose annual compensa
exceeded $100,000.

Name / Stock All Other

Principal Salary * Bonus? Awards Option Awards ® Compensation® Total

Position  Year $) ($) $) ($) $ $
Lawrence A.
Siebert* 201:$ 290,00($ 50,75( $ -$ 21,61(%$ 10,24($ 372,60(
CEO 201z % 290,000 $ 101,50(% -$ 28,21° % 10,40($ 430,11
Javan
Esfandiari 201z % 292,46.$ 44,62t $ -$ 141,07($ 8,691% 486,86.
VP-R&D 201z % 263,07 $ 89,25( % -$ 24.81.% 7,60¢ $ 384,74t
Sharon
Klugewicz 2012 % 233,64: $ 5,95( $ -$ 18,55 % 3,54: % 261,68!
COO 201z % 59,76¢$ 5,95($ -3 109,45: % -$ 175,17(

1 Salary is total base salary.
2 Bonuses earned in 2013 were partially based achieg certain objectives, which included revenokad levels and operating profit levels,
additional amounts earned were discretionary.

3 The estimated fair value of any option or comratmtk granted was determined in accordance with ASL; "Stock-Based Payment".
4 Mr. Siebert also serves as a director on the @Goryip board of directors. Mr. Siebert does notikerany compensation for this director role

5 Other compensation includes an employer matdi®1¢K) contributions and car allowances where applie.
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Employment Agreements

Mr. Siebert. Effective, April 19, 2013, the Compensation Corte® of the Board of Directors extended the Comlsaeynploymer
agreement (the "Employment Agreement") with LaweeAc Siebert, the Company's President and Chietlke Officer, for an addition
oneyear term through May 11, 2014, with all other terand conditions of the Employment Agreement remgithe same. In Septem
2013, Mr. Siebert informed the Company that hendgeto retire from his positions as President aBR@@pon expiration of his contract in v
2014. Previously, effective, May 11, 2011, the @emsation Committee of the Board of Directors edéshthe Company's employm
agreement (the "Employment Agreement”) with LaweeAc Siebert, the Company's President and Chietlikes Officer, for an addition
oneyear term through May 11, 2013, with an increasgaiary to $290,000 per year. Previously, effecMay 11, 2009, the Company's Bc
of Directors had approved the Company's extensidheoJune 15, 2006 Employment Agreement for aritiadal threeyear term through M
11, 2012. On June 15, 2006, Mr. Siebert and thegamy entered into an Employment Agreement, effeciilay 10, 2006, which was
terminate on May 10, 2008, extended in 2008 to W@y2009. Pursuant to the Employment Agreement itibert serves as the President
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and receiaednitial salary of $240,000 per year, which haén increased to $265,000 per year
Mr. Siebert agreed to a 15 percent reduction, 86100, effective January 19, 2009. Mr. Siebedlary was restored to $265,000 per an
effective in July 2009. Mr. Siebert also is eligilfor a bonus of up to 50% of his salary, consgtf (i) a bonus of up to 25% of his salary
is at the complete discretion and determinatiothefboard of directors, and (ii) a bonus of up ioadditional 25% of his salary that will
determined based upon revenue and earnings perioamaiteria established each year by the boardirettors. Mr. Siebert is eligible
participate in any profit sharing, stock optiortjreament plan, medical and/or hospitalization plamg/or other benefit plans except for disak
and life insurance that the Company may from timdime place in effect for the Company's executidasng the term of Mr. Sieber
employment agreement. If Mr. Siebert's Employm®&mteement is terminated by the Company without eaos if Mr. Siebert terminates |
Employment Agreement for a reasonable basis, asedein the Employment Agreement, including wittith months of a change in control,
Company is required to pay as severance Mr. Siebsatary for six months. Mr. Siebert has agremdaf period of two years after -
termination of his employment with the Company tminduce customers, agents, or other sourcesstiiition of the Company's busin
under contract or doing business with the Compartgtminate, reduce, alter, or divert business witfrom the Company. The terms of
extended May 11, 2011, May 11, 2009 and May 118ZB@ployment Agreements are identical to the JUne006 Employment Agreeme
except that under the May 11, 2008 extended EmpdoyrAgreement, Mr. Siebert received additional @erstion in the form of incenti
stock options to purchase 31,250 shares of the @oyp common stock exercisable at $1.04 per shdrieh was the closing price of |
Company's common stock on June 3, 2008. The iiveestiock options are immediately exercisable &g £xpire on the June 3, 2013.

Mr. Esfandiari. The Company entered into an employment agreeefésttive March 5, 2013 (the "Employment Agreemgnilith Mr.
Esfandiari to continue as the Company's Senior Voesident of Research and Development for aniaddltterm of three years throv
March 5, 2016. Mr. Esfandiari's salary under tmeployment Agreement is $300,000 for the first yedth possible increases for the sec
year and /or for the third year. Mr. Esfandiareiigible for a performan«-based bonus of up to 50% of his base salary fdr ezgpective yee
which is in the same proportions as described beloger "Executive Bonus Plan". The Company alsmigd Mr. Esfandiari, pursuant to
Company's 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, incentivekstmations to purchase 30,000 shares of the Compaoyhmon stock. The price per st
of these options is equal to the fair market vaifithe Company's common stock as of the close@frirket on March 5, 2013, which is
date on which the Agreement was effective. Of tleégek options, options to purchase 10,000 shasison each of the first three anniversi
of the effective date of the Employment Agreememt. Esfandiari is eligible to participate in anyofit sharing, stock option, retirement pl
medical and/or hospitalization plan, and/or othemddit plans except for disability and life insucarthat the Company may from time to t
place in effect for the Company's executives dutimg term of Mr. Esfandiari's employment agreeméhiMr. Esfandiari's employme
agreement is terminated by the Company withoutesaoisif Mr. Esfandiari terminates his employmegteeement for a reasonable basis
defined in the Employment Agreement, including with2 months of a change in control, the Compamedgired to pay as severance
Esfandiari's salary for twelve months.

Ms. Klugewicz. The Company entered into an employment agreematgd May 22, 2013 with Ms. Klugewicz's (the "Empien
Agreement"), effective May 22, 2013 (the "Effectidate”). The Agreement provides that she will semg the Company's COO for a terr
two years. Ms. Klugewicz will receive an annuabsglof $250,000, with the option of a discretiongrgrformancesased annual cash bonu:
up to 37.5% of her base salary. The Employment é&ment also provides for a grant of 5,000 optionpumhase shares of the Compa
common stock, vesting at a rate of 2,500 sharemagh of the first and second anniversaries of ffective Date. In the event Ms. Klugewic
employment is terminated by reason of disabilitfar'cause”, as defined in the Employment Agreetnalh compensation including her b
salary, her right to receive a performance bonas, the vesting of any unvested options, will ceaseof her termination date, and |
Klugewicz will receive no severance benefits. I€ tBompany terminates Ms. Klugewicz's employmenheut cause or Ms. Klugewi
terminates her employment for a reasonable basidefined in the Employment Agreement (which dé&finiincludes involuntary terminati
within a siximonth period upon a "Change of Control"), thenGmenpany will pay Ms. Klugewicz her base salarydqueriod of six months
severance, and all her unvested stock options simmiediately become vested. The Employment Agreénaso contains provisio
prohibiting Ms. Klugewicz from (i) soliciting the @npany's employees for a period of twefdysr months following her termination, |
soliciting the Company's customers, agents, orratharces of distribution of the Company's busirfess period of twelve months followi
her termination, and (iii) for a period of twelveonths following termination of this Agreement, egtehere termination is involuntary upo
"Change in Control," engaging or participating ityadusiness that directly competes with the busisesivities of the Company in any mai
in which the Company is in business or plans tasiness. The foregoing description of the Emplayn#greement is qualified in its entir«
by reference to the full text of the Employment égment.

Neither Mr. Larkin, Mr. Ippolito nor Mr. Steele has employment contract with the Compa
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Executive Bonus Plan

The Company has established a bonus plan for @ésutixes who do not have a contract. For the figear ended December 31, 2013, t
were three executives eligible for this bonus pl&ach executive can earn up to 25% of that exegatsalary in the form of a cash bonus.

Compensation Committee determined that 80% of xeewdive's bonus will be quantitative factors, lobse the budget. 20% will be basec
other factors and will be discretionary. The pldating 2013 for the 80%, called for a sliding pettegye of the executive's salary, from zei
10% for attaining certain revenue goals, and fremozto 10% of the executive's salary for attaingggtain operating profit goals. T
Company achieved approximately 98.75% of its reeegoals for 2013, which would result in a bonus%f of each executive's salary,

achieved 110% of its operating profit goal, whicbuld result in a bonus of 1% of salary, for a tahl8% of salary. The Compensai
Committee granted approximately 15% of salary inuses for the three subject executives.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END 2013

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Market
Number of Securities Number of Value of

Securities Underlying Shares of  Shares of

Underlying Unexercised Option Stock That Stock That

Unexercised Options Exercise Option Option Have Not Have Not

Options Unexercisable  Price Expiration Vesting Vested Vested Foot-
Name Exercisable (#) (#) (%) Date Date (#) (%) note

Lawrence A. Siebert 5,21¢ 5.5€ 2/26/201i 2/16/201: 4
9,06: 4.0C 2/16/201° 2/16/201. 3
16,66" 1.04 5/6/201- 5/6/201: 2
16,66" 1.0¢ 5/6/201- 5/7/201: 2
16,66 1.04 5/6/201: 5/6/201( 2
Javan Esfandiari 10,000 5.44 3/5/201! 3/5/201: 1
10,00( 5.4¢ 3/5/201: 3/5/201" 1
10,00( 5.4¢ 3/5/201 3/5/201¢ 1
4,76 5.5¢  2/26/201! 2/16/1: 4
7,96¢ 4.0C 2/16/201° 2/16/201. 3
12,50( 2.1¢ 3/4/201! 3/5/201: 1
12,50( 2.1¢ 3/4/201" 3/5/201: 1
12,50( 2.1¢ 3/4/201" 3/5/201( 1
12,50( 1.0¢ 5/6/201+ 5/6/201. 2
Sharon Klugewicz 2,50( 450 5/22/201¢ 5/22/201- 1
2,50( 4.5C 5/22/201¢ 5/22/201! 1
63C 5.5¢€ 2/6/201¢ 2/6/201: 4
12,00( 4.4t 9/4/201° 9/4/201: 5
12,000 4.4¢ 9/4/201° 9/4/201+ 5
12,000 4.4E 9/4/201° 9/4/201! 5

1 Options issued in connection with an employmentreat and under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan.

2 On May 7, 2009 in accordance with the terms of Gleenpany's 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, the Compaantgd certain employees of
Company, options to purchase an aggregate of 3656&2res of the Company's common stock. The exepcise for these options is equa
$1.04 per share. The options become exercisalbferds on the first, second and third anniversaoiethe date of the grant. Each option gra
will expire and terminate, if not exercised soongion the earlier to occur of (a) 30 days aftemteation of the employee's employment \
the Company or (b) the fifth anniversary of theedat grant. The fair value of these options is geamortized over the vesting life of
options.

3 0On February 16, 2012, the Company determined totgna February 16, 2012, to certain employees @fGbmpany, options to purchase
aggregate of 203,125 shares of the Company's constoahk. The exercise price for these options wasldlst traded market price for
Company's common stock on February 16, 2012, wiach $4.00 per option. The options become exerasabthe effective date of the gr:
Each option granted will expire and terminate df exercised sooner, upon the earlier to occuap8Q days after termination of the employ
employment with the Company or (b) the fifth anmséagy of the effective date of grant.

4 0On February 26, 2013, the Company determined tot gna February 26, 20123 to certain employees @{bmpany, options to purchase
aggregate of 16,360 shares of the Company's constomk. The exercise price for these options waslaketraded market price for 1
Company's common stock on February 26, 2013, whiah $5.56 per option. The options become exer@sablthe effective date of the gri
Each option granted will expire and terminate df exercised sooner, upon the earlier to occuap8Q days after termination of the employ
employment with the Company or (b) the fifth anmgéagy of the effective date of grant.

5 Options issued in connection with the start of eyplent with the Company and under the 2008 Stockritive Plan.
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Director Compensation

All non-employee directors are paid an $18,000 ahretainer in sem&nnual payments, and once every five years, omate of the annu
meeting of stockholders that directors are eleotedkelected (every 5 years), receive stock optionsctjuiae, subject to vesting as descri
below, 46,875 shares of the Company's common stuittk,an exercise price equal to the market pricehe date of the grant. Stock option
acquire 9,375 shares become exercisable on theotigtant, and options to acquire an additionaVl'9,8hares become exercisable on the
of each of the four succeeding annual meetingsamkikolders if and to the extent that the monployee director is reelected as a direct
each such annual meeting. The audit committeerrolai is paid an annual retainer of $2,500, paidi-semually. In addition, the non-
employee directors are paid $1,000 in cash for dmetrd of directors' meeting attended, and paid$B0cash for each telephonic boart
directors meeting. The namployee directors who are members of a commitfetheo board of directors are paid $500 in cashdact
committee meeting attended, or $750 in cash forh eeemmittee meeting attended if that remployee director is the commit
chairman. Directors also may be paid for serviddnac committees of the Board. In fact, when tloafd established its Special Committe
2013 to handle the search for a new CEO, the Claairofi the Committee was paid $12,000 per month thadther two directomembers ¢
the Committee was paid $8,000 per month.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Name Fees Earned Option Total
or Paid in Awards (%)

Cash (%) 2

OF
Katherine L. Davis $ 62,50C $ - $ 62,50(
Barbara DeBuono 67,00( - 67,00(
Pete Kissinger 56,50( - 56,50(
Gary Meller 29,50( - 29,50(

1 Fees earned or paid in cash represents a yearnfbéees for meeting expenses: (a) Ms.Davis redean $18,000 annual fee as a memk
the board of directors, a $2,500 annual fee as tAQdmmittee chairman, $30,000 in fees as a memb#reoCEO Search Committee
$12,000 in meeting fees earned during 2013; (b)C@Buono received an $18,000 annual fee as a menfiltlee board of directors, $40,00(
fees as chairperson of the CEO Search Committe® &8 in meeting fees; (c) Dr. Kissinger receia@d$18,000 annual fee as a memb:
the board of directors, $30,000 in fees as a merabéihe CEO Search Committee and $8,500 in medtng; (d) Dr. Meller received
$18,000 annual fee as a member of the board aftdig and $11,500 in meeting fees.

2 Each outside member of the board of directors &tgd, once every five years, the right to purct@&g000 shares of the compa
common stock with an exercise price equal to theketgrice on the date of the grant as part ofrthehual compensation. Offiéth of these
options are exercisable on the date of grant, dtrelfecome exercisable on the first anniversaryhefdate of grant, and additional diféas
become exercisable on the second through fourtiversary of the date of grant. The fair value ofiops at the date of grant was estim
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Partipation

No executive officer of the Company served as a bemof the Board of any other public company dutimg year ended December 31, 2!
No member of the Compensation Committee served axecutive officer of any other public companyidgrthe year ended December
2013. No interlocking relationship exists betwelka members of our Compensation Committee and tlz@dBar compensation committee
any other company. As of March 1, 2014, the membéithe Compensation Committee were Gary Melldraf@nan), Katherine Davis, a
Barbara DeBuono, all of whom are deemed by the o&Directors to be independent.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth certain informatimgarding the beneficial ownership of our commamlsty each person or entity known b
to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of thestanding shares of common stock, each of ouctdire, each of our "named execu
officers"”, and all of our directors and executifBoers as a group as of March 1, 2014.

Amount and Nature
Name and Address o of Beneficial
Beneficial Owner Ownership Percent of Class
Siebert, Lawrencé)
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 853,78¢ 9.09%

Esfandiari, Javaf®
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 156,23! 1.66%

Larkin, Richard®
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 68,62( 73%

Ippolito, Tom®
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 46,79¢ 50%

Steele, MichaeP
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 12,78t .14%

Klugewicz, Sharoff)
3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 22,63( .24%
Meller, Gary™

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 95,62 1.02%

Davis, Katherine L®
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 48,92: .52%

DeBuono, Barbar
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 30,07¢ .32%

Kissinger, Petef?
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 30,07¢ .32%

GROUP @ 1,365,56: 14.06%
Wellington Management Company, LLP

280 Congress Street

Boston, MA 0221( 670,98( 7.20%

Norman H. Pessi
366 Madison Ave, 1% Floor
New York, NY 10017 449, 77( 4.82Y%
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Beneficial ownership is determined in accordancth wie Rule 13@&(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asrated, and genera
includes voting or investment power with respecsécurities. Except as subject to community prgpkexws, where applicable, the per
named above has sole voting and investment powhrrespect to all shares of our common stock shasvibeneficially owned by him.

The beneficial ownership percent in the table ikwated with respect to the number of outstandihgres (8,086,114) of the Compa
common stock outstanding as of March 6, 2013; aitld kespect to each stockholder, the denominattindssum of the number of comn
shares outstanding and the number, if any, of awtibg options included in that stockholder's bieraf ownership. Each stockholde
ownership is calculated as the number of sharesmwimon stock owned plus the number of shares ohtmmstock into which any prefen
stock, warrants, options or other convertible siéesrowned by that stockholder can be convertadiwi60 days.

The term "named executive officer” refers to oungipal executive officer, our two most highly coemsated executive officers other thar
principal executive officer who were serving asaiive officers at the end of 2012, and two addaicndividuals for whom disclosure wol
have been provided but for the fact that the irtlisls were not serving as executive officers ofGbenpany at the end of 2012.

(1) Includes 64,279 shares issuable upon exercisetimingpexercisable within 60 day

(2) Includes 72,734 shares issuable upon exer€isptimns exercisable within 60 days. Does noluide 20,000 shares issuable upon
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(3) Includes 48,217 shares issuable upon exer€igptions exercisable within 60 days. Does nokide 9,375 shares issuable upon
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(4) Includes 40,712 shares issuable upon exer€igptions exercisable within 60 days. Does noklide 7,812 shares issuable upon
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(5) Includes 12,785 shares issuable upon exer€isptimns exercisable within 60 days. Does noluide 24,000 shares issuable upon
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(6) Includes 12,630 shares issuable upon exer€isptimns exercisable within 60 days. Does noluide 29,000 shares issuable upon
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(7) Includes 37,500 shares issuable upon exer€igptions exercisable within 60 days. Does noklide 9,375 shares issuable upon
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(8) Includes 37,500 shares issuable upon exer€igptions exercisable within 60 days. Does notudel 9,375 shares issuable upon
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(9) Includes 30,079 shares issuable upon exer€isptimns exercisable within 60 days. Does noluide 18,750 shares issuable upon
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(10) Includes 30,079 shares issuable upon exeotigptions exercisable within 60 days. Does noluide 18,750 shares issuable upon
exercise of options that are not exercisable withennext 60 day:

(11) Includes footnotes (-(10).

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Combined Equity Compensation Plans - Informationfas
December 31, 201

Number of
Securities
Remaining
Available for
Number of Future Issuance
Securities to be under Equity
Issued Upon  Weighted-Average Compensation
Exercise of Exercise Price of  Plans (Excluding
Outstanding Outstanding Securities
Options, Warrants Options, Warrants Reflected in
Plan Category and Rights and Rights Column (a)
(a) (b) (€)
Equity compensation plans approved by securityérs? 656,39¢ $ 2.57 43,13:
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtglers - - -
Total 656,39¢ $ 2.57 43,13:

1 The "Number of Securities to be Issued Upon ExerofsOutstanding Warrants and Rights" represen{g5@3from the 1999 Stock Opti
Plan and 562,648 under the 2008 Stock Incentive.Plahe 2008 Stock Incentive Plan was increasedl2fy,000 units at the Annt
Stockholder meeting held September 23, 2011. TNamiber of Securities Remaining Available for Futussuance Under Equ
Compensation Plans" represents shares issuable tined2008 Stock Incentive Plan.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The executive officers of the Company are as fallobawrence A. Siebert, president, chief executffeer and chairman of the board
directors of the Company, Sharon Klugewicz, chipémating officer, Richard J. Larkin, chief financificer of the Company, and Ja\
Esfandiari, executive vice president of Research2evelopment of the Company.

On February 16, 2012, the Company granted optiorsutchase the following numbers of shares of then@any's common stock set fc
below to the executive officers of the Company ndrbelow. The exercise price for these options thaslast traded market price for
Company's common stock on February 16, 2012, whiak $4.00 per option. The options become exeileisab the effective date of t
grant. Each option granted will expire and terrteéndf not exercised sooner, upon the earlier touoof (a) 30 days after termination of
employee's employment with the Company or (b) thie &nniversary of the effective date of grant.

Name of Executive Officer Number of Shares of Common Stock Option
Richard Bruce- Vice President of Operatiol 2,563
Javan Esfandia— Executive Vice President of R& 7,969
Tom Ippolito- Vice President of Regulatory Affairs, QA & G 3,000
Richard J. Larkir— Chief Financial Office 2,797
Lawrence A. Sieber Chief Executive Office 9,063

On February 25, 2013, the Company granted optionsutchase the following numbers of shares of then@any's common stock set fc
below to the executive officers of the Company ndrbelow. The exercise price for these options thaslast traded market price for
Company's common stock on February 26, 2013, whiak $5.56 per option. The options become exeileisaib the effective date of t
grant. Each option granted will expire and terrteéndf not exercised sooner, upon the earlier touoof (a) 30 days after termination of
employee's employment with the Company or (b) thie &nniversary of the effective date of grant.

Name of Executive Officer Number of Shares of Common Stock Option
Richard Bruce- Vice President of Operatiol 1,520

Javan Esfandia— Executive Vice President of R& 4,765

Tom Ippolito- Vice President of Regulatory Affairs, QA & G 1,775

Sharon Klugewic:— Vice President of QA/Q( 630

Richard J. Larkir— Chief Financial Office 1,670

Lawrence A. Sieber Chief Executive Office 5,215

Michael Steele Vice President of Sales and Market 785

The Company entered into an employment agreeméatdtiee March 5, 2013 (the "Employment Agreement/ith Mr. Esfandiari to contint
as the Company's Senior Vice President of ReseamdhDevelopment for an additional term of threeryagarough March 5, 2016. T
Company entered into an employment agreement,teféelblay 22, 2013 (the "Employment Agreement"),hwifls. Klugewicz to become t
Company's Chief Operating Officer for a term of tyears through May 22, 2015. See Item 11 for ndetails.

Director Independence

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ. Accordinglg are subject to the corporate the governameelatds of NASDAQ, which requi
among other things, that the majority of the boafdlirectors be independent. We define an "indepatiddirector in accordance with
NASDAQ Global Market's requirements for independdinéctors. Under this definition, we have deteren that each of Katherine Da
Barbara DeBuono, Peter Kissinger, and Gary Mellgrently qualify as independent directors. We dolist the "independent” definition \
use on our internet website.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Audit Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 201€dhgany engaged BDO USA, LLP as its independertuatding firm to audit of th
Company's annual financial statements included@mFLOK, including reviews of the quarterly financial &ments and assistance with
review of documents filed with the SEC, for $15®@2Mmd $119,000 respectively in fees.

Audit-Related Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 201Zdhmany's independent accounting firm, BDO USAPLHid not provide the Compe
with any assurance and related services reasonalated to the performance of the audit or reviéwhe Company's financial statements
are not reported above under "Audit Fees."

Tax Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 201Zdhmpany's independent accounting firm, BDO USAPL billed the Company $17,5
and $20,000, respectively for professional servioesax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.

All Other Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 201Zdhwany's independent accounting firm, BDO USAPLHid not provide the Compeé
with any services for other matters.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies

The Audit Committee approves in advance all audit aonaudit services performed by the independent acemyfirm. There are no oth
specific policies or procedures relating to the-@peroval of services performed by the independeabunting firm.
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ITEM 15.

EXHIBITS INDEX

Number
3.1
3.2
4.1%
4.2
4.3
4.4
45
10.1*
10.2*
10.3*

10.3

10.4
10.5
10.6

10.8

10.9

14.1
21

23.1
311
31.2

32

101.INS
101.SCFH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

©CoOoO~NO® O W N B

Description

Articles of Incorporation, as amended.

Amended and Restated Bylaws.

Form of Employee Option Agreement. |

1999 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended.

2008 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended

Rights Agreement, dated March 8, 2010

Form of Warrant (to be filed by amendme

Employment Agreement dated June 15, 2006 with Laeae\. Siebert, as extended. (7)(

Employment Agreement dated March 5, 2013 with Jd&asfandiari (10)

Employment Agreement dated May 22, 2013 with Sh&ilogewicz (12)

HIV Barrel License, Marketing and Distribution Agraent, dated as of September 29, 2006, by and atherigegistrant, Alere and
StatSure. (8

HIV Cassette License, Marketing and Distributionrégment, dated as of September 29, 2006, betwedraistrant and Alere. (
Non-Exclusive License, Marketing and Distribution Agment, dated as of September 29, 2006, betweendyistRant and Alere. (
Joint HIV Barrel Product Commercialization Agreemetated as of September 29, 2006, between thesiRagi and StatSure. (
Secured Revolving Demand Note, dated as of ApriBA3, by and among the Registrant, Chembio DistigpoSystems, Inc. and
HSBC Bank, NA (12

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of AprilZX1,3, by and among the Registrant, Chembio DiagrsoSlstems, Inc. and
HSBC Bank, NA (12

Ethics Policy (9

List of Subsidiarie:

Consent of BDO USA, LLP, Independent RegisterediPuétTcountants

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigihancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@.35 adopted pursuant to Sec
906 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr

XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Docume

XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Docume

XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Docum

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's dmepart on Form 1-KSB filed with the Commission on March 31, 20
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's tegisn statement on Form SB-2 (File No. 333-8578&) with the Commission on
August 23, 1999 and the Registrant's For-K filed on May 14, 2004, December 20, 2007 and A18i 2008.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's dmepart on Form 1-KSB filed with the Commission on March 12, 20
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's definproxy statement on Schedule 14A filed witk tbommission on May 11, 20C
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's definproxy statement on Schedule 14A filed wite thommission on Auguust 3,
2012.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's tegisn statement on Forn-A filed with the Commission on March 11, 20:
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @uRReport on Form-K filed with the Commission on June 21, 20

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @uRReport on Form-K filed with the Commission on October 5, 20!
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's AhRegort on Form 1-KSB filed with the Commission on March 30, 20!
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's AhRegport on Form 1-K filed with the Commission on March 7, 20:
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @tuiReport on Form-K filed with the Commission on April 25, 201
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @ugrReport on Form I-Q filed with the Commission on August 8, 20

An asterisk (*) beside an exhibit number indicatesexhibit contains a management contract, congpernysplan or arrangement
which is required to be identified in this rep¢
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgjeAct, the registrant has caused this reportet@igned on its behalf by 1
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC.

Date: March 6, 2013 By /s/ Lawrence A. Siebe
Lawrence A. Siebel
President, Chief Executive Officer a
Chairman of the Boar

In accordance with the requirements of the Exchakgethis report has been signed below by theofeithg persons on behalf of
registrant and in the capacities and on the datéisated.

Signatures Title Date
/s/ Lawrence A. Siebe Chief Executive Officer, President and March 6, 2014
Lawrence A. Siebel Chairman Of The Boar

(Principal Executive Officer

/sl Richard J. Larkil Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial & March 6, 2014
Richard J. Larkir Accounting Officer)
/s] Gary Meller Director March 6, 2014

Dr. Gary Meller

/s/ Katherine L. Davi: Director March 6, 2014
Katherine L. Davis

/sl Pete Kissinge Director March 6, 2014
Pete Kissinge

/s/ Barbara DeBuon Director March 6, 2014
Barbara DeBuon
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

—INDEX—

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing

Consolidated Financial Statemer

Balance Sheets December 31, 2013 and .

Statements of Operations Years ended Decembe033,&nhd 201.

Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity Yeladed December 31, 2013 and 2
Statements of Cash Flows Years ended Decembe033,&hd 201.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemt
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chembio Diagnostics, Inc.
Medford, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and Subgidibe "Company") as of Deceml|
31, 2013 and 2012 and the related consolidatedrsttts of operations, changes in stockholderstyequid cash flows for the years tl
ended. These financial statements are the redplitysof the Company's management. Our resporigibi$ to express an opinion on th
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversigbaf® (United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet doidibtain reasonable assurance about whethatieolidated financial statements are
of material misstatement. The Company is not meguio have, nor were we engaged to perform, ait atids internal control over financi
reporting. Our audits included consideration dkinal control over financial reporting as a bdsis designing audit procedures that
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thegppse of expressing an opinion on the effectivertéghe Company's internal control ¢
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express nalswpinion. An audit also includes examining, orteat basis, evidence supporting
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemastessing the accounting principles used andisamt estimates made by managemer
well as evaluating the overall financial statemaneisentation. We believe that our audits provideasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refert@@dbove present fairly, in all material respetitg, consolidated financial position of Cherr
Diagnostics, Inc. and Subsidiary as of Decembe2813 and 2012, and the consolidated results of dperations and their cash flows for
years then ended in conformity with accounting giptes generally accepted in the United Statesro&Aca.

BDO USA, LLP
[s/BDO USA, LLP

Melville, New York
March _ , 2014
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF
- ASSETS -
December 31 December 31,
2013 2012

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 9,650,27! 2,951,85!
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $24,000 and $58,0(

at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respecti 4,592,12. 4,821,35
Inventories 3,188,722 2,488,07.
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,099,37 747,46:
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 18,530,50 11,008,75
FIXED ASSETS, net of accumulated depreciati 1,978,23; 1,427,641
OTHER ASSETS:
Deferred tax asset, net of valuation allowa 3,590,20 4,233,19
License agreements, net of current por 326,87 400,00(
Deposits on manufacturing equipm 16,41( 223,58
Deposits and other assets 44,367 41,97¢
TOTAL ASSETS $ 24,486,59 17,335,15

- LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit $ 4,309,491 3,303,92.
Current portion of loans payak - 51,23¢
Customer deposit - 23,22¢
Current portion of obligations under capital leases - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,309,49! 3,378,38
OTHER LIABILITIES:
Loans payable - net of current portion - 82,24%
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,309,49 3,460,63!
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stoc— 10,000,000 shares authorized, none outstar - -
Common stock - $.01 par value; 100,000,000 sharémezed, 9,324,783 and

8,036,232 shares issued and outstanding for 20d.2@%2, respectivel 93,24¢ 80,36:
Additional paic-in capital 46,875,02 41,116,14
Accumulated deficit (26,791,17) (27,321,99)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 20,177,10 13,874,52
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 24,486,59 $ $ 17,335,15

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED

For the years endec

December 31

December 31,

2013 2012

REVENUES:
Net product sale $ 27,515,78 $ 24,327,35
License and royalty reveni 4,90¢ -
R&D, milestone and grant revenue 2,028,91 1,283,24
TOTAL REVENUES 29,549,60 25,610,59
Cost of product sales 17,249,45 14,820,60.
GROSS MARGIN 12,300,15 10,789,99
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Research and development exper 5,834,24: 4,486,30:
Selling, general and administrative expenses 5,461,08. 4,851,58

11,295,33 9,337,88!
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 1,004,82 1,452,10;
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Other income 7,50( -
Interest incomt 5,77¢ 7,911
Interest expense (33E) (9,495

12,94 (1,589

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 1,017,771 1,450,51.
Income tax provision 486,95 509,23
NET INCOME $ 530,81¢ $ 941,28:
Basic earnings per share $ 0.0¢ $ 0.12
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.0¢ $ 0.11
Weighted average number of shares outstanding, bas 8,994,08! 7,986,03
Weighted average number of shares outstanding, dited 9,519,96! 8,614,94.

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

Additional Paid Accumulated
Common Stock in Capital Deficit Total

Shares Amount Amount Amount Amount

Balance at
December 31,
2011 7,921,002 $ 79,21C $ 40,678,69 $ (28,263,27) $ 12,494,63

Common Stock:
Consulting
Services 3,752 38 16,44: - 16,47¢

Options:
Exercisec 111,45¢ 1,11« 119,27¢ = 120,39(
Stock option
compensatiol - - 293,72¢ - 293,72¢
Consulting
Service-options - - 8,01( - 8,01(

Net income - - - 941,28 941,28

Balance at
December 31,
2012 8,036,23 $ 80,36: $ 41,116,14 $ (27,321,99) $ 13,874,522

Common Stock:
New Stock from
Offering 1,200,00 12,00( 5,396,46; - 5,408,46;

Options:
Exercisec 88,55 88¢ 30,54¢ - 31,43:
Stock option
compensatiol - - 331,87( - 331,87(

Net income - - - 530,81¢ 530,81¢

Balance at
December 31,
2013 9,324,78 $ 93,24¢ $ 46,875,02 % (26,791,17) $ 20,177,10

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED

December 31, 201.

December 31, 201

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from customers and gr: $ 29,778,84 $ 23,810,91
Cash paid to suppliers and employ (27,506,67) (23,048,24)
Interest receive 5,77¢ 7,911
Interest paid (335) (9,495
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,277,61 761,08:
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of and deposits on fixed assets (885,609 (872,44
Net cash used in investing activitie (885,609 (872,44
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from option and warrant exerc 31,43: 120,39(
Proceeds from sale of common stock, 5,408,46:
Payment of loan obligatic (133,48) (53,55)
Payment of capital lease obligation - (14,576
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitie 5,306,41 52,26:
(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6,698,41i (59,09
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the period 2,951,85! 3,010,95:
Cash and cash equivalent- end of the period $ 9,650,27! 2,951,85!
RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED B Y OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
Net Income $ 530,81t 941,28:
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortizatic 607,82: 523,27¢
Provision for deferred taxe 458,15: 471,08!
Provision for doubtful accoun (34,000 28,00(
Share based compensat 331,87( 318,21!
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivabl 263,23t (1,850,90i)
Inventories (700,65 (187,785
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (159,58 (20,227
Deposits and other assi (2,397 49¢
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 1,005,56 514,42:
Customer deposits and deferred revenue (23,224 23,22¢
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 227761 $ 761,08
Supplemental disclosures for non-cash investing arfthancing activities:
Deposits on manufacturing equipment transferrdikénl asset: $ 521,56. $ 229,04

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 1 — DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS:

Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. (the "Company" or "Chesfipiand its subsidiary, Chembio Diagnostic Systemns,, develop,

manufacture, and market rapid diagnostic testsdhtdct infectious diseases. The Company's maénalatiow products are
three rapid tests for the detection of HIV antilesdin whole blood, serum and plasma samples, twehath were approved
by the FDA in 2006; the third is sold for exportynLateral Flow Rapid HIV tests represented ne@d% of the Company's
product revenues in 2013. The Company's prochaded on its patented DPP® platform representerbxippately 24% of

the Company's product revenues in 2013. The Compbksayhas other rapid tests that together repredagproximately 2%
of sales in 2013. The Company's products are ®olthedical laboratories and hospitals, governmeantd public health
entities, non-governmental organizations, medicabfgssionals and retail establishments both dorabti and

internationally. Chembio's products are sold untter Company's STAT-PAK®, SURE CHECK® or DPP® regjist

trademarks, or under the private labels of its ratinkg partners, for example the Clearview® labehed by Alere, Inc.
("Alere"), which is the Company's exclusive markgtipartner for its rapid HIV lateral flow test prars in the United
States. These products employ lateral flow teabgies that are proprietary and/or licensed to tleen@any. All of the

Company's products that are currently being dewalogre based on its patented Dual Path PlatformRP@), which is a
unique diagnostic point-of-care platform that hastain advantages over lateral flow technology.DiEcember 2012, the
Company received FDA approval for its DPP® HIV B8say for the detection of HIV antibodies in salivéhole blood,

serum and plasma samples.

NOTE 2 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
(a) Principles of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include ttwoants of the Company and its wholly owned subsjdi All
intercompany transactions and balances have bieeimaled in consolidation.

(b) Use of Estimates:

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted
in the United States requires management to makengsgtions and estimates that affect the reporteduata of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingesgets and liabilities at the dates of the codat#d financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenuesxqmhses during the reporting periods coverecdtliyerActual
results could differ from these estimates. Judgmemd estimates of uncertainties are required plyaqy the
Company's accounting policies in certain areas. foliewing are some of the areas requiring sigaificjudgments
and estimates: determinations of the useful livieassets, estimates of allowances for doubtful acts) inventory
reserves, stock-based compensation and deferredsats.

(c) Fair Value of Financial I nstruments:

The carrying value for cash and cash equivalertsyunts receivable and accounts payable, approgifaat value
because of the immediate or short-term maturitythafse financial instruments. The Company's delztesl to
borrowings under its credit facilities and termrdaee Note 7), which approximates fair value dumarket interest
rates.

(d) Statements of Cash Flows:

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, tiragany considers all highly liquid investments watimaturity of
three months or less when purchased to be cashadepis.

(e) Concentrations of Credit Risk:

Financial instruments which potentially subject thempany to concentrations of credit risk consistgipally of
temporary cash investments and trade receivables.Company places its temporary cash instrumertts well-
known financial institutions and, at times, may main balances in excess of the FDIC insurancet.liffihe
Company monitors the credit ratings of the finahaiatitutions to mitigate this risk. Concentratiof credit risk
with respect to trade receivables is principallytigaited by the Company's ability to obtain lettefscredit from
certain foreign customers, and its diverse custdmase both in number of customers and geograpbatibms. We
currently do not require collateral for accountseigable.

F-6




(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

0)

(k)

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

Inventories:

Inventories, consisting of material, labor and nfaoturing overhead, are stated at the lower of opstarket. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets:

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulajecbdiation. Depreciation is computed using thaigit-line

method over the estimated useful lives of the rethpe assets, which range from three to seven ydazasehold
improvements are amortized over the useful lifthefasset or the lease term, whichever is shobBeposits paid for
fixed assets are capitalized and not depreciatébitha related asset is placed in service.

License Agreement:

In February 2008, the Company entered into a seiidie agreement for which it had initially recordedasset of
$1,000,000. This asset is being expensed ovestanated economic life of ten years, based on tpeeted lifespan
of our then current HIV products. The current jwortof this asset is $100,000 as of December 313 2(hd 2012
and is reported in prepaid expenses and otherrtuassets. The long-term portion as of December2813 and
2012 is $300,000 and $400,000, respectively anefliscted in other assets on the consolidated balaheet.

I mpairment of Long-Lived Assets and I ntangible Assets

Long-lived assets to be held and used are analf@eonpairment whenever events or changes in cistantes
indicate that the related carrying amounts maybeatecoverable. The Company evaluates at eachdeatdeet date
whether events and circumstances have occurredinbdatate possible impairment. If there are intlaas of
impairment, the Company uses future undiscountesh dlows of the related asset or asset grouping tive
remaining life in measuring whether the assets@teverable. In the event such cash flows aresrpécted to be
sufficient to recover the recorded asset values affsets are written down to their estimated falue: We believe
that the carrying values of our long-lived tangibled intangible assets were realizable at Dece®bef013 and
2012, respectively.

Revenue Recognition:

The Company recognizes revenue for product salasdardance with ASC 605, revenue is recognizechvithere is

persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivenpbesrred or services have been rendered, the gadesis fixed

and determinable, and collectability is reasonaligsured. Revenue typically is recognized at tinfe

shipment. Sales are recorded net of discountatestand returns. As of December 31, 2013 and 2i(i13ggregate
of none and $23,224, respectively, of customer sigpavere not recognized.

For certain contracts, the Company recognizes evdrom non-milestone contracts and grant reverwiesn
earned. Grants are invoiced after expenses atgra@tt Revenues from projects or grants fundeddwance are
deferred until earned. As of December 31, 2013201, all advanced revenues were earned.

The Company follows Financial Accounting StandaBdsrd ("FASB") issued authoritative guidance ("guide")
prospectively for the recognition of revenue unither milestone method. The Company applies the moitesmethod

of revenue recognition for certain collaborativesaarch projects defining milestones at the inceptid the
agreement.

Research and Development:

Research and development (R&D) costs are expersadared.

F-7




()

(m)

(n)

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

Stock-Based Compensation:

Stock-based compensation expense is calculated tregrBlack-Scholes valuation model based on awaltioisately
expected to vest, reduced for forfeitures, and es@e on a straight-line basis over the requisiteice period of the
grant.

| ncome Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes under ar assdeliability approach which recognizes defertaxl assets
and liabilities based on the difference betweenfi@ncial statement carrying amounts and the &seb of assets
and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effadhie years in which the differences are expeaederse.

The Company follows a more-likely-than-not threshfdr financial statement recognition and measurgroéa tax
position taken, or expected to be taken, in a &nrn. The guidance relates to, among other thiclgssification,
accounting for interest and penalties associatet taix positions, and disclosure requirements. Angrest and
penalties accrued related to uncertain tax positwill be recorded in tax expense.

Earnings Per Share

On May 30, 2012, the Company effected a 1-for-&re® split of its common stock. This was donellmaathe
Company to move to the NASDAQ trading market frdra OTCQB market, which occurred on June 7, 2012 aA
result of the stock split, the outstanding 63,963,2ommon shares were reduced to 7,995,918 ouistandmmon
shares on May 30, 2012. The effect of the revsisek split has been retroactively reflected fompakiods in these
financial statements.

The following weighted average shares were usethiocomputation of basic and diluted earningsspare:

For the years endec
December 31, 201. December 31, 201
Basic 8,994,08I 7,986,03!

Diluted 9,519,96! 8,614,94.

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividirtgeaenings attributable to common stockholdersheyweighted-
average number of common shares outstanding forpdrmd. Diluted earnings per share for the yeadeén
December 31, 2013 and 2012 reflects the potenilisiah from the exercise or conversion of othecigities into
common stock.

The following securities, presented on a commorresigguivalent basis, have been used in the dilpgdshare
computations:

For the years ended
December 31, 201, December 31, 201
1999 and 2008 Plan Stock Optior 525,88t 628,91

There were 169,662 and 161,464 options and warmrntsanding as of December 31, 2013 and 2012ecésply,
which were not included in the calculation of déddtincome per share for the years ended becausetfeet would
have been anti-dilutive.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

(0) Recent Accounting Pronouncements Affecting the Company:
New accounting pronouncements are issued by thanEial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") or other
standards setting bodies that we adopt accorditigetwarious timetables the FASB specifies. The gamy does not
expect the adoption of recently issued accountimp@uncements to have a significant impact on tben@any's
results of operations, financial position or caskvf
NOTE 3 — INVENTORIES:

Inventories consist of the following at:

December 31, 201. December 31, 201

Raw materials $ 1,710,62 $ 1,418,07.
Work in process 464,48 561,53(
Finished goods 1,013,61. 508,47(

$ 3,188,721 $ 2,488,07.

NOTE 4 — FIXED ASSETS:
Fixed assets consist of the following at:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 201

Machinery and equipme! $ 3,158,26! $ 2,439,59
Furniture and fixture 352,92! 287,41:
Computer and telephone

equipmen 167,04! 151,73
Leasehold improvemen 1,016,78 798,04¢
Automobiles 37,06 29,22¢
4,732,07 3,706,02:

Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization (2,753,84) (2,278,37))
$ 1,978,23. $ 1,427,641

There were no capital leases at the end of Dece®beP013. Fixed assets at December 31, 2013iatdade
$493,000 in equipment, which has been deliveredsatip but is undergoing validation and as suduisently not
being depreciated. Depreciation expense for th@32and 2012 years aggregated $505,000 and $423,000
respectively.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company laddl geposits on various pieces of equipment agtjrega
$16,410 and $223,584, respectively. The Comparfyriier committed to an additional obligation &1$990 as
various milestones are achieved by the various mend

NOTE 5 — ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consigheffollowing at:

December 31, 201. December 31, 201

Accounts payable- suppliers $ 1,815,360 $ 1,686,43.
Accrued commissions 371,90! 238,15(
Accrued royalties / license fees 1,028,28! 583,92:
Accrued payroll 328,56« 262,43¢
Accrued vacation 203,44 181,63t
Accrued bonuses 317,37 155,66
Accrued expenses — other 244 55( 195,68:
TOTAL $ 4,309,490 $ 3,303,92.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 6 — DEFERRED RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT REVENUE:

The Company recognizes income from R&D milestondemwthose milestones are reached and non-milestone
contracts and grants when earned. Grants areciedafter expenses are incurred. Any projects antgrfunded in
advance are deferred until earned. As of Decembe?@®13 and 2012, there were no unearned advarsuedues.

NOTE 7 — TERM NOTE, REVOLVING DEMAND NOTE, VEHICLE FINANCING AND LICENSE FEE PAYABLE:

On April 30, 2013, the Company entered into a n@maind loan agreement ("Demand Note") with HSBC Bank
USA ("HSBC"). The Demand Note allows the Companyltaw on the line from time to time an amount umio
aggregate of $2,000,000 outstanding at any one fiilme accrued interest on the Demand Note is payabhthly at

an interest rate equal to one-quarter percent apowee per annum. The Company can repay any oofathe
principal balance outstanding at any time. Thia @&emand note for which the bank lender can demgpalyment of
the entire loan, with accrued interest, at any fififee loan is subject to annual reviews, as welirmsnnual 30-day
clean-up, during which there can be no amountgandsg.

The Security Agreement, related to the Demand Naatains covenants that place restrictions onQbmpany's
operations, including covenants relating to mergdebt restrictions, capital expenditures, tangitd¢ worth, net
profit, leverage, fixed charge coverage, employean |restrictions, distribution restrictions (commstock and
preferred stock), dividend restrictions, restrioimn lease payments to affiliates, restrictionslwnges in business,
asset sale restrictions, restrictions on acquisstiand intercompany transactions, and restrictmmgundamental
changes in the Company and in its business.

The Company currently maintains its operating, plyand primary cash accounts at HSBC. As of Ddmm31,
2013, nothing had been drawn down on the Demand &lnd all covenants were met.

NOTE 8 — INCOME TAXES:

The provision for income taxes for the years eridedember 31, 2013 and 2012, is comprised of tHewigig:

2013 2012
Current
Federa $ 27,178 $ 33,05¢
State 1,62: 5,09¢
Total current provision 28,79¢ 38,15:
Deferred
Federa 454,43 464,00!
State 3,71t 7,08(
Total deferred provision 458,15: 471,08!
Total provision $ 486,95. $ 509,23

The Company had an ownership change as describédtémal Revenue Code Sec. 382 during 2004 ("2004
change"). As a result, the Company's net operdtisges prior to the 2004 change of $5,832,516 webgect to an
annual limitation of $150,608 and for the firstdiy5) years are entitled to a BIG (Built-In-Gaing)$488,207 per
year. These net operating losses expire in 20Rigr 2024.

The Company had a second ownership change durif§ 22006 change"). The net operating losses iecurr
between the 2004 change and the 2006 change d3&8@L were subject to an annual limitation of $1,831 and
for the first five (5) years are entitled to a Bt® $1,756,842 per year. These net operating losgpse in 2018
through 2028.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

After applying the above limitations, at Decembér 3013, the Company has post-change net operatisgcarry-
forwards of approximately $10,551,034 which exjnetween 2020 and 2028. In addition the Companyédesearch
and development tax credit carryforwards of apprately $1,052,000 for the year ended December @&ll3,2vhich
expire between 2025 and 2033.

2013 2012
Current assets
Inventory reserve $ 307,08 $ 224,69
Accrued expenses 329,18 226,74
Net current deferred ass $ 636,26° $ 451,43:
Noncurrent assets
Net operating loss car-forwards $ 3,616,08 $ 4,236,00:
Research and development cre 1,052,16! 711,44
Other credits 124,41 97,23¢
Other 107,80¢ 99,097
Gross noncurrent deferred tax as: 4,900,471 5,143,78:
Depreciation (258,107) (199,144
Noncurrent deferred tax ass 4,642,37. 4,944,63!
Less valuation allowances (1,052,161 (711,444
Net noncurrent deferred tax ass $ 3,590,20 $ 4,233,19.

A reconciliation of the Federal statutory ratehe effective rate applicable to income (loss) befocome taxes is as
follows:

Year Ending December 3

2013 2012
Federal income tax at statutory ra 34.00% 34.00¥%
State income taxes, net of federal ber AT% 0.70%
Nondeductible expens: 10.27% 5.40%
Change in valuation allowan: 33.48% 8.90%
Tax credits (33.48)% (8.90)%
Change in tax rate 3.10% (5.20)%
Other (.01)% 0.20%
Income tax (benefit 47.83% 35.10%

Interest and penalties, if any, related to incomelinbilities are included in income tax expense. of December 31,
2013, the Company does not have a liability foreutain tax positions.

The Company files Federal and New York state inctemeeturns. Tax years for fiscal 2010 throughh2@re open
and potentially subject to examination by the fatland New York state taxing authorities.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 9 — STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

(@)

(b)

(©)

Common Stock

The Company closed on an underwritten public affpof 1,200,000 shares of its common stock at $H£10
share on April 3, 2013. The net proceeds of therfg, after deducting the underwriters' discowand other
offering expenses payable by the Company, was appately $5,408,000. The Company intends to usenttie
proceeds for business expansion and working capital

During 2013, options to purchase 88,551 shareh®fGompany's common stock were exercised at egercis
prices ranging from of $1.04 to $1.76

During 2012, options to purchase 111,459 shargbefCompany's common stock were exercised at eeerci
prices ranging from of $1.04 to $1.76.

In March 2012, June 2012, September 2012 and Demeg0i2, the Company issued 938 shares of common
stock on each date to a consultant as part ofadhsuitant's compensation.

Preferred Stock

The Company has 10,000,000 shares of preferredk stothorized and none outstanding. These shams ca
become issuable upon an approved resolution bybtsd of directors and the filing of a Certificabé
Designation with the state of Nevada.

Options

The Company entered into an employment agreemésttiee May 22, 2013 ("Employment Agreement"), with
Ms. Klugewicz to serve as the Company's Chief QpegaOfficer, which included issuing incentive stoc
options to purchase 5,000 shares of the Compaoysnon stock. The options are exercisable in twoakqu
annual installments starting on the first anniversd the date of issue. The exercise price fos¢heptions was
to be equal to the last traded price for the Comisacommon stock on May 22, 2013, which was $4.60 p
share. Each option granted will expire and terngindtnot exercised sooner, upon the earlier tauoof (a) 30
days after termination of the employee's employmeitlh the Company or (b) the fifth anniversary bkt
effective date of the grant.

On February 26, 2013, the Company issued 16,36@repto purchase common stock to executives of the
Company as part of their 2012 bonus. The optioasaercisable immediately at $5.56 per share, wiiah the
last traded price of the common stock on that day, they expire five years from the date of issue.

The Company entered into an employment agreemégttiee March 5, 2013 ("Employment Agreement”), hwit
Mr. Esfandiari to continue as the Company's SeMme President of Research and Development, which
included issuing incentive stock options to pureh38,000 shares of the Company's common stockoptiens

are exercisable in three equal annual installmstaging on the first anniversary of the date cfus The
exercise price for these options was to be equ#thdolast traded price for the Company's commonkstm
March 5, 2013, which was $5.44 per share. Eachoopgranted will expire and terminate, if not exsed
sooner, upon the earlier to occur of (a) 30 daysrakermination of the employee's employment witle t
Company or (b) the fifth anniversary of the effeettate of the grant.

On February 16, 2012, the Company issued 25,39®repto purchase common stock to executives of the

Company as part of their 2011 bonus. The optioe®gercisable immediately at $4.00 per share, lwivias the
last traded price of the common stock on that dag, they expire five years from date of issue.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

In March 2012, the Company issued 3,750 optionsuteghase shares of the Company's common at anigxerc
price of $4.00 per share to a consultant as path®fconsultant's compensation. On each of Mag&h012,
June 19, 2012, September 19, 2012 and Decembe012, 938 of these options vested. These optiare w
valued using a Black-Scholes model at $8,010, falvibich was expensed in the year ended December 31,
2012. The options are being accounted for undewtriable method as per ASC 505 and $50 of therese
was reduced attributable to this method.

During the third quarter of 2012, the Company islsid2,000 options to purchase common stock to néxvbd

vice-presidents of the Company. The options arraésable in three equal annual installments signtin the
first anniversary of the date of issue. An allofinef 36,000 options issued to one of the new yieEsidents
have an exercise price of $5.11 per share, and&@00 options that were issued to the other rieespresident
have an exercise price of $4.45 per share, whigagh case was the last traded price of the constomk on
the day issued. The options expire five years fdate of issue.

(d) Warrants

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company bagearrants outstanding to purchase shares of common
stock.

NOTE 10 — RIGHTS AGREEMENT:

In March 2010, the Company entered into a RighteeAment (the "Rights Agreement") between the Comaual
Action Stock Transfer Corp., as Rights Agent. Barg to the Rights Agreement, the Company declardividend
distribution of one preferred share purchase righRight") for each outstanding share of Commarct$0.01 par
value (the "Common Stock"), of the Company. TherBaz Directors set the payment date for the distibn of the
Rights as March 8, 2010, and the Rights were digtted to the Company's shareholders of record andite. The
description and terms of the Rights are set fartthé Rights Agreement.

Rights Initially Not Exercisable. The Rights are not exercisable until a DistribatiDate. Until a Right is
exercised, the holder thereof, as such, will hawerights as a shareholder of the Company, includmighout
limitation, the right to vote or to receive dividin

Separation and Distribution of Rights. The Rights will be evidenced by the certificates shares of Common
Stock registered in the names of the holders tlieamol not by separate rights certificates ungl &arlier to occur of
(i) the close of business on the tenth businessfaldgwing a public announcement that an Acquiripgrson (as
defined in the Rights Agreement) acquired a Contbi@&nership (as defined in the Rights Agreement}5%o or
more of the outstanding shares of the Common Stibek"Shares Acquisition Date") or (ii) the latdr(8) the close
of business on the tenth business day (or such date as may be determined by action of the Bo#idirectors
prior to such time as any person or group of at#d or associated persons becomes an Acquirirspieafter the
date that a tender or exchange offer or intentmredmmence a tender or exchange offer by any pessdinst
published, announced, sent or given within the rimgpof Rule 14d-4(A) under the Securities ExchaAgeof 1934,
as amended, the consummation of which would résahy person having Combined Ownership of 15% orenof
the outstanding shares of the Common Stock, orifBuch a tender or exchange offer has been pudiish
announced, sent or given before the date of thbtRiygreement, then the close of business on tith trisiness day
after the date the Rights Agreement was enter@d(ortsuch later date as may be determined byracfithe Board
of Directors prior to such time as any person bexoan Acquiring Person); (the earlier of such dedésred to in
(i) and (ii), which date may include any such dtiat is after the date of the Rights Agreement ggr to the
issuance of the Rights, being called the "DistidmuDate").
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 11 — EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN:

The Company has a 1999 Stock Option Plan ("SORgjnaily covering 187,500 shares of Common Stockdér
the terms of the SOP, the Compensation CommitteeeoCompany's board is authorized to grant ineertptions
to key employees and to grant non-qualified optitm&ey employees and key individuals. The optibesome
exercisable at such times and under such conditsrdetermined by the Compensation Committee. SDE was
amended at the Company's 2005 stockholders' meeting number of options under the SOP was incoetaseover
375,000 shares of common stock. It was also antetalallow independent directors to be eligible doants under
the portion of the SOP concerning non-qualifiediam. As of December 31, 2013, there were 93,186tanding
options under this SOP. No additional options inayssued under the SOP more than 10 years &ftedoption

Effective June 3, 2008, the Company's stockholdeted to approve the 2008 Stock Incentive PlanR"BIwith
625,000 shares of Common Stock available to beedssiét the Annual Stockholder meeting on Septer2Bei2011
the Company's stockholders voted to approve araser to the shares of Common Stock issuable uhde3IP by
125,000 to 750,000. Under the terms of the SIB,@ompensation Committee of the Company's Boardtlas
discretion to select the persons to whom awardsatee granted. Awards can be stock options, msttistock
and/or restricted stock units. The awards becorstedeat such times and under such conditions asndigied by the
Compensation Committee. As of December 31, 20h8ret were 144,220 options exercised, 562,648 aption
outstanding and 43,132 options still availableeéddsued under the SIP.

The Company's results for the years ended DeceB81he2013 and 2012 include stock-based compensetipense
totaling $332,000 and $294,000, respectively. Sartlounts have been included in the Consolidategti8tnts of
Operations within cost of goods sold ($78,000 a4é,800, respectively), research and developmer@§$®D0 and
$71,000, respectively) and selling, general andiadimative expenses ($148,000 and $174,000, ré&spgg. In

accordance with ASC 718 the Company has not redoaddeferred tax asset related to the net oper&tsges
resulting from the exercise of disqualifying stamitions in the accompanying financial statemenke Gumulative
amount of unrecognized tax benefits at Decembe313 was immaterial, and if the Company is abletilize this

benefit in the future it would result in a creditadditional paid-in capital.

Stock option compensation expense in the yearsdebgeember 31, 2013 and 2012 represents the estinfair
value of options outstanding which is being amedion a straight-line basis over the requisiteinggieriod of the
entire award.

The weighted average estimated fair value of stqations granted in the years ended December 313 26d 2012
was $3.99 and $3.27 per share, respectively. @imevélue of options at the date of grant was estimh using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model. The expectelhtldy is based upon historical volatility of ostock and other
contributing factors. The expected term is basetherCompany's historical experience with simiguret options.

The weighted-average assumptions made in calcgl#tmfair values of options are as follows:

For the years endec
December 31, 201: December 31, 201

Expected term (in years) 4-5 4-5
Expected volatility 99.€-115.77% 99.6(-115.77%
Expected dividend yield n/a n/a
Risk-free interest rate .34-.40% .33-0.37%

The Company granted 51,360 new options during treg ¥nded December 31, 2013 to employees at aagever
exercise price of $5.39 per share.
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The following table provides stock options activity the year ended December 31, 2013:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Number of Exercise Price per Contractual Aggregate Intrinsi
Stock Options Shares Share Term Value
Outstanding at December 31
2012 731,64¢ $ 2.2% 2.19 years $ 3,460,68!
Grantec 51,36( $ 5.3¢
Exercisec (88,55) $ 1.3¢ 341,729
Forfeited/expired/cancelled (38,05) $ 2.5¢
Outstanding at December 31
2013 656,39¢ $ 2.51 1.65 years $ 801,88t
Exercisable at December 31
2013 504,02: $ 2.04 1.16 years $ 780,51

The following table summarizes information abowicktoptions outstanding at December 31, 2013:

Stock Options Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable
Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of Contract Average Aggregate Average Aggregate

Exercise Life Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic

Prices Shares (Year) Price Value Shares Price Value
$0.000 to 1.50! 328,74 0.37 % 1.04% 765,98! 328,74¢$ 1.04% 765,98!
1.501 to 2.00! - - - - - - -
2.001 to 3.50! 131,25! 2.2¢ 2.62 98,81¢ 93,75( 2.54 77,43¢
3.501 to 4.50t 128,05! 2.8¢ 4.24 - 67,18 4.1% -
4.501 to 8.000 80,84( 3.9z 5.32 - 26,84( 5.3¢€ -
Tota 668,89! 1.64% 2483 864,80: 516,52:$ 1.94% 843,42:

As of December 31, 2013, there was $172,000 ofunetcognized compensation cost related to stoclormpthat are ni
vested, which is expected to be recognized ovegighted average period of approximately 0.64 yed@ie total fair value «
shares vested during the years ended Decembe®33 ahd 2012, was $118,000 and $144,000, resphbctive

NOTE 12 — GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION:
FASB Guidance establishes standards for the wal libainess enterprises report information aboutraijre
segments in financial statements and requiresttitate enterprises report selected informationlsid astablishes

standards for related disclosures about producsandces, geographic areas, and major customers.

The Company produces only one group of similar petelknown collectively as "rapid medical tests'aMgement
believes that it operates in a single business sagrlet sales by geographic area are as follows:

For the years ende

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Africa $ 435273 % 2,669,14i
Asia 115,88¢ 658,83:
Europe 99,14¢ 54,28(
North America 9,730,55 8,630,95!
South America 13,217,46 12,314,14
$ 27,515,788 $ 24,327,35
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

Sales to Africa increased in 2013 primarily duéntreased sales in Uganda by approximately $1,286a0d Ethiopia by
approximately $262,000. Sales in Asia decreased flecreased sales in the Middle East by $483,8ates in 2013 and
2012 to North America were primarily from saleshe U.S of approximately $9.10 million and $7.72liom, respectively
and sales in 2013 and 2012 to South America weneapity from sales in Brazil of approximately $6.f&dllion and $10.30
million, respectively.

NOTE 13 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
Employment Contracts:
The Company has contracts with three key employ&bs. contracts call for salaries presently aggieg&840,000

per year. One contract expires in May 2014, orgres in May 2015 and one contract expires in M&@h6. The
following table is a schedule of future minimumaggcommitments:

2014 $ 683,00(
2015 415,00(
2016 300,00(
2017 50,00(

Pension Plan:

The Company has a 401(k) plan established forrtpleyees. Effective January 1, 2011 the Compasgtet to
match 40% of the first 5% (or 2% of salary) thateanployee contributes to their 401(k) plan. Exgsnelated to
this matching contribution aggregated $83,000 a6d,800 for the years ended December 31, 2013 ai@, 20
respectively.

Obligations Under Operating Leases:

The Company leases industrial space used for ofR&® and manufacturing facilities, currently wighmonthly rent
of $21,814. The current lease expires on April Z017. The lease provides for annual increases bR percent
each year starting May 1, 2015. In February of4/2@he Company entered into a lease, effective Mar014, for
another facility located a short distance fromcitsrent facility currently with a monthly rent 0.4,658. The space
will be used primarily for warehousing and provides additional office space. The lease expiresAgmil 30,
2018. The lease provides for annual increasdsreétpercent each year starting March 1, 2015.

The following is a schedule of future minimum rém@mmitments (assuming no increases):

Years ending December 31,

2014 $ 463,25!
2015 513,41
2016 527,15:
2017 306,01
2018 64,06¢

$ 1,873,90

Rent expense was $250,700 and $231,700 for the wealed December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

Economic Dependency:

The following table delineates sales the Compary tbacustomers in excess of 10% of total salegHerperiods

indicated:
Accounts
For the years ended Receivable As of
December 31, 201. December 31, 201, December 31, 201: December 31, 201
% of % of
Sales Sales Sales Sales
Customer $ 8,894,96! 32% $ 7,778,68! 32% $ 547,88" $ 879,08¢
Customer - 6,449,38! 23% 10,299,21 42% 2,064,941 1,668,15!
Customer ¢ 6,745,93! 25% * * - *

In the table above the asterisk (*) indicates Has to the customer did not exceed 10% for thiegedicated.

The following table delineates purchases the Compgwad with vendors in excess of 10% of total puselsafor the
periods indicated.

Accounts
For the years ended Payable As of
December 31, 201: December 31, 201, December 31, 201. December 31, 201
% of % of
Purchases Purc. Purchases Purc.
Vendor 1 $ * *% $ 817,29: 13% $ 105,09! $ 114,89:
Vendor 2 1,114,811 1C% $ 778,79 12% 84,16 76,93

In the table above the asterisk (*) indicates thathases from the vendor did not exceed 10% fopériod indicated.

The Company currently buys materials which are Ipased under intellectual property rights agreemeamd are
important components in its products. Managemestieves that other suppliers could provide simitaaterials on

comparable terms. A change in suppliers, howesauld cause a delay in manufacturing and a pos#iske of sales,
which would affect operating results adversely.

NOTE 14 — COLLABORATIVE RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AG REEMENTS:

In 2013 and 2012 the Company earned $2.0 millich $h3 million, respectively, from research revenaed milestones. The
Company is now involved in additional feasibilitpdadevelopment contracts related to its DPP® teldyyo The total expended
on R&D in 2013 and 2012, was approximately $3.7iamland $3.1 million, respectively.

a. National Institutes of Health (NIH) Gran

In June 2009, the Company received a $3 millioredtyear grant from the United States Nationalitutsts of Health to
complete development of a test for Leptospiro§lsants are invoiced after expenses are incurrBide Company earned,
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 20khds$270,000, respectively from this grant. The Gany has earned

an aggregate of $2,756,000 from this grant fromeion through December 31, 2013, of which $898,8@8 paid to
sub-contractors.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

In March 2011, the Company received a $2.4 millibree-year grant from the United States Nationstifutes of Health
to complete development of a test for TuberculoSsants are invoiced after expenses are incurféd Company
earned, for the years ended December 31, 2013 @h#, $1,089,000 and $682,000, respectively frora gnant. The
Company has earned $2,466,000 from this grant frmeption through December 31, 2013, of which $8@9,was paid

to sub-contractors.

b. Battelle/CDC DPI® Influenza Immunity Tes

In July 2012 as amended in 2013, the Company ehtiete a follow-on, milestone-based developmenteagrent
bringing the total up to $946,000 based on Chemlgevious successful initial development of a iplgk rapid point-
of-care ("POC") influenza immunity test utilizintsipatented Dual Path Platform® (DPP®) technoldgye follow on-
agreement contemplates a period of approximateig mionths in which the follow-on development atyivis to be
completed. The Company earned, for the years ebdedmber 31, 2013 and 2012, $643,500 and $277r&8ectively
from this grant. The Company has earned $921 @010 this grant from inception through DecemberZ113.

c. Cooperative research agreement with a U.S. govenhiagency:

In May 2013, the Company was awarded a coopera@igearch agreement with a U.S. government agencypfdo
$766,000 for an eight-month development projectiévelop rapid POC diagnostic tests for five infeesi diseases
associated with febrile illness. The Company earfi@gd6,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013 filoim

agreement.

Governmental Regulation:

All of the Company's existing and proposed diagnoptoducts are regulated by the United States Faudl Drug
Administration (FDA), United States Department ofrisulture, certain state and local agencies, andémnparable
regulatory bodies in other countries. Most aspettdevelopment, production, and marketing, inabgdproduct testing,
authorizations to market, labeling, promotion, nfaoturing, and record keeping are subject to revidfter marketing
approval has been granted, Chembio must continwnaply with governmental regulations. Failurectmply with

these regulations can result in significant peeslti
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List of Subsidiaries

Chembio Diagnostic Systems, Inc. (Delaware)




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Chembio Diagnostics, Inc.
Medford, New York

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-83460, No. 333-141555 and No. 333-
151785) and on Form S-3 (No. 333-185932) as ameofledr report dated March 6, 2014, relating to¢basolidated balance sheets of
Chembio Diagnostics Inc. and Subsidiary as of Ddeem31, 2013 and 2012 and the related consolidattements of operations, changes in
stockholders' equity and cash flows for the yelags tended appearing in this Form 10-K.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP
BDO USA, LLP
Melville, New York

March 6, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Lawrence A. Siebert, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Form 10-K of Chembio Diagnesstinc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtate a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvesite made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present
in all material respects the financial conditicgsults of operations and cash flows of the regista of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) araré responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls ar
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forrégistrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedwrecaused such disclosure controls and procedarbe designe
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrmédion relating to the registrant, including itneolidated subsidiaries, is m
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report i prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financeparting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to k£
designed under our supervision, to provide readeredsurance regarding the reliability of financgporting and the preparat
of financial statements for external purposes toetance with generally accepted accounting priesip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisglosure controls and procedures and presemtetiis report ot
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discéosontrols and procedures, as of the end of thedgeovered by this repc
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesignt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during tl
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmaport) that has materia
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) arltalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiioernal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's aoiditand the audit committee of the registrant'sdoéadirectors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbrdver financia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffgct the registrant's ability to record, processnmarize and report financ
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that indvmanagement or other employees who have a smmiifrole in th
registrant's internal control over financial rejugt

Date: March 6, 2014 /sl Lawrence A. Siebert
Lawrence A. Siebert, Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Richard J. Larkin, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Form 10-K of Chembio Diagnesstinc.;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#ttéde a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvesits made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsostmer financial information included in this repdairly present ii
all material respects the financial condition, tessaf operations and cash flows of the registeanof, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4.  The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a)}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13al15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forrdgistrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedwrecaused such disclosure controls and procedarbe designe
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrmédion relating to the registrant, including itsneolidated subsidiaries, is mi
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report i prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financiparting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financeporting and the preparat
of financial statements for external purposes toetance with generally accepted accounting priesijp

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisglosure controls and procedures and presemtetiis report ot
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discéosontrols and procedures, as of the end of thedgeovered by this repc
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesignt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during tl
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the remigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmaport) that has materia
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5.  The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anblve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiomernal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's aoiditand the audit committee of the registrant'sdohdirectors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbrdver financia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adverss#iect the registrant's ability to record, processnmarize and report financ
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a simifiole in th
registrant's internal control over financial rejugt

Date: March 6, 2014 /s/ Richard J. Larkin
Richard J. Larkin, Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form K @the "Report") of Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. (tf@ompany") for the ye:
ended December 31, 2013, each of the undersignecehae A. Siebert, the Chief Executive Officer lod «Company, and Richze
J. Larkin, the Chief Financial Officer of the Comgahereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®B0, as adopted pursuan
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, tioathe best of the undersigneds' knowledge ahefbe

(1) This Form 1K for the year ended December 31, 2013 fully coaglvith the requirements of section 13(a) or 16¢
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in this Form 10-K tbe year ended December 31, 2013 fairly presamgdl material
respects, the financial condition and results @rafjons of Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. for the pdsipresented therein.

Dated: March 6, 2014 /s/ Lawrence A. Siebert
Lawrence A. Siebert
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: March 6, 2014 /s/ Richard J. Larkin
Richard J. Larkin
Chief Financial Officer




